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Crric Pacific’s primary focus is on providing basic infrastructure - R - FEEREE - o> AFRIE
aviation, civil infrastructure, communications and power B VR AN B A S W
generation - in Hong Kong and Mainland China. Marketing and BEREERE -
distributing motor and consumer products complements these TERELLAEE  HPRETSEA
businesses, as does property investment and management. RN Y A NEY NG E 4
Based in Hong Kong with a deep knowledge of China, CrtiC AR MEEBlERERE - BLA¥E
Pacific consists of sound businesses that produce good cash flows, B A2 R RE - £EN IS
many of which have potential to grow. Our finance is well- WA HEAREIG T HAEREK
structured and we have a tradition of operating with excellent i -

standards of corporate governance.



Infrastructure

Bl

Aviation Interests in Cathay Pacific Airways, Hong Kong Dragon
Airlines, air cargo provider HACTL and Air China Cargo Co. Ltd make
Crric Pacific a key participant in the aviation sector.

Civil Infrastructure: Bridges, Tunnels and Roads Owns
franchises to operate all the cross Huangpu River bridges and tunnels
in Shanghai and owns or manages all three Hong Kong harbour

Crossings.

Communications Ciric Telecom 1616 is the leading DD wholesaler
in Asia; CPCNet provides Internet Protocol services for corporate
businesses; Crric Guoan operates cable TV networks in Mainland
China, and c¢T™ is Macau’s communications provider of choice. CITIC
Pacific companies link customers in greater China to the rest of the

world.

Power Cirric Pacific builds, owns and operates power plants in
Mainland China with a current total installed capacity of 2,685MW of
which 1.400mw Ligang Power Plant is the largest. An additional

1.300MW is being planned or is under construction.

M2 FEREHEAEEME - EEME
CEBEER PR B BRREME A
PRZ A W HE 4R - fE 7 R A0 A 22 6 EE R
& o

ERSE:-BR REROKE SHH4
b T AR I R R R I B Y
B LR R SR R E N
B B

ERE PEEMNcI6EENRETM
B LA EEN 5 cPeNet A 2
BT B RRY P ERTEDE
KB4 4 B4 5 R B A
REMEERENSEER - FEHREE
TZAFAAKFEMRMNEF Rt 7%
R R -

BE PTEHREAPEAMERSE  HAIL
mEEMN o BABEREEE2685H
TH > DABEROBREEK  EH®A
EAI40E T - AAMER 1308 T M
AR IE A R B B R R

Marketing and Distribution

Dah Chong Hong and Sims Trading serve the people of Hong Kong
and Mainland China by distributing an array of motor vehicles,
consumer and food commodities, branded food, household and

healthcare products.

Property

Alone or with partners, Citic Pacific develops, manages and owns
properties including Hong Kong’s Citic Tower, Festival Walk,
Discovery Bay, and Shanghai’s Westgate Garden, Crric Square and
Royal Pavilion.
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Other Businesses

Specialty steel, bio-pharmaceutical research and development, CiTIC
Capital Markets Holdings and distance learning are all smaller and

developing businesses of the Crric Pacific Group.
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Chairman’s Letter to Shareholders ETRBRREE

Crric Pacific’s performance in 2002 was more than satisfactory. Profits HERE ZF R AN ERIRF A > wA b

rose 85% to reach HK$3,902 million, and in doing so generated F85% EWH =T IEZ ZHET - M AL
significant cash flow. In light of the good performance, it is proposed to  FIFAFEHHBLEITE o A 8 ERRE
pay shareholders a special dividend of Hk$1.00 per share in addition to ARAEERIRE A BB 0.70 05 - EEE
a final dividend of Hk$0.70. This result has been brought about by our Bk BHIR R EHE#1.000C - AFZ

focusing on traditional businesses, working hard to raise revenue and T AT I A S R T U R R A
finding more efficient ways to do business. B~ B8 IS AR IR I A B A A £E
The aviation business was robust in 2002. Cathay Pacific’s profit B o
increase was five times 2001’s results, and Dragonair posted a 60% Wi — L TR RBIEL o BIZE
gain in profit compared with 2001. Increased demand for both ZE IR R b TR o REEALZE Il A R E
passenger and cargo transportation, combined with new products and —HEIER 00% o 1R E K BET R L
well managed unit costs, confirm Crric Pacific’s belief in the potential of — Ft» i b 7 i (94 t DA B8 67 Bl A 2 1 7%
the airline business in China. f o A G AR TNEESS B 2 SE TR R B R
On 3 March 2003, Crric Pacific signed an agreement with Air China ‘?%E’UJ o
and Beijing Capital Airport Group Corporation to form Air China Cargo TERRZHEZ[ZH PERE RS EE
Co. Ltd in which Crric Pacific has a 25% interest. This joint venture PR i 22 ) B AL ot I 30 4 B ) R T
will handle all of Air China’s existing and future international and i o AR R EE A AR AT o PER
domestic cargo and their related ground service businesses. As China B A B % MR B

has become the world’s manufacturing base and the joint venture has 19 TR v I 1 R i 2 4 [ A8 L A I s e Rl
the largest domestic and international networks of all Chinese airlines, VA 2 BT SR B 2 M T AR« PR B

it will certainly benefit from increasing air cargo volume. B R AR R RS B A P R
As envisaged, our communications businesses have become more R 1B 1A [0 A 22 50 6 AR 7 B A B

significant and now represent 12% of the contribution of all businesses — # A fi 22 &
compared with 10% in 2001. Crric Telecom 1616’ Db wholesale EmE EFTn 7% 4R B EH B B ok
business has grown to become the Asian market leader. It is now W BLO A2 EH i A B RN 12% > =
serving more than 165 telecom carriers in over 80 countries, setting the — FZ—4ERI5 10% o TEEM 1616 CHEL T
foundation for future value added service business. Short Message FUAE 55 B PR = R T RS L T 3y 2 SRS A
Switching is being developed and has shown good future prospects. A R B ER 80 2 B K - Z k16518
cpenet launched its “TrueConnect” VPN to customers in the Greater AT T BRI ARAR - Sy A R (E S
China region, which has proved to be a success. cpcNet’s traditional BEE T LR o R EB TN ETE PR - M RBL T
business has maintained its solid base of corporate customers using its RAFIET R o cponet 15K HHEE I £ % 5 4
connectivity solutions to the Internet. Despite increased competition, ZEHERL N T TrueConnect | BB A
crv’s profits rose due to a larger number of both mobile and Internet T o HARATHY B4 T2 cponet HIRZER
subscribers. Communications businesses have great potential and are FHEAT AMERR R R o TERM AL BT > ]
expected to grow further in the coming years. S TR 477 A 7 B o L S R
s BT o AR A - 5 EERHRERE

T ATRRARARBEE PR



Chairman’s Letter to Shareholders

Our existing power stations continued to operate smoothly
generating a total of 14,046 million kwh, an increase of 23% over
2001. The Ligang power station generated a record 8,505 million kwh
of total electricity reflecting the increased demand for electricity in
Eastern China. Following the completion of the second 200MW unit at
the Hohhot co-generation plant and the first 100Mw unit at Jilin, the
second 100Mw unit in Jilin will be completed in June 2003. Preparation
work for the third phase of Ligang (2 x 600mw) is currently underway.
Approval for construction is expected soon. The first unit is expected to
commence operation in 2006. China’s power industry is now operating
under new, clearer policies, under which we believe there will be many
opportunities for independent power producers such as Ciric Pacific
who provide the excellent management and efficient production
necessary for success.

Contracts for the eivil facilities in Shanghai came under review
pursuant to the State Council directive that all projects with guaranteed
returns had to be renegotiated. Crric Pacific began investing in large
infrastructure projects in Shanghai in early 1990s to assist the City’s, in
particular, Pudong’s economic development. The Shanghai government
has always followed through its contractual commitment to Crric
Pacific. We have had several recent friendly meetings with the relevant
authorities in Shanghai. The final outcome is still awaited.

In Hong Kong, traffic at the Eastern Tunnel was adversely affected
by the opening of the Tseung Kwan O extension to the Mass Transit
Railway. The toll increase at the Western Harbour tunnel in February
2003 is expected to alleviate financial strain.

Our marketing and distribution business performed satisfactorily

in 2002. The total number of vehicles sold in Hong Kong declined 23%.

Although Dah Chong Hong’s market share increased by 4%, total sales
in this market declined 8%. Overall, Dah Chong Hong’s turnover

increased 17%.
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The Mainland China automobile market has grown rapidly in recent
years. Our auto sales in Mainland China in 2002 more than doubled the
level in 2001. In both motor and general trading, Dah Chong Hong will
continue to develop its businesses in Mainland China. and is following a
systematic program of expansion of its sale network, operating facilities
and control systems. Up to now, more than 20 integrated sales, service
and spare parts centres, regional parts distribution and traditional
service centres in 14 cities have been set up.

In Hong Kong, the new vehicle registration tax was raised
significantly in the recent budget, which will have a potentially serious
effect on vehicle sales, in particular, the sales of luxury vehicles. In
addition, the new budget also proposed increases in taxes of other
categories including salaries tax. This, again, will be negative to Dah
Chong Hong’s and Sims Trading’s overall business. Both Dah Chong
Hong and Sims Trading will continue to reduce the cost of delivering
their products, eliminate costs that are not productive today, while
investing money in areas that are relevant to the future.

In late 2002, Crric Pacific’s major shareholder — Crric — signed a
joint venture agreement with Wal-Mart to develop stores in Eastern
China. Dah Chong Hong has already begun working actively to find
ways in which its expertise in sourcing and delivering products can be
of value to Wal-Mart.

On the property front, in January 2002, we purchased Crric Square
and Royal Pavilion, both located in Shanghai. They made a first
contribution to the Group’s profits. The foundation work of Westgate
Garden — a large residential development property in the Huang Pu
district of the city — began in late 2002. We are actively pursuing
opportunities to expand our property business in Mainland China.

In Hong Kong, sales at Discovery Bay’s Siena One were good, and
those at Siena Two are slower. Citic Tower and other investment
properties remain well let, but rentals are soft. The Festival Walk

shopping centre remains very popular and returns are steady.
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Chairman’s Letter to Shareholders

Our Future

In 2003 we expect the economy of Mainland China to continue its
steady growth, and remain highly competitive. This offers bright future
for the Group’s businesses in power generation, communications,
aviation, property and trading, and investments in high tech areas.
Crric Pacific’s deep knowledge of China, the businesses in which we
operate, and the careful way we evaluate opportunities and manage our
finances will continue to guide the company as it moves ahead.

The economic situation in Hong Kong is unclear. The war with Iraq
is looming, causing an increase in the oil price which will adversely
affect our aviation business. The tax increases proposed in the new
Hong Kong budget will potentially lead to a reduction in consumption,
which in turn will affect our marketing and distributing businesses. In
this environment, controlling costs, raising efficiency and creating
synergies among our businesses will remain a preoccupation. With our
team of experienced and committed professionals, our abundant
financial resources and balance sheet strength, the company is ready to
take on new challenges and opportunities when they arise.

Every step of the way all the employees of Crric Pacific, my fellow
directors, bankers and investors have supported this company, and |

send everyone my sincere thanks.

Larry Yung Chi Kin Chairman
Hong Kong, 12 March 2003
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Review of Businesses ¥ mEE

Infrastructure HREx
Aviation fz
Location B Ownership HEFAHE

Cathay Pacific Hong Kong s 25.8%  BIFEfiz
Dragonair Hong Kong s 28.5%  WHEME
HK Air Cargo Terminals Hong Kong i 10%  BiEZ=ERS
Air China Cargo Company Beijing 473 25%  HBIREREE
in uk$ million 2002 2001 LIB W BT

In 2002 both Cathay Pacific and Dragonair enjoyed improved BUAR A ZE St BEA 22 — 2 AR SRR -

operating performance.

Cathay Pacific EfmZ
Profit/(Loss) Attributable to Shareholders BRREERT, (FE)
HKS million J¥EE T

1998w (556)

1999 P 2,180

2000 e 5,005
2001 — 57

2002 e 3,983

Revenue Passengers Carried BEAR

in million LI F 7t
1998 e 0.3
1999 10
2000 O i el
2001 S e

2002 I 123



Review of Businesses

Cathay Pacific (www.cathaypacific.com) is an international
passenger and freight carrier based in Hong Kong, serving 82
destinations around the world. Ciric Pacific is the second largest
shareholder and, through participation on the board and on the
executive committee, is actively involved in its management.

Revenue for 2002 grew 9% compared with 2001 reaching HKS33

billion. Profits increased five times to HKS3,983 million. 12.3 million

revenue passengers were carried, an increase of 9.3% and the passenger

load factor increased by 6.5 points. However, yields fell marginally by
0.7%. Cargo tonnage carried increased 21% to 851,439 tonnes. Cargo
vields fell 2.7%. Cathay Pacific’s positive profit growth in a difficult
economic environment was due to both a timely response to market
deterioration in 2001 by grounding planes and suspending unprofitable
routes, and promptly bringing back unused capacity and resuming
operations on the temporarily suspended routes in 2002, when market
condition improved. Cathay Pacific is often voted one of the best

airlines in the world.

Dragonair
Profit Attributable to Shareholders
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1998 334
1999 340
2000
2001 339
2002
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Dragonair (www.dragonair.com) operates passenger and cargo
flights to 28 destinations in Asia of which 18 are to Mainland Chinese
cities. It also operates freighter services to Shanghai. Xiamen. Taipei,
Europe via the Middle East, and Osaka. Driven by improved demand
for air travel in particular on its mainland routes, and new route such as
Taipei, revenue passengers carried increased 19.2% to 3.4 million.
Cargo operations experienced a more substantial increase of 60% to a
total tonnage uplifted of 193,465 tonnes. Net revenue was HK$5,979
million, a 21% increase from 2001. Profit increased 60% to HK$541
million. An increasing number of passengers originated from the
Mainland of China (“Prc”) and the pre sales area recorded an 18%
growth over the 2001 level.

HACTL (www.hactl.com) operates the largest air cargo terminal in the
world and 2002 was a record year. Backed by strong export demand in
particular from the v.s. and Europe, and import growth from the
Mainland of China, total tonnage handled reached a record of 1.9
million tonnes, a 20% increase over 2001, breaking the previous record
high of 1.75 million set in 2000. HACTL currently has an annual
handling capacity of about 3 million tonnes of cargo. It is in the process
of upgrading the facilities and process systems to eventually enable the
terminal to handle over 3.5 million tonnes of cargo each year.

Air China Cargo Company, a joint venture in which Ciric Pacific
has a 25% interest, was formed on 3 March 2003 between Ciric Pacific,
Air China and Beijing Capital Airport Group Corporation will handle
all of Air China’s international and domestic cargo and related ground

service businesses.
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Review of Businesses

K5 I

Civil Infrastructure HRER
Location B Ownership HEAHE

Yang Pu bridge Shanghai Lifg 45% Bk
Nan Pu bridge Shanghai i 45% MR
Xu Pu bridge Shanghai i 45%  ERIHRHE
Da Pu Lu tunnel Shanghai Lifg 45%  1THBkbEE
Yanan East Road tunnel Shanghai Lifg 50%  IEEREEEEE
Hu Jia toll road Shanghai Lifg 45%  BEEEAH
Western Harbour Crossing Hong Kong RS 35%  PhlEiEREE
Eastern Harbour Crossing Hong Kong ik SRR 1 I B

Road 70.8% N

Rail 50% Bk
Five waste treatment facilities Hong Kong RS 20%-50%  IfEESIREHE
in 1IK$ million 2002 2001 VUit B e B

Crric Pacific invested in all the eross Huangpu bridges and tunnels

and Hu Jia toll road in Shanghai in the early 1990s. Since then they

have provided reliable profits and cash flows. In May 2000, the
Shanghai Municipal Government removed tolls on these facilities to
stimulate the development of Pudong, and substituted an alternative
cash flow to honour its commitment to Ciric Pacific. In September
2002, the State Council issued a directive stating that all guaranteed
return projects had to be re-negotiated. Crric: Pacific is currently in
negotiation with the relevant authorities to resolve the issue

satisfactorily and in accordance with the new regulation.

Tunnels in Hong Kong Fi#fkEiE
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In Hong Kong, Ciric Pacific has a 35% interest in a 30-year
franchise that operates the Western Harbour Crossing (“wHc”)
(www.westernharbourtunnel.com), a key section of the Route 3
highway which links Hong Kong Island, Mainland China and Chek Lap
Kok Airport. Daily average traffic remains at its 2001 level at about
40,000 vehicles. This level is well below the designed capacity of
180,000 vehicles per day due to much delayed improved access roads
and the unexpectedly low toll charged by the Government-owned Cross
Harbour Tunnel. Starting in February 2003, a toll increase was
implemented.

Ciric Pacific is a controlling shareholder in the Eastern Harbour
Crossing (Road) (www.easternharbourtunnel.com.hk) where average
daily traffic experienced a slight decrease to 73,396 compared to 2001
primarily due to the opening of the MTRC’s Tseung Kwan O railway line.
Crmic Pacific also owns 50% of the Eastern rail tunnel used by the Mass
Transit Railway.

In August 2002, Hong Kong Tunnels and Highways
Management Co Ltd.. in which Crric Pacific holds a 35% interest,
began a renewed contract to manage the operation of the Cross
Harbour Tunnel for 2 years.

Crric Pacific has interests in five waste treatment facilities in
Hong Kong, including a chemical waste treatment plant and two refuse
transfer stations, with a total of 4,000 tonnes of daily waste processing
capacity. There is also a landfill site with a 43 million cubic metre
capacity and an airport waste collection facility. For the year 2002,
total waste processed was 4.97 million tonnes, an increase of 48% over
2001. Profits from these businesses totalled Hk$49 million, up 11%
compared with 2001.
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Review of Businesses

Power

% / 36MW

in 1IK$ million 2002 2001

ES a0y

Operational W E&&

Under Construction @ EERF
CITIC Pacific Ownership % HiEREER

Capacity MW B &

LU N E #ocR A

Crric Pacific has an experienced power team who identifies new
investment opportunities, supervises the construction of power stations,
and actively manages the operating plants.

For the year ended 31 December 2002, total electricity generated
reached 14,046 million kwh, an increase of 23% from the same period
in 2001, primarily due to increased demand for electricity and the

operation of newly completed units. Profits for the sector, however,
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decreased somewhat due to increased pre-operating expenses in newly
commissioned plants and lower dividend declared by operating
companies in order to reserve funds for future expansion. Other factors
affecting profits include higher proportion of unplanned electricity
generated which was sold in the market at competitive rates, higher
coal cost and lower tariffs.

The Ligang coal-fired power station, with a total installed
capacity of 1,400Mw, remains one of the most efficient power plants in
China. It generated 8,505 million kwh of electricity in 2002, an
increase of 20% over 2001 — 60% of the total generated by all Crric
Pacific owned power plants — due to increased demand for electricity
particularly in the southern part of Jiangsu province. The third phase of
Ligang is currently being planned which would add another 1,200mw of
generating capacity and construction is expected to commence in 2003.

The Zhengzhou co-generation power station, with installed
capacity of 600mw, generated 3,085 million kwh of electricity in
2002, a level similar to 2001. Heat generated decreased 3.7% to
5.38 million ¢J.

Kaifeng power station, with an installed capacity of 125mw,
generated 679 million kwh of electricity in 2002, an increase of 6%
compared to 2001.

Weihai co-generation power plant generated 85 million kwh of
electricity and 2.38 million ¢ of heat in 2002, an increase of 12% and
7% respectively.

Shouguang co-generation power plant generated 200 million
kwh of electricity and 1,175,100 tonnes of high temperature/pressure
steam in 2002, an increase of 8% and 14% respectively.

The Hohhot co-generation power plant’s second 200Mw unit
began operation in August 2002. For the entire year, the two units
generated a total of 1,492 million kwh of electricity. The power plant
has completed its trial run and is now operating commercially.

Jilin co-generation power station has total designed capacity of
200mw. The first 100MW unit was completed and became operational at
the end of December, 2002. The second 100MW unit is expected to
begin operation in June 2003.

Crric Pacific views the power generation business as an important
area for expansion based on our expertise, knowledge of the industry
and years of practical experience. Following the power industry reform
in China, the market will become more open, efficient and transparent.
Crric Pacific believes that this will also present many attractive

opportunities for efficient power operators such as Crric Pacific.
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Communications
Location B
Crmic Telecom 1616 Hong Kong EiE
CPCNet Hong Kong i
Crric Guoan Beijing 9
™ (Macau Telecom) Macau L di|
in 1IK$ million 2002 2001

K5 I

-1-¢
Ownership HEAHE
100%  #EEM 1616
100%  cpeNet
50%  HEE%
20% o (EMER)
LU W E #ocR A

Crric Telecom 1616 (“16167) (www.citic1616.com) is a leader in
Asia’s Db wholesale market. It is now serving more than 165
international telecom and mobile carriers in over 80 countries.

16106’ success lies in its ability to offer competitive rates, a
comprehensive range of services and products and most important of
all, its excellent customer service. Management, together with a team of
engineers, technicians and marketing professionals are dedicated to
providing the best customer service — problems are identified and solved
in the shortest time possible, software is developed and tailored to
customer needs. Internally, 1616 utilizes information technology and
intelligent network management to enhance its work efficiency,
optimise its network utilization and control operational costs.

1616 is diversifying into other products to complement its core
business of Ibb wholesaling enabling the company to provide a “one-
stop-shop” to its partners and customers. 1616’ “Universal Mobile
Operator Exchange Platform” — enabling roaming and short message
exchange for mobile operators worldwide — was launched in June 2002.
In October, China Mobile selected Crric Telecom 1616 as its
international Short Message Service gateway. Other services such as
Outsourcing, Calling Card wholesaling and International Private
Leased Circuit reselling not only strengthen 1616’s business model but
also provide additional cash flow.
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cpeNet Hong Kong (www.cpenet-hk.com) provides Internet
services to corporate customers in Hong Kong and the Greater China
area. Through partnerships and franchises, it also bridges its customers
between China and the rest of the world.

cpeNet offers its solid base of over 4,000 corporate customers services
ranging from connectivity solutions to the Internet, managed and
dedicated server hosting, security services such as Intrusion Detection
Services and Virtual Private Networking Solutions.

In March of 2002, creNet launched “TrueConnect”, a value-added
Virtual Private Network service, to serve the ever growing
communications needs of business customers in Greater China. cpcNet’s
unique experience, expertise and success in building high quality
connections are making the crcNet name and presence felt in the
market. Currently cpeNet’s coverage includes Hong Kong, Beijing,
Shanghai, Guangzhou, Shenzhen, Dongguan, Dalian, Fuzhou, Wuhan,
Xian, Suzhou, Zhongshan, most cities in Taiwan, and more are being
planned for 2003. Customers that subscribed for the service include
companies in Hong Kong, Taiwan, vsa and other countries.

Crric Guoan’s primary business is its 62% interest in Crric Guoan
Information Industry Co., Ltd. (“Guoan Information™), a Shenzhen
Stock Exchange listed company. Guoan Information operates cable
television networks in 18 cities and provinces in China serving
approximately 5 million subscribers. In addition to its ATV networks,
Guoan Information has interests in system integration, software
development, hotel management and construction. Crric Guoan also
owns the Citic Building in Beijing.

20% owned by Crric Pacific since 1991, Companhia de
Telecomunicacoes de Macau (“crv”) (www.ctm.net) is the provider
of choice of fixed line, mobile telephone and Internet access services to
the people of Macau saR.

Despite increased competition, ¢t™’s profits for 2002 rose 12% to
HKS381 million. Its mobile customer base registered an increase of 23%
reaching 211,300 users. Internet subscribers rose 25% to 47,000.
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Marketing and Distribution

K5 I

HERSHR

Location W& Ownership HEAHE
Dah Chong Hong Hong Kong i 100% KELT
Sims Trading Hong Kong il 100% HE
in 1IK$ million 2002 2001 LUt B e B

Dah Chong Hong (www.dch.com.hk) is a major distributor of motor
vehicles and consumer and food commodity products with substantial
operations in Hong Kong and Mainland China, and businesses in
Japan, Singapore and Canada.

pcH Motor: In Hong Kong, bcH Motor distributes a broad range of
passenger and commercial vehicles including Acura, Audi, Bentley, par,
Honda, Isuzu, MaN; Nissan, up Nissan Diesel. and Volkswagen. Despite
the contracting motor market and the sluggish economic condition of
Hong Kong, bcr was able to improve its market share to 27% in 2002,
making it one of the largest distributors of motor vehicles in the
territory. However, total vehicles sold dropped 8% to over 9,000 for
2002. Sales of its Isuzu trucks and bus chassis continue to rank number
one in all major market segments, while the sales of its MAN trucks
maintained its leadership position in the European import market for
the second year in a row. Over the years, bcit has successfully expanded
its motor business from after-sales service to distribution, wholesale,

retail, leasing and fleet management.
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Dah Chong Hong in China KETT
RE S E

hanghai 3§
Ningbo ¥

Motor Group M SE£E
Trading Group T EZ&H
Regions Covered by the Trading Group % EZ£BEBEZNHE

Hong Kong &i#

L

DCH’s expansion in Mainland China is progressing well. Total sales of KB ATAE $h J8 o K B i 355 7 O e
motor vehicles exceeded 10,000 units in 2002, more than double the Uf o ZRETAEREATHIE PRI Y
number in 2001. This compares with a 37% increase in China’s overall — REXFERE A SHB10,0000 > HE L

automobile market over 2001. Working closely with local associates, R R T A R AR 3T % B R
pci’s distribution and service networks have grown in the past year to RAyE o @B A R EWE - KRBT
cover 14 cities with over 20 integrated sales, service and spare parts NI R AE T B 9 20 B B RO AR FLR

centres, regional parts distribution and traditional service centres. DCH 202 1 5 B I M s A8 B 2+ O ikl
currently has distributorships and dealerships of both imported brands — #EA 8% - SHEMB LZHF TR — 51

such as Bentley, oM, Honda, Nissan, Renault, Volkswagen and Isuzu, BEE b1 ZE AR 8 D R B IR
and locally made vehicles such as Guangzhou Honda, Hainan Mazda, HHEG O o KRBT HAITE T B A 2 (i
Qingling and Honggi. A RELER 2y S AACPRRE > ELARER A A

B~ HE - faf > BERE T8N
PLRCBOMACH ~ i i 6 02 - 80 R ALE S AC
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Mainland China’s rapid economic development, rising standard of
living and its accession to W0 present both opportunities and
challenges to its motor market. pcH is following its plan to
systematically develop this market, which it believes will become its
main profit contributor in the coming years. Motor business as a whole
made a contribution of HK$200 million, compared with 1HK$171 million
in 2001.

pcn Marketing and Distribution: pcr'’s distribution of consumer
and food commodity products includes provisions, rice and cereal,
edible oils. Chinese foodstuffs and meat, cosmetics, building materials,
and home electric appliances. It made a contribution to earnings of
1KS44 million compared with a loss of HKS56 million in 2001. pch
sources products globally to supply food to retailers, wholesalers and
the catering industry in Hong Kong and Mainland China through
efficient logistics support. Despite the continued weak economy in Hong
Kong. pcii was able to sustain its sales and at the same time expand its
market share by providing the right product mix and introducing new
product lines. Profit margins also improved through efficiency
enhancement and cost reduction. In China. bcit is concentrating its
effort on growing the distribution business, which has proven to be
successful and brought significant improvement to the bottom line in
2002. pc opened a new regional headquarter in Jiangmen to cover the
Pearl River Delta area in August. Together with the existing Shanghai
headquarters and the nine strategically located branches, representative
and liaison offices across China, they form the backbone of an efficient
and effective distribution and logistics services for both local and
overseas suppliers.

Sims Trading (www.simshk.com) specialises in the distribution of
branded food, household and healthcare products in Hong Kong,
Macau, and Mainland China. The Company’s consumer product brands
include Pocari Sweat, Ovaltine, Barilla, Pauls, Heinz and Almond Roca
for the Hong Kong Market, and Ferrero, Martell, Campbell’s, Pauls and
Ovaltine for the China market. Sims is also a major distributor of
pharmaceuticals and medical equipment to hospitals, clinics and drug
stores including products from Bayer, Bristol-Myers Squibb, Baxter,
Alcon, Reckitt Benckiser, cE Medical Systems, and Kimberly Clark.
Sims is extensively involved in providing third party logistics to major

companies such as Heineken, Gillette, Pizza Hut and Unza Cathay.
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Property

Properties in Hong Kong

Investment Properties
Crric Tower

Festival Walk

pcH Commercial Centre
Wyler Centre

Broadway Centre

Yee Lim Industrial Centre
Others

Development Property
Discovery Bay, Yi Pak

Properties in Shanghai
Investment Properties
Crric Square

Royal Pavilion

Development Property
Westgate Garden

in uKS million

TBipe

Office

Retail/Office

Office

Industrial

Godown & Ancillary office
Cold storage & Godown

Various

Residential township

Retail/Office

Service Apartments

Residential

2002

B

T

T/ T
e

T%

B B 7
REERLER
Gl

fFE &

TE/ R
Mg XA

2001

T

Approximate ciA

Ownership

HEHHE

40%

50%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

50%

80%

100%

100%

LUt b 1 Rt

(000 sq.ft.)
WA B
(FFHR)

562
1,200
389
393
343
320
541

2,300

1,137

374

3,000

HlWE

HEY*

PR KE
X4k
KEFTHFEFD
fieffiO
L
WHTHEHD
Hity

HEAH
W > —h

Lk
H’EY =
PREREES
EIAH

HREHH
EP L

Crric Pacific’s major property investments are located in Hong Kong

and Shanghai consisting of large-scale residential and commercial

projects. The Company has an experienced property team involved in

every aspect of a project, from identifying investment opportunities and

building the property to managing it on a day-to-day basis.
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In Hong Kong, Discovery Bay project, 50% owned by Ciric
Pacific, is a large residential development jointly developed with HKr
International Ltd. The current Yi Pak Bay development at Discovery
Bay is located in the northern part of Lantau Island in Hong Kong, with
a total gross floor area of approximately 2.3 million sq. ft., of which
about 0.54 million sq. ft. has been sold. Upon completion, this
residential development will comprise of a central park, a resort hotel
and a shopping mall. Siena One (Phase 11), with a gross floor area of
0.34 million sq. ft., is 98% sold. Siena Two (Phase 12), with a gross
floor area of 0.64 million sq. ft. is over 30% sold. Foundation work for
Phase 13, which has a gross floor area of 0.57 million sq. ft.,
commenced in July 2002 and is proceeding on schedule. This phase is
expected to be ready for pre-sales in 2004. The Disney Theme Park is
being built near Discovery Bay, and its future potential will be further
enhanced.

Crric Pacific also has a land bank of over one million sq. ft. of gross
floor area in Hong Kong, which could be re-developed when market
conditions are appropriate.

On the investment property front:

Crric Tower, 40% owned by Ciric Pacific, is our headquarters and a
landmark on the Hong Kong waterfront comprising of 562,000 sq. ft.
of offices, retail shops and restaurants, and a footbridge linking it to the
Admiralty MTR station. The building is currently 97% occupied.

Festival Walk. a 1.2 million sq. ft. of shopping and office complex,
is 50% owned by Ciric Pacific. Jointly developed with Swire Group., it is
located at the intersection of the Kowloon Canton Railway and Mass
Transit Railway Station in Kowloon Tong. Since its completion in 1998,
Festival Walk has become one of the most successful shopping centres
in Hong Kong. The demand for space has been very good with current

occupancy rate of 98%.
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In 2001, Crric Pacific purchased a 734,783 sq. ft. site in Shanghai —
Westgate Garden — for residential and commercial development. It is
located in the Huangpu District, adjacent to Xizang Nanlu and Jianguo
Donglu, and within walking distance from a future subway station.
With a gross floor area of approximately 3.0 million sq. ft, this
development, once completed, will comprise residential towers, a multi-
storey commercial complex, retail shops and carparks. The project will
be developed in phases over the next four to five years. The foundation
work for the first phase began in December.

In Shanghai, Crric Square, 80% owned by Crric Pacific, is a Grade
A office tower in Nanjing Xi Lu, with current occupancy of 98%. Royal
Pavilion, a luxury service apartment building, is 100% owned by Ciric

Pacific with an occupancy rate of 89%.

Other Businesses

2002 2001

in uk$ million

PR RE R ZFE A gREAT34,783
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Industrial Manufacturing
Crric Pacific has a 55% interest in facilities in Jiangyin, manufacturing
special steel products using an imported high quality special steel
production line. These facilities are now one of China’s main producers
of special steels such as bearing steel. gear steel and cold-forging steel.
For the year 2002, total production reached 1.4 million tones, a 16%
increase from 2001. Profits for the same period increased 29% from
2001.

Wuxi Huada Motors Company produces low noise, low vibration
and high torque electrical motors for the domestic and European

markets. For the year 2002, production was 1.5 million Kw, an increase

of 21% over 2001.
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Citic Capital Markets
50% owned by Ciric Pacific, Crric Capital Markets Holdings Ltd.
(“cemH™) (www.citiccapital.com) was formed in May 2002 with the
vision of creating a leading China focused investment bank with
comprehensive service capabilities, embracing three core businesses
including asset management, investment banking and brokerage, many
of which have been serving the Hong Kong capital market for over a
decade as part of Crric Ka Wah Bank.

comH officially began operation in its current form in September
2002. Since then it has formed a solid and experienced management
team, recruited quality staff, established solid relationships with Crric
Beijing and Crric International Financial Holdings Ltd., the company’s
other two shareholders, to better utilize resources and create synergies.
It has already made a positive contribution to Ciric Pacific’s profits.
Going forward, Crric Capital Markets will continue to leverage on its
knowledge and experience of China and Hong Kong capital markets to

provide high quality service to its customers.

Developing Businesses

In January 2002, Crric Pacific formed a joint venture with Lansheng
Guojian Corporation in Shanghai to develop a bio-pharmaceutical
business in Mainland China. The Jv is focusing on conducting research
and development in biotechnology pharmacy. Applications for clinical
trials of two drugs have been submitted to the State Drug
Administration.

In 2001, Ciric Pacific formed a joint venture with Fudan
University to develop distance learning in Mainland China. The v
engages in e-learning, distance education and executive training
businesses by leveraging off the academic resources of Fudan

University.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Of the Consolidated Financial Results for 2002

Introduction

Crmic Pacific’s 2002 Annual Report includes a report by the Directors to
shareholders, the financial accounts and other information required by
accounting standards, legislation, and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
This Management’s Discussion and Analysis is designed to assist the
reader in understanding the statutory information by discussing the
contribution of each business segment, and the financial position of the
company as a whole.

Pages 68 to 75 of the Annual Report contains the Consolidated
Profit and Loss Account, Balance Sheet, Cash Flow Statement and
Statement of Changes in Equity. Following these financial statements,
on pages 76 to 136 are Notes that further explain the figures presented
in the statements.

On page 137 Crric Pacific’s auditor — PricewaterhouseCoopers —
make a report to the shareholders of their opinion of the financial

statement.

Basis of Accounting

Ciric Pacific prepares its financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounts standards published by the Hong Kong
Society of Accountants. Hong Kong accounting standards broadly
follow International Accounting Standards. In preparing its 2002
financial statements, the Group adopted new or revised ssaps,
particularly ssap No. 34 “Employee Benefits” and ssap No. 11 “Foreign
Currency Translation” which became effective for the current
accounting year. Their adoption has no significant impact on the
Group’s financial statements except that the adoption of ssap No. 34 by
Crmic Pacific’s associated company, Cathay Pacific Airways Limited, has
reduced Crric Pacific’s attributable opening retained earnings by

11K$148 million.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis EH I i X 3B

Profit Attributable to Shareholders BREERT

kS million ¥ EH#TC
1998 —— 2,028
1999 . 2,135
2000 e 3,201
2001 s 2110

2002 I 3,902

The net profit attributable to shareholders for 2002 was HK$3,902 CRT AR R BEAL A E = U
million, an increase of 85% compared with 11k$2,110 million achieved ~— H#7T » BoFZ—F2EH -+ —H— T8
in 2001. All business segments contributed to this increase, except TN 85% o BREETE NAERERMEAL - 4 B
power generation and civil infrastructure. U B P RAR R -
Business Segments E 4300
The financial statements contain business segment information for IR R B B (WRE2) ~ BlAvAR
turnover (Note 2), pre-tax profit from consolidated activities (Note 3), EBWA (HEE3) - B A w (Kﬁ‘}_‘l I8 €
for associated companies (Note 4), fixed assets (Note 12) and assets and & (MFE12) REEBAM (24 5%
liabilities (Note 24). B AR o

The following chart shows , for each major business segments, the T B B 4 5 2 AR A% Ui 1 AR
after tax contribution it made to corporate level net interest expense not 5 i K B8 5l FEH5 TR 4 SRS S H R4
charged to individual businesses, overhead expenses and the TR B S T RS A EL ) o AR R BT 2

amortization of goodwill. Historical performance can be seen on the 10 B4 30 HHT# +4E4LE
years statistics on page 30.

Contribution BRI

1K million 2002 2001 pwEHT
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The main reasons for the different contribution in each segment in

2002 compared that for 2001 are:

Communications increased 88% due to a greater contribution from
Crmic Telecom 1616, Crric Guoan, cpcNet and ¢TM.

Power Generation decreased by 13% mainly due to pre-operating
expenses in newly commissioned plants and a lower dividend
declared by operating companies in order to reserve funds for
future expansion.

Civil Infrastructure decreased by 10% due to the disposal of the
Chongqing Chang Jiang LiT Bridge in December 2001, improved
results at the Western Harbour Tunnel but reduced profits at the
Eastern Harbour Tunnel.

Aviation increased almost 3 times mainly due to profit growth of 5
times at Cathay Pacific and a 60% increase in the profit from
Dragonair. Both airlines increased passenger and cargo volumes.
HACTL's results increased 56% with a record cargo volume.
Property sales at both Siena One and Siena Two at Discovery Bay
and The Victoria Tower in Kowloon contributed 1k$272 million
compared with HKS37 million from property sales in 2001.
Property leasing profit of HK$653 million increased 10% as a result
of the Shanghai properties newly acquired in January 2002 offset
by a slight reduction in Hong Kong rental income.

Marketing & Distribution: The motor group contributed HKS200
million (+17%) due to an outstanding performance in the sale of
cars and trucks in both Hong Kong and the Mainland China and
strong earnings from the diversified motor services operations.
General trading businesses grow 12% in real terms to HK$37
million (HKS75 million was written off in 2001 for catering and
agricultural businesses in Mainland China).

Industrial Manufacturing profit increased 33% due to a 25%

increase in the sales of steel and increased operation efficiency.

T 229 AR TR O SR i MR
TERTENTEER R

& BB R RE8% - a5 E
1616 * FEBEZ ~ cronet R EHZ B
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PR TR ER T FE13% » At
BT TR 2 TR AT S - AR
) E R A PRSI R IR B 4 ARk
BE -
FERERR M S U A EDRK TR 10% - S HTiR
CERET A MEERRIIAFIER
A o 17T 7Y oA R R 1 S8 Tl > 1
R S A 1 i )RR BT %
f 2 R A TR 345 > T B B R
22 MRS 5 Ak JUs HE A 22 Y36 RIS 1=
60% o M ZE AR 2 fE B L EERE
PR o A2 B UL SRRl B B
§>&mﬂﬁ§5mw
H B S A W e — B — B L RE
521! é%%ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁw*%ﬁ$:
AHTC > B RTE R A E R
HEH=T-LHET - FBHERARMT
W HEES T FE A JUREAN i
Wi 2 B las > BERE Y 2E A a6 I
RBHAELT=0#0T 0 #R 10% -
B RO BT T o RO U6 R R A
W fEor GERA17%) » EEHREEK
B R R L AT - DL TR
HE AR o —RE S EHEE
WR12% > BN =T ET (R %
— AR A 2 AR R ST H AR
WLTHAET) -
TR ST A N33% > 3 5 i
BN 1T 25% MAEEMREER -
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

The businesses segments within the infrastructure group —
Communications, Power Generation, Civil Infrastructure and Aviation —

contributed approximately 72% compared with 73% in 2001.

2002 2001
HAts
Others
28% it
Others
27%
HA R
Infrastructure

2% 3%

Geographical Distribution
In 2002, the contribution and assets of the Group by the location of the

base of operations were:

CEEEL S A

as at 31 December 2002

Contribution %

IR

Assets at Book Value % [RHA&EMH

Interest Expense

The Group’s total interest expense declined from HK$690 million to
1KS490 million due to a reduction in borrowings from 11K$14.06 billion
to HKS9.3 billion and a reduction in the average cost of borrowings from
6% to 4.6%. Debt net of bank deposit reduced from Hk$10 billion to
1KS6.7 billion and net interest expenses, after deducting interest

income, declined from Hk$504 million to Hk$434 million.

24

HAER

Infrastructure
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Amortization and Revaluation

Accounting standards require two major adjustments that are unrelated
to the cashflow of our business. Goodwill — the amount paid for buying

a business that exceeds the value of its physical and identifiable assets —

must be amortised to the profit and loss account over its useful life not

exceeding 20 years. In 2002, HK$204 million of goodwill was amortised

to the profit and loss account, a HK$18 million increase compared to

2001.

In certain defined circumstances, accounting standards require listed

investments to be revalued to market value at the end of each
accounting period. This revaluation caused Ciric Pacific to record an
unrealised loss of HK$2 million in the year of 2002 compared with an
unrealised loss of HK3166 million in the year of 2001, a change of

11KS164 million between the two years.

Taxation

Taxation increased from Hk$306 million in 2001 to HK$377 million in
2002 mainly due to increase in the share of taxation of the associated
companies, particularly that of Cathay Pacific whose tax rate was

significantly lower in 2002 compared with 2001.

Shareholders’ Returns

Crric Pacific’s primary objective is to increase shareholder value for
which it has used earnings per share as a proxy. The Company expects
its businesses to provide returns on investment over their lives that will

provide shareholders with an adequate return on equity.

Earnings per Share

HkS EHT
1993 1.24
1999 1.29
2000 1.49
2001 0.96
2002

Earnings per share were HK$1.78 for the year 2002, an increase of 85%

compared with HK$0.906 for the year in 2001. The number of shares
outstanding in the two years was substantially the same so all the

increase in earnings per share was attributable to the increase in profit.

1.78
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Shareholders’ Equity

nk$ billion #%44ETT

415 2.5
2001 . 44.0
42.7 2.5
2002 45
Shareholders” equity defined as shareholders” funds, plus HK$2.5 billion

of unimpaired goodwill written off to reserves for accounting purposes,
was 1K$45.2 billion as at 31 December 2002. The movement of the
shareholders” funds during the year is set out in the Consolidated

Statement of Changes in Equity on page 75 of the accounts.

Rt AT

BRRER

Shareholders” Funds

52 mE Unimpaired Goodwill

written off to Reserves

it 4 P AT BB 2 R B

FBESRORE A IR 4B i 7E BRI 7E fob 5
P SUNINHE 3113 e o (XS STa ¥ | e
FoEF AT -HABERNA L+ —E
It o AR B E S BRI ARH HET5H
)55 A G S B 2

Shareholders’ Equity per Share BEEEER
nKk EMT

2001 20.1

2002 20.7

Shareholders” equity per share at 31 December 2002 was HK$20.7 as
compared to HK$20.1 at 31 December 2001 mainly due to increase in
shareholders’ funds by the profit for the year partly offset by the
dividend paid and certain reserve movements set out in Note 21 on

page 100 of the financial statements.

CEREAEF T HE A B2 BRI S
w207 0 M_FE—F+_H=1—H
R 2676 20.1 o0 > F2 BRI Jb A AR A Uik
AFE 1Y R 4 B R R L IR AT AR S S B
BHES 100 BFGE 21 Frikm s Tt
[Ei%:

Dividend per Share BRER
nk$ T
0.20 0.50
1998 I ().7() Interim Dividend F#IiEE
0.20 0.55 2.00
1999 I 2. 75
0.20 0.65 inal Divi AR
9000 085 H inal Dividend RHfE
0.20 0.60
2001 — () ) o R
030 0.70 1.00 B Special Dividend #5IiE
2002 I e 2.00
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An interim 2002 dividend of HK$0.30 per share was paid on

19 September 2002 and it is proposed to pay a final 2002 dividend on
12 May 2003 of HKS0.70 per share and a special dividend of HKS1 per
share on the same day. The regular dividend for 2002 represents 56%
of the 2002 profit and 29% of the regular cashflow received from all

businesses.

Turnover

nk$ billion ¥4 ET

0 5 10 15 20 25
| | | | | |
1998 1 |
1999 | 1
2000 = 1
2001 L 1
2002 L |

The largest component of Turnover are sales of goods and services, but
other items such as sales of assets are included as described in Note 2 of
the financial statements. Only the turnover from businesses included as
Consolidated Activities is reported — they contributed 58% to the net
profit before taxation.

Marketing & Distribution turnover increased 17% in 2002
compared with 2001. Motor trading turnover increased 39% in 2002, a
180% growth in the Mainland China market being offset by a 11%
decline in Hong Kong. Other trading and distribution turnover fell
slightly by 2% in aggregate. Industrial Manufacturing turnover
increased 25% due to larger sales of steel, while communications
turnover increased 55% mainly due to the growth of business of the
Crric Telecom 1616 Group. Other turnover in 2002 included the sale of
the 80% interest in China Express No. 1 Backbone Network at a

consideration of Ik$1.6 billion.
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mm Property %

Industrial Manufacturing & Others

TERGE S

Sales of Businesses H# 35

B B RES T3 A SR R I SRR i
EFEIATE E 08 2 5 O 5 A B R R
B2 o AEEM N EMA BELA B E ¥R
FCE R BB AT 3 F 9 58% o

AT AR E RIS R R
FAERIT% < KHEE SR _FEFNE
SEFLETE39% o HRFETTS BT 180% MR
A B U 1 11 % AR TR o FUAME 5 B 8
8 SR A LT L 2% » TRERENEE
BRI SR S B b TR 0 25% - AR B RS
SR FER P EER 10106 % EH T EH
RMBINS5% o —FF ZAEH H AL £ AT
DLW/ BT AR 8 o B A — R
4t 80% HEZS -

27



Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Capital Expenditure

kS million 2002 2001

R i K 50T

[ £3.F2

W AT

Crric Pacific bought two properties in Shanghai for HK$2.7 billion in
2002. “Others” is mainly a 50% interest in Crric Capital Markets
Holdings Ltd. of nk$510 million. The construction of an additional
steel plant was completed during the year and its cost reflected under
Industrial Manufacturing. The Marketing & Distribution segment
mainly increased investment in operating fixed assets while the 2001
amount included the acquisition of Sims Trading Group. Equipment
was purchased to support the expansion of the telecommunication

business.

28

PIEHRER EFF FEER —EEoE
TR ARIEYE - [ b ] ERBPEEARTS
PERAT RN TR 50 % HE 486 W F0E — T 89
SRR TR O RAE LS BT AR
WerE TSESUETHE T - 895 KA B2 S
ERBMMBEREER EEE - W _FE—
I FEA AR NOR R B B 0 R o ST
BB B AL SRR R -



Group Liquidity and Capital Resources

General Policies

Crtic Pacific aims to finance its businesses with liabilities
appropriate to their cash flows, employing limited or non-recourse
project finance when it is available. The financing and cash
management activities of the Group are centralized to enhance the
utilization of Group financial resources and risk management.

Crric Pacific diversifies its funding sources through utilization of
both the banking and capital markets. The Company maintains
borrowing relationships with major financial institutions based all over
the world and its bonds are widely held by investors in Asia, Europe
and North America.

Crric Pacific minimizes its currency risks by endeavoring to finance
non Hong Kong dollar assets in the same currency as the asset or cash
flow from it, either by borrowing or using foreign exchange contracts.
For instance, the vs$ cash flow arising from many infrastructure
projects in Mainland China are matched against us$ debt. Achieving the
policy objective is not always possible due to limitation in financial
markets, particularly on investment into the Mainland, so the continued
development in rRvB debt, equity and foreign exchange markets is very
important to Crric Pacific as the focus of businesses is increasingly
towards Mainland China where the businesses will generate rvB cash
flow.

The Company only uses derivative transactions for hedging
purposes, and speculative activities are strictly prohibited.
Counterparties” credit risk are carefully reviewed and, in general, the
Company only deals with financial institutions whose credit rating is

single A or better.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Cash Flow from Operations

Since, by design, most of the Group’s debt is raised by the holding
company, the amount of cash flow from each business to the Company
is an important measure as to the Company’s ability to serve its debts.
In the year of 2002, cash contributions to the Company from all
businesses in the Group was approximately HK$5.4 billion of which the
infrastructure businesses contributed approximately Hk$3.2 billion; the
property contributed approximately Hk$1.8 billion and the Marketing
& Distribution contributed approximately HKS330 million.

In addition, Hk$2.3 billion was received from the sale of China
Express No. 1 Backbone Network and Chongqing Chang Jiang LT

Bridge. Cash received from selling marketable securities contributed

over HK$2.3 billion for the year.

Cash Flow from Operations
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Cash Flow per Share
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Group Debt and Liquidity

In 2002, Crric Pacific raised HKS2.5 billion through a 5.5/7 year
syndicated loan facility to extend the Company’s debt maturity profile,
reduce the annual refinancing risk and lower the overall cost of funds.
In addition, HKS2 billion of bilateral facilities were established or
renewed, generally at a lower cost than before.

As of 31 December 2002, the Group’s total outstanding debt was
11K$9.3 billion (31 December 2001: 11K814.6 billion), cash and deposit
with banks were HK$2.5 billion giving a net debt of HK$6.7 billion
compared to HK$10 billion at 31 December 2001. Leverage, measured
by the net debt to total capital was 13% (31 December 2001: 19%).

Total Debt

nk$ billion #HE4AE T

0 b) 10 15 20
| | | | |
1998 I
1999 I
2000 I —
2001 E—
2002 I

Total debt decreased due to the repayment of bank borrowings. The
debt balance as at 31 December 2002 that will be mature in 2 years’
time amounted to 24% of the total debt and at that date the Group had
deposit with banks of HKS 2.5 billion which exceeded the loans due for
repayment in 2003.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

The Group policy is to maintain a high degree of financial
transparency and control. Save for regulatory constraints (for rvB
borrowings in the mainland for example) and operational
considerations, all the borrowings are centralized at the Company level
which then provides funds to businesses. As of 31 December 2002, the

Company’s borrowing structure and outstanding debt maturity was:

Rt AT

72 [ Y R SR  ER  E  BS A
T ekt 2 AT B o RS2 AR BIBR A (LATE
KEBEsErr AR E S E) RN EESE
b TR AR T - SRR TH
EHRMES - HEFFFF A=+
H o AN 2 EEEE5H R R T

Maturity of Outstanding Debt kERRARZIBER

i

KL Gt

2008 and
in ik$ million 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 Beyond Total LI SR
Parent Company 0 1350 100 2,796 0 3510 7,756 (NG
Subsidiaries 530 357 570 27 27 0 1,51 Wi o /A
Total Outstanding Debt 530 1,707 670  2.823 27 3,510 9,267 KMEEAEARE
Percentage 6% 18% 7% 31% 0% 38%  100% H %

(1) Including a vs$450 million global bond which was issued by a wholly owned special

purposes vehicle.

(1) PR R 57 2 2 B 2 s
A T H T2 BHRAS -

Source of Debt Financing MERE
Vi EN T A%
HKS million Percentage
Bank Loans 4,977 54%  #UTER
Bonds 3,510 38% fEH
Private Placement 780 8% R AEE
9,267 100%

As of 31 December 2002, the Group’s undrawn available facilities
totalled Hk$10.3 billion of which approximately HKS7.5 billion were
committed long term loans, HK$1.8 billion money market lines and the
balance trade facilities. These available facilities, combined with cash
and deposit on hand and the Group’s strong recurrent cash flow
generated from operations, provide ample financial resources and

flexibility to the Group to implement its business plans.
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Employment of Derivative Products

In the normal course of its business, Crric Pacific employs a
combination of financial instruments, including derivative products, to
manage its exposure to fluctuations in interest and currency rates.

The Company uses interest rate swaps, forward rate agreements and
interest rate option contracts to hedge exposures or to modify the
interest rate characteristics of its borrowings. Crric Pacific enters into
cross currency swap contracts to change the denomination of its
borrowings as part of its management to limit foreign currency
exposures. Foreign exchange forward/option contracts are also used to
hedge foreign currency exposure. These derivative contracts are linked
to specific assets or liabilities.

As of 31 December 2002, the Company had interest rate swap
agreements outstanding with a notional amount of approximately HK$2
billion. Under these agreements, Crric: Pacific is to exchange either fixed
or floating rate interest with its counterparties, without the exchange of
the underlying notional amounts. Other financial products such as
forward rate agreement are employed when deemed appropriate to
stabilize the overall cost of borrowings over time.

As at 31 December 2002, approximately 56% of the Group’s total
borrowings after swaps bore interest at floating rates and the remaining
44% were at fixed rates. The average all-in cost of debt including
hedging costs in 2002 was 4.6% compared with 6% a year before.

The denomination of the Group’s borrowings and deposits with

banks at 31 December 2002 were:

in vk$ million

Denomination
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Financial Guarantees and Pledged Assets

The aggregate outstanding amount of guarantees issued by Ciric Pacific
which were not included in consolidated borrowings was approximately
HK$1.9 billion as of 31 December 2002. These are principally, a several
guarantee to support Ciric Pacific’s share of Jilin Power Station’s
banking facilities and a several guarantee to an associated company.,
Treasure Trove Limited, for a HK$2,400 million syndicated loan facility
to finance the Crric Tower of which Crric Pacific’s share is 62%.

The Group has not provided any other guarantees for associated
companies’ borrowing facilities or obligations. Festival Walk and
Discovery Bay are financed by their shareholders and do not have
external borrowings; other associated companies and co-operative joint
ventures such as Cathay Pacific, Dragonair, Western Harbour tunnel
and power stations raise debt to finance their operational activities
without recourse to their shareholders.

As at 31 December 2002, assets of Hk$287 million were pledged to
secure banking facilities utilized by subsidiaries — mainly related to Dah

Chong Hong’s overseas trading business.
Leverage

uk$ billion W E T
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Net debt divided by total capital was 13% at 31 December 2002
compared with 19% at the end of 2001. It has declined continuously
since 1997,
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Interest Cover

ukS billion # 415 T
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EBITDA divided by interest expense for the year ended 31 December
2002 was 11.7 compared to 5.7 in 2001, due to the increase in profit
and a decrease in total interest expense from HK$690 million in 2001 to
HK$490 million in 2002.

Credit Ratings

The Company has been assigned investment grade long term credit
rating of Baa3 and BBB- by Moody’s Investor Service and Standard &
Poor’s respectively. The credit outlook for both ratings are stable,
reflecting Citic Pacific’s strong financial profile including low leverage,

diversified business and strong cash flow.

Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report contains certain forward-looking statements with
respect to the financial condition, results of operations and business of
the Group. These forward-looking statements represent the Company’s
expectations or beliefs concerning future events and involve known and
unknown risks and uncertainty that could cause actual results,
performance or events to differ materially from those expressed or

implied in such statements.

Forward-looking statements involve inherent risks and uncertainties.

Readers should be cautioned that a number of factors could cause
actual results to differ, in some instances materially, from those

anticipated or implied in any forward-looking statement.
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10 Year Statistics +EHE

1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002

At year end (1S million) ERE (BWFE AT
Shareholders’ funds 21,608 25426 26,971 36,912 40,538 42,032 38240 41,304 41,489 42757 JWHRESE
per share (iKk$) 1194 12601 1340 1730 19.06 1976 1798 18.81 1895 19.54 ik GE¥OD)
Debt AfH
Debt 3511 9,747 9706 10243 23302 22,075 18,563 15709 14,639 9,267 Ak
Bank deposits 055 796 014 594 710 900 8,044 5201 4031 2,545 WATH
Net debt/total capital M%  26%  25%  20%  35%  33%  21%  19%  19%  13% TR EAREH
Interest cover (times) 33 9 10 19 0 4 4 5 0 12 FERS (FF)
Capital employed 25119 35,173 36,677 47,155 063,840 04,107 50,803 57,013 50,128 52,024 E&HEMA
Fixed assets 5951 8,884 9,045 9920 10472 11,765 11916 13,433 14702 15804  [EEEE
Associated companies 16,167 19,997 20,529 26,166 39,645 39,004 22,334 25434 24879 25,613  HHEAH
Investments 1,054 4330 5,670 9208 11,196 11,574 14,560 9479 8449 7,600 H&
Stockmarket
capitalization 46,130 38,000 53,000 95800 65,520 35530 62,230 60,720 37,993 31,514 Tl
Number of shareholders 6,794 7256 6,545 6215 8,042 14987 13,500 9,808 11,044 12,260 B SR A
Staff 10,000 10,000 11,500 11,750 11,800 11,871 10,490 11,354 11,733 11,043 HTL
For the year (ik$ million) EE GERE T
Net profit after tax BRBE A% 135
Net profit after tax 1,792 977 2963 6,709 7201 20628 2735 3291 2110 3,902 W% 1
per share (HKS) 1.03 0.50 1.47 3.18 3.38 1.24 1.29 1.49 0.96 1.78 Bk (BT
Contribution by major TEEB Y R B RK
business (Note) (RfzL)
Aviation 707 1,054 702 (11) 059 1,475 324 1,263 fii %
Civil Infrastructure 407 800 1,009 1382 1292 1320 1362 1,223 HpE
Communications 974 648 322 05 51 92 295 556 fr B2
Power Generation 186 186 170 230 440 314 281 245 %E
Marketing & Distribution 277 330 360 330 230 220 119 235 98 Koy 8
Property 734 602 1,587 270 740 422 033 925 LES
Industrial Manufacturing 39 21 2 18 22 29 95 126 THERE
Consumer Credit 78 89 8¢ 1067 - - - - T 2245

AEFEFE L - BLIE

EBITDA 2272 1975 4040 4321 5706 4739 4703 5240 3944 5,711 P85 KB 2 0 i )
Dividends per share (ik$) RS (B
Regular 0.38 0.48 0.55 0.62 0.70 0.70 0.75 0.85 0.80 1.00 LAt
Special - - - 0.30 0.30 - 2.00 - - 1.00 Gl
Cover (times) 2.7 1.0 2.7 2.7 2.7 1.8 1.7 1.8 12 1.8 8 (f%)
Note:  Information for 1993 and 1994 is not available. Wit : —ANZFER—INIIFREHRFE -

36



Human Resources ANER

As at the end of December 2002, the Group employed 11,643 people
(2001: 11,733) in its headquarters in Hong Kong and its principal
subsidiary companies worldwide. The two main areas of concentration
are in Hong Kong employing 4,255 (2001: 4,379) and in the mainland
of China employing 7,168 (2001: 7,126). Another 220 (2001: 228) are

employed in subsidiaries in Japan, Singapore and Canada.

Human Resource Management

The Group recognizes and respects each individual’s rights and adopts
non-discriminatory employment policies giving equal opportunities to
qualified candidates. Crric Pacific strives to be consistent and fair in
administering its human resource management practices to the mutual
benefit of its employees and the Group. Our Code of Conduct covers
many aspects of business ethics, including relations with suppliers and
customers and employees in terms of employment practices. Everyone
working on the affairs of the Group is required to follow this Code and
heads of business units are charged with the responsibility of
disseminating the Group’s requirements to the people concerned. An
explanation of the contents of the Code is included in the induction of

new employees and refresher courses conducted by internal or external

speakers are arranged for employees from time to time. Any violation or

non-compliance of the Code is subject to established disciplinary

procedure or actions as appropn'ate.

Employee Compensation

The Group aims to attract, retain and motivate employees who have the
relevant skills, knowledge and abilities to develop, support and sustain
the continued success of the Group. On an annual basis, Ciric Pacific
reviews the cash compensation and benefits program provided for its
employees to ensure that the overall compensation is internally
equitable, consistent with local norms. and in support of the business

strategy.
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Human Resources

The Group’s practice of paying an annual discretionary bonus linked

to Group results and individual employee performance was extended to

subsidiary Group companies in 2002. During the year, through an
efficiency enhancement program, employees contributed to higher
levels of performance through a series of initiatives to improve on the
Group’s results. At the end of 2002, in keeping with world trend to
shorten the working week, office based employees agreed to end
alternate Saturday work in exchange for a 5% reduction in salary in
order to have more time for leisure and personal pursuits. The Group’s
operations staff continued to serve customers during weekends and the

shorter working hours have not affected operating efficiency in any

way. The Group’s policy of rewarding deserving staff members with the

performance based annual discretionary bonus adequately provides for

good performers to make up any reduction in monthly income.
Details of the Citic Pacific Share Incentive Plan 2000 and the
granting of options are reported on pages 60 to 63. Financial

information on Directors’ emoluments can be found on page 91.

Retirement Benefits
The Crric Group Retirement Plan (“orso Plan™) provides retirement
benefits for employees of the Group. The 0rso Plan is a defined
contribution scheme registered under the Occupational Retirement
Schemes Ordinance and has obtained an exemption certificate having
satisfied the requirements of the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance. 1ssc Trustee (Hong Kong) Limited is Trustee of the orso
Plan, who in turn appointed the investment managers and plan
administrator to manage the Plan in accordance with the Trust Deed
and Rules. Employees are offered a choice of investments and the
Trustee issues statements to members of the 0rso Plan twice a year.

A Ciric Group Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“mpr Scheme™)
offers a choice to employees who opt not to join the orso Plan. The

Hang Seng Bank is the service provider of the mpr Scheme.

Further details on these plans are given in the Notes to the Accounts

on page 92.
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Training & Development

Crric Pacific is committed to providing a healthy organizational
environment conducive to each individual’s development. Employees
are encouraged to commit to continuous improvement by taking
responsibility for their own learning and self-development. Seminars
and courses organized by professional institutions are sponsored by the
Group to assist employees to improve their current job performance. In-
house training for all levels of employees is organized regularly on
product knowledge and skills training. Where applicable, the Group
arranges external service providers to conduct customized training
programs on specific subjects such as managerial development and
updates on new technology.

To strengthen safety and health in the work place. the safety and
health committees in Group companies regularly carry out risk
evaluation and gap assessment of various work sites and took pre-
emptive or corrective actions according to their findings. Internal self-
audit and accident investigation systems were set up with appropriate
training conducted for staff.

_rric Pacific also believes in investing in the training and
development of the younger members of society. The Group has put in
place various management trainee and apprentice training programs in
different industries of subsidiary companies. It also participates in the
Government’s Youth Pre-employment Training Program and supports
other institutional initiatives, such as the One-Company-One-Job
Campaign, with a view to providing opportunities for young school-

leavers.

BiRER
PERESOIR M RN ERE - HA
THRUKENE > WS b TEEe - LB
H I (E o A5 I B SRS R T 5
JGHRR > FELM B B s TAEREL > Jhe i
o5 T T B A AT 2 i Rl B MR 1
2 TERERISR 764 752005 > ARG Ha % Poh
S B T A B S AR R 3 1 ) R R
T IR A SRR P o

RineR B T T AR B Y % 4 S A - 4R
P S 7w Y A D B 2 B B 45 AR
BRI R AG R BT TS SRR > AR T
15982 5 R RO I 2 TRy sl IE 8 = SR
s AR A% MBS R AT - Jy B TR
FRAEE -

PEREIMEEREN G LFE %
B BRI o AEER AR T AR A AT 453
Z WA Ja > W) S 2 VR P L B G A
# > IN2BLEUR 2 R Rl ) S B LA iR
) W [—WAF—mT] 5H# > Bk
RESPA LONSR Y eSS

39



In the Community T RE

The Group and its employees support the local communities it operates
in. As in the past many years, the Group supports charitable work and
the promotion of education, environmental protection, sports, culture
and the arts by sponsoring many activities in Hong Kong, China and
overseas. The Salvation Army, Mother’s Choice, and the Worldwide
Fund for Nature are some of the organizations the Group associated
with. Most notably is the Community Chest of Hong Kong to which
Crric Pacific and its subsidiary companies have been long term
supporters by making donations and participating in the fund raising
activities. As a regular donor to the Red Cross, the Group continues to
encourage its employees to respond to its appeals and campaigns.
Employees of the Group have also taken part in the Corporate
Volunteering Scheme organized by the Social Welfare Department of
the Hong Kong sar Government contributing their free time and service

to society.
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Corporate Governance

Crmic Pacific is committed to excellent standards of corporate
governance and first class business practices extending beyond
compliance with the mandatory requirements such as that of the

Companies Ordinance, accounting standards and the Stock Exchange.

The Board

The Board currently comprises eleven executive and six non-executive
directors of whom five are “independent” under the Stock Exchange
Listing Rules. In 2002 the Board met four times to review the financial
and operating performance of the Group and each business, and
approve future strategy. Attendance at the meeting was over 73%. The
Board has established an Executive Committee of executive directors
and senior managers who meet monthly to review and make decisions

on financial and operational matters.

System of Internal Control

The Board recognizes its responsibility for ensuring prompt and
transparent reporting and full disclosure of information to the public
and investors at large.

The accounting system and internal controls of the Group are
designed to provide reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded
against losses from unauthorized use or disposition, that transactions
are executed in accordance with management authorization, the
financial records are reliable and financial statements show a true and

fair view of the business.

Audit Committee

An Audit Committee of the Board was established in 1995 comprising
three independent non-executive directors. It met four times in 2002,
together with management and auditors, both internal and external, to
review audit reports and assure the completeness and accuracy of the
Group’s interim and final financial statements. The Audit Committee
reviews the system of internal controls throughout the Group, including

adherence to various Codes described below.

External Auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers has been appointed by the shareholders as the
Crric Pacific’s statutory auditor and their report is on pages 137 to 138.
Approximately HKS5 million was charged to the account for their

statutory audit and tax services.
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Corporate Governance

Internal Audit

The Group Internal Audit Department supports management by
carrying out a systematic review of all business operations over a period
that is determined after an assessment of the risks involved. The Audit
Committee endorses the audit plan annually. The Group Internal
Auditor has unrestricted access to all parts of the business, and direct
access to any level of management including the Chairman, or the

Chairman of the Audit Committee. as he considers necessary.

Codes

To ensure the highest standard of integrity in our businesses, in 1995
the Group adopted a Code of Conduct defining the ethical standards
expected of all employees, and the Group’s non-discriminatory
employment practices. Training courses on the Code are held regularly
for all employees and the Audit Committee receives a report on the
operation of the Code every year.

The Group has issued its own Code for Securities Transactions by
Director that follows the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong’s Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies contained
in Appendix 10 of the Exchange’s Listing Rules. Throughout 2002 the
Group has complied with the Code of Best Practice contained in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

The Group has endorsed the guide to good employment practices
issued by the Employers” Federation of Hong Kong to promote good

and responsible employment standards.

Connected Transactions

During the year Crric Pacific obtained the approval of independent
shareholders to “connected transactions” that involved its 29%
shareholder - China International Trust & Investment Corporation
Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited (“Crric 1k”). In one, Crric Pacific
acquired 80% interest of CiTic Square in Shanghai and 100% of Royal
Pavilion also in Shanghai, and in the other, Crric Pacific sold to Crric Hk
its entire 80% interest in the China Express No. 1 Backbone Network.
Crric HK simultaneously granted an option, valid for six years, to Crric
Pacific to reacquire the business derived from the Network.

In each case, a committee consisting of independent non-executive
directors, advised by an independent financial adviser, was appointed
to advise independent shareholders on the merits of the transactions.
Full details are contained in the circulars issued at that time and the
related press announcements which can be found on the Group’s

website (www.citicpacific.com).
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Fair Disclosure and Investor Relations

Crric Pacific uses its best endeavours to distribute material information
about the Group to all interested parties as widely as possible. When
announcements are made through the Hong Kong Stock Exchange the
same information will be on its way to journalists and investment
analysts where an e-mail address or fax number is known and is
available to shareholders on the Company’s website.

Ciric Pacific recognizes its responsibility to explain its activities to
those with a legitimate interest and to respond to their questions.
Investors are regularly received and visited to explain the Group’s
business. During 2002, investment conferences were attended in
Beijing, Hong Kong and New York, and investors were visited in
Europe, the United States and Singapore. Approximately 100 investors
visited Crmic Pacific’s offices. Questions on the company and its
products and services are received from the general public, individual
shareholders and investment analysts and these are answered promptly.
In all cases great care is taken to ensure that no price sensitive
information is disclosed.

Information about Crric Pacific can be found in the Group’s website
(www.citicpacific.com) including descriptions of each business, copies

of all announcements made and Annual Reports for last four years.

Financial Reporting

_rmic Pacific prepares its financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting standards published by the Hong Kong
Society of Accountants. Hong Kong accounting standards broadly
follow international accounting standards. The Group adopted the ssaps
which were effective for the current financial year. Appropriate
accounting policies are selected and applied consistently; judgments and
estimates made are prudent and reasonable. The directors endeavour to
ensure a balanced and understandable assessment of the Group’s

position and prospects in financial reporting.

American Depositary Receipts

As a further service to investors a United States American Depositary
Receipts (ADR) program was established in January 2002 providing an
additional method of investing in the ordinary shares of Ciric Pacific.
The stock code is cTpay.
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Corporate Information LFEE

Headquarters and Registered Office AREERERNEE
32nd Floor, Citic Tower FHHIEBREE T ERE =
1 Tim Mei Avenue B 2820 2111
Central, Hong Kong i SCEE 0 2877 2771
Telephone: 2820 2111
Fax: 2877 2771 At
www.citicpacific.com Hf 15 % & 10 3EH i
Website I~ T FROSRCEE TSI R A4 S B i A
www.citicpacific.com contains a description of Citic Pacific’s Ooffi TR S LA DR
business, copies of both the full and summary financial reports to
shareholders, announcements, press releases and other information. EHET
BB S 2 0207
Stock Codes THEMR - 2607 nk
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong: 0267 gL 02070k
Bloomberg: 267 HKk FBTHFER M © crecy
Reuters: 0267. 1K cusip 2% %% - 17304K102
American Depositary Receipts: cTpcy
cusip Reference No: 17304K102 B EBEE
A BB~ ok R~ SR R RCE
Share Registrars SEEE o JRORMERR AR A A R I IR A RO
Shareholders should contact our Registrars, Tengis Limited, Ground WA PRAT > sl B S LITE R A
Floor, Bank of Fast Asia Harbour View Centre, 56 Gloucester Road, PREMTEE D LT - FTHE

Wanchai, Hong Kong on 2980 1333, or by fax: 2810 8185, on matters 2980 1333 > BHIL % 2810 8185 °

such as transfer of shares, change of name or address, or loss of share

certificates. FHREPHHE

JBe SRR T i F D R R BCAE i &
Annual and Interim Reports Hedt o Hofb N T RERRAR A AL > BEREIEAS S
Shareholders may obtain annual and interim reports from the 2820 2111 > B SCEIE SIS A 2877 2771 5 i

Registrars. Other should contact the Company Secretary on 2820 2111 1% contact@citicpacific.com X EH
or fax: 2877 2771 or at contact@citicpacific.com.

BREME
Investor Relations BEH -~ BOR R W B AR A
Investors, shareholders and research analysts may contact the Investor BRI > REEMEA 2820 2004 >
Relations Department by telephone at 2820 2004, by fax: 2104 6632 XEEGEE S 2104 6032 H %
or at investor.relations@citicpacific.com. investor.relations@citicpacific.com #£% B
Financial Calendar MBEHE
Closure of Register: 30 April 2003 to 6 May 2003 Tmas PR —FL=FNA=THE
Annual General Meeting: 6 May 2003, 10:30 a.m. —EEERLAAH
Island Ballroom, Level 5, Island Shangri-La Hotel BeHBAERE : “FZ=FHHANH
Two Pacific Place, Supreme Court Road B
Hong Kong s TR B A 55—
Final Dividend Payable: 12 May 2003 gggﬁiﬂ@%ﬂﬁ

it

WEABBR : —“FZ=HHLA+_H
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Directors and Senior Managers EERERER

Executive Directors

Larry Yung Chi Kin (Chairman), aged 61, a Director since 1990, is
the Vice Chairman and Managing Director of China International Trust
& Investment Corporation Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited (“Ciric nk™)
and an Executive Director of China International Trust and Investment
Corporation (“Crric”). He worked for 14 years with the Ministry of
Electric Power in the People’s Republic of China (“Prc”) before coming
to Hong Kong in 1978, and had extensive management experience
before establishing Citic HK in 1987. Mr Yung is a Steward of the Hong
Kong Jockey Club.

Henry Fan Hung Ling (Managing Director), aged 54, a Director since
1990, is a Deputy Chairman of Cathay Pacific Airways Limited
(“Cathay”), a director of Hong Kong Dragon Airlines Limited
(“Dragonair”) and a Deputy Managing Director of Ciric HK. He is a
non-executive director of the Securities and Futures Commission.
Before joining Crric HK in 1987, Mr Fan held senior management
positions with a number of corporations and also practised law as a

barrister.

Vernon Francis Moore (Deputy Managing Director), aged 50, a
Director and the Group Chief Financial Officer since 1990, is a director
of Cathay and cLp Holdings Limited (“cLp Holdings™) and the
Chairman of the New Hong Kong Tunnel Company Limited (“NHkrc”),
Hong Kong Tunnels and Highways Management Company Limited
(“pxTHMC”) and the Western Harbour Tunnel Company Limited
(“wnr”). Mr Moore joined Ciric 1K in 1987 as Executive Director after
holding senior management positions with a number of financial

institutions.

Peter Lee Chung Hing (Deputy Managing Director), aged 49, is the
Vice Chairman of Crric Guoan Co., Litd. (“Crtic Guoan”) and a director
of other Group companies concerned with industrial, communications

and trading businesses. Before joining Ciric 1k in 1988, Mr Lee was

with major banking and shipping groups in Hong Kong. He joined Crric

Pacific Limited (“Crric Pacific”) in 1990.
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Directors and Senior Managers

Norman Yuen Kee Tong (Deputy Managing Director), aged 54, a
Director since 2001, is the Chairman of Citic Pacific Communications
Limited (“cpc”) and the representative of Ciric Pacific on the Board of
Companhia de Telecomunicacoes de Macau s.A.R.L.. Mr Yuen was
previously the deputy chief executive officer of Pacific Century
CyberWorks Limited and had extensive experience in the
telecommunications business. He serves on several public bodies and

advisory committees and is a Justice of the Peace.

Robert Ernest Adams (Executive Director), aged 59, a Director since
1992, is a director of Cathay, Dragonair, Hong Kong Air Cargo
Terminals Limited and 1s¢ Lufthansa Service Hong Kong Limited. Mr
Adams’ previous experience was in the management consulting and
banking industries. He is a past Chairman of the American Chamber of

Commerce in Hong Kong.

Yao Jinrong (Executive Director), aged 63, a Director since 2000, is the
Managing Director of Ciric Pacific China Holdings Limited. He joined
Crric in early 1985 and once served as executive secretary to CITic’s
former Chairman Mr Rong Yiren and concurrently director of Crric’s
general office. Later, Mr Yao became one of Ciric’s Vice Presidents and
Executive Directors until 2000. He is a director of Crtic and Chairman

of China International Economic Consultants Co., Ltd.

Chang Zhenming (Executive Director), aged 46, a Director since 2000,
joined Ciric in 1983 and has extensive experience in finance, banking
and securities business. Mr Chang is an Executive Director and Vice
President of Crric , Chief Executive Officer of Citic International
Financial Holdings Limited, Executive Vice Chairman of Crric Ka Wah

Bank Limited and a director of Crric 1IK.

Li Shilin (Executive Director), aged 53, a Director since 2000, is an
Executive Director and a Vice President of Crric, Chairman of Crric
Guoan Group, Chairman of Xin De Telecom International Ventures Co.,

Ltd. and Chairman of Crric Guoan Information Industry Co., Ltd.

Carl Yung Ming Jie (Executive Director), aged 34. is a director of
Cathay and other Group companies concerned with infrastructure and
industrial projects in the prc. He joined Crric Pacific in 1993. He is the

son of Mr Larry Yung Chi Kin.
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Liu Jifu (Executive Director), aged 59, a Director since 2001, is a
director of Crric HK. Before joining Crric 1K in 2000, Mr Liu worked
with the Financial and Economics Research Institute in the China
Academy of Social Sciences for 5 years. Formerly, he was an Executive
Director of China Everbright Group Limited, the Chairman of China
Everbright Travel Inc and China PINGHE Import & Export Co., Ltd.

Non-Executive Directors
Willie Chang, aged 59, a Director since 1987, is the sole proprietor of
Willie Chang & Co., Solicitors, with over 33 years” experience in legal

practice, including as a partner of Johnson, Stokes and Master.*<}

Hamilton Ho Hau Hay. aged 52, a Director since 1992, is a director of
Dah Chong Hong Holdings Limited, an Executive Director of
Honorway Investments Limited (“Honorway”) and Tak Hung
(Holding) Company Limited (“Tak Hung”). He is the brother of Mr

Norman Ho Hau Chong.*

Alexander Reid Hamilton, aged 61, a Director since 1994, was a
partner of Price Waterhouse where he practised for 16 years. He is a
Non-Executive Director of a number of Hong Kong companies
including cosco Pacific Limited, Shangri-La Asia Limited, Esprit
Holdings Limited and pBs Kwong On Bank Ltd.*

Hansen Loh Chung Hon, aged 65, a Director since 1994, is the
Managing Director of Wyler Textiles, Limited, Chairman of Farrington
American Express Travel Services Limited and a non-executive director

of The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited and cLp
Holdings.*5

Norman Ho Hau Chong. aged 47, a Director since 1994, is an
Executive Director of Honorway and Tak Hung, and a director of Hong
Kong Ferry (Holdings) Company Limited, Lee Hing Development
Company Limited, and a number of other quoted companies. He is the

brother of Mr Hamilton Ho Hau Hay.*
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Directors and Senior Managers

André Desmarais, aged 46, a Director since 1997, is the President and
Co-Chief Executive Officer of Power Corporation of Canada. He is a
member of the Chief Executive’s Council of International Advisers of
The Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region and

member of the Ciric International Advisory Council.

Peter Kruyt (Alternate Director to André Desmarais), aged 47, an
alternate director since 2003, is Vice President of Power Corporation of
Canada, Chairman of Power Pacific Corporation Limited and

Chairman of the Canada-China Business Council.

*  Independent Non-Executive Director

T Member of the Audit Committee

Senior Managers

Bi Yupu (General Manager, Power Project Department), aged 61, is a
Deputy Managing Director of Crric HK and the chief representative of
Crric Pacific’s Beijing Office. Before joining the Citic Group in 1987, he
worked for 20 years with the Ministry of Electric Power in the PRC as a
senior engineer and deputy director of North China Electric Power

Research Institute. He joined Crric Pacific in 1993.

Chau Chi Yin (Director, Group Financial Control), aged 47, joined
Crric Pacific in 1990, is a director of Hong Kong Resort Company
Limited (“HK Resort”) and Group companies in the industrial sector
projects. He joined Ciric 1K in 1987 after experience in public
accounting and in financial management with a major Hong Kong

listed company.

Leslie Chang Li Hsien (Director, Group Finance), aged 48, is a
director of Crric Guoan, HKTHMC and WHT. Before joining Crric Pacific in
1994, he was a partner at KpMG Peat Marwick specializing in the
financial services industry and the Director of the firm’s Chinese

Practice in the United States.

Frances Yung Ming Fong (Director, Technology Development), aged
31, is the Deputy Chairman of crc and a director of NHKTC. She joined
Crric Pacific in 1995 and is responsible for the development of

technology-based projects. She is the daughter of Mr Larry Yung Chi
Kin.
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Milton Law Ming To (Director, Business Development), aged 39, is a
director of Dragonair, NHKTC, WHT, HKTHMC , CITic Guoan and other
Group companies in the infrastructure, environment, trading and
industrial sector. Before joining Crric Pacific in 1992, he worked in the

banking industry.

Polly Lawrence (Director, Group Human Resources and
Administration), aged 560, was head of human resources and
communications of a Hong Kong listed company before joining Crric

Pacific in 1993.

Hui Ying Bun (Group Chief Executive, Dah Chong Hong). aged 50, is
also the Chief Executive — Motor, responsible for the overall
management of the Dah Chong Hong Group’s businesses in Hong
Kong, the prec., Singapore, Japan, and Canada. He joined Dah Chong
teX] ] - y P ] ] te)
Hong in 1966. obtaining extensive experience in executive
g ) g p

management, motor distribution, and China trade.

Chu Hon Fai (Chief Executive — Trading, Dah Chong Hong). aged 57,
is responsible for the Dah Chong Hong Group’s trading business in
Hong Kong, the pre, Singapore, Japan, and Canada. He joined Dah
Chong Hong in 1964, obtaining extensive experience in global trading

and distribution.

Alexander Chan Sing Cheung (Executive Director and the General
Manager, NHKTC), aged 58, joined NHKTC in June 1991 having had

extensive experience in the shipping and transportation industries.

Peter Chan Kwong Choi (Managing Director, Ciric Telecom 1616
Limited), aged 39. joined Crric Pacific in 2000, when Crric Pacific
bought Telecom 1616 Limited where he gained extensive experience in

the telecommunications industry.

Glenn Robert Sturrock Smith (Chief Executive, Sims Trading
Company Limited), aged 50, joined Ciric Pacific in 2001 when Crric
Pacific bought Sims Trading where he had many years of experience in
the marketing and distribution of consumer products. He is Chairman

of the Guangdong Jing Yun Distribution Co., Ltd.
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Directors and Senior Managers

Aaron Wong Ha Hang (General Manager — Projects, Property
Department), aged 44, is an Executive Director of Hk Resort, a
director of NHKkTC and other Group companies concerned with
property and environmental projects. Before joining Citic Pacific in
1996, he worked for an international consulting firm in the United

Kingdom and in Hong Kong.

Cindy Kwan Kit Ying (General Manager — Sales & Marketing,
Property Department), aged 40, joined Crric Pacific in 1996 after

road experience in property sales, marketing. and leasing.
broad exp property sales, keting, and 1 g

Stephen Ho Wai Chung (Chief Executive Officer, creNet Hong
Kong Limited), aged 44, is the Executive Vice-President, Operations
of cec. He joined Ciric Pacific in 2001 after 19 years of experience in

the telecommunications industry.
Stella Chan Chui Sheung (Director, Company Secretariat), aged

40. Before joining Crric HK in 1988 and Crric Pacific in 1990, she

worked in the company secretarial field.
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Directors’ Report ESERE

The Directors have pleasure in presenting to shareholders their report FHOMBMRE - FZF+A=1—H

for the year ended 31 December 2002. AR Z SE RO B ROR A BE -

Principal Activities TEEH

The principal activity of the Company is holding its subsidiary ART Z LEREB RSB AR > L
companies and the principal activities of its subsidiary companies and Ja 5 ) B A W) 2 B T i R
associated companies and their major areas of operation are set out in R 5 2 20 HZEBRIEA -

the Review of Businesses on pages 5 to 20.

Dividends 7.

The Directors declared an interim dividend of HK$0.30 per share in FEHECLEREE FLHF+A=+—H
respect of the year ended 31 December 2002 which was paid on 19 IR R Z IR Sy I 0,30 70 > s% 55 Ak
September 2002. The Directors recommended, subject to the approval ~— BERZFZZFEH FILHIRE - EFgdE
of the shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, the MR TEEZERAT HER S EEZAEL

payment of a final dividend of HKS0.70 per share and a special dividend 75 H & 3£ [ 45 5007 24 51 Bk 4 i 2] 2 FOR
of HK$1.00 per share in respect of the year ended 31 December 2002 REEE -FLZFL A= —HILFEEZ
payable on 12 May 2003 to shareholders on the Register of Members at — ARIABE R8s 8 0.70 70 K45 S 9 vtk

the close of business on 6 May 2003. 1.007C > MEZTHEIBCRU BT8R4 2 RO AR R
G LT IR -

Reserves 1]

The amounts and particulars of transfer to and from reserves during the A4 B A K B 2 S8 MG R IR H

year are set out in note 21 to the accounts. WfaE 21 o

Donations A%

Donations made by the Group during the year amounted to HK$11 AEBENZ BT B —T—HET -

million.

Fixed Assets EERE

Movements of fixed assets are set out in note 12 to the accounts. I8 5 S o S 1 DR R I A 12
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Directors’ Report

Major Customers and Suppliers
The percentage of purchases and sales with the Group’s suppliers and

customers are as follows:

FEEFRHER
AGEE 2 IR R F 2 HEAE I E R T 0
AR

Purchases 2002 2001  JEH
The largest supplier 1% 7%  BOKHERER
Five largest suppliers combined 25% 20%  HKHBtRER A

The aggregate percentage of sales to the Group’s five largest
customers is less than 30%.

No Directors, their associates or shareholders (which to the
knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) were interested at any time in the year in the above suppliers or

customers.

Subsidiary Companies
The names of the principal subsidiary companies, their principal places
of operation, their countries of incorporation and particulars of their

issued share capital are set out in note 30 to the accounts.

Issue of Debt Securities

On 15 February 1996, the Company issued and sold us$100 million
aggregate principal amount of its 7.37% Senior Notes due 20006
(“Senior Notes”) to financial institutions pursuant to note purchase
agreements dated 15 February 1996. All of the Senior Notes remained
outstanding at the end of the year.

On 20 August 1997, the Company issued and sold Japanese Yen 9.5
billion floating rate bond due 2002 (“Yen Bond™), for general working
capital purposes, to an investor pursuant to the subscription agreement
dated 15 August 1997. All of the Yen Bond were repaid in August,
2002.
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On 1 June 2001, Crric Pacific Finance (2001) Limited, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, issued and sold a total of Us$450
million principal amount of 7.625% guaranteed notes due 2011
(“Guaranteed Notes”) for refinancing the indebtedness of the Company
and for general corporate purposes, to investors pursuant to the
purchase agreements dated 24 May 2001 and 1 June 2001. All of the
Guaranteed Notes remained outstanding at the end of the year.

Save as aforesaid, neither the Company nor its subsidiary companies

have issued any debt securities.

Borrowings
Particulars of borrowings of the Group are set out in note 22 to the

accounts.

Directors

The Directors in office during the financial year ended 31 December

2002 were:

Mr Larry Yung Chi Kin

Mr Henry I'an Hung Ling

Mr Vernon Francis Moore

Mr Peter Lee Chung Hing

Mr Norman Yuen Kee Tong

Mr Robert Ernest Adams

Mr Zhang Yichen, resigned on 9 May 2002
Mr Yao Jinrong

Mr Chang Zhenming

Mr Li Shilin

Mr Carl Yung Ming Jie

Mr Liu Jifu

Mr Willie Chang

Mr Hamilton Ho Hau Hay

Mr Alexander Reid Hamilton

Mr Hansen Loh Chung Hon

Mr Norman Ho Hau Chong

Mr Chau Cham Son, resigned on 9 May 2002
Mr André Desmarais
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Directors’ Report

Pursuant to Article 104(A) of the New Articles of Association of the
Company, Messrs Henry Fan Hung Ling, Li Shilin, Carl Yung Ming Jie,
Hamilton Ho Hau Hay, Alexander Reid Hamilton and Hansen Loh
Chung Hon shall retire by rotation in the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting and all, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Biographical details of directors may be found on pages 45 to 50.

Management Contract

The Company entered into a management agreement with China
International Trust & Investment Corporation Hong Kong (Holdings)
Limited (“Ciric HK™) on 11 April 1991 but with retrospective effect
from 1 March 1990 in which Crric HK agreed to provide management
services to the Company and its subsidiary companies for a
management fee calculated on a cost basis to Citic HK payable quarterly
in arrears. The management agreement is terminable by two months’
notice by either party. Messrs Larry Yung Chi Kin, Henry Fan Hung
Ling, Vernon Francis Moore, Chang Zhenming and Liu Jifu had
indirect interests in the management agreement as they are directors of
Crric K. A copy of the management agreement will be available for
inspection at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on
6 May 2003.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts of Significance

None of the Directors of the Company has or at any time during the
year had, an interest which is or was material, either directly or
indirectly, in any contract with the Company or any of its subsidiary
companies, which was significant in relation to the business of the
Company. and which was subsisting at the end of the year or which had

subsisted at any time during the year.
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Connected Transactions
Connected transactions disclosed in accordance with Chapter 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of

Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) are as follows:

1. Pursuant to the agreement dated 9 October 1996 made between the
Company, Crric 1K, Kerry Trading Co. Limited, The Development Bank
of Singapore Limited (collectively “the Parties”) and Cheer First
Limited (“Cheer First”), the Parties being the shareholders of Cheer
First agreed to make loans to Cheer First for providing loan finance to
Goldon Investment Limited which holds Citic Tower. Ciric 1K being a
substantial shareholder of the Company and regarded as its connected
person holds 25% interest in Cheer IYirst. The loan was made on normal
commercial terms and in proportion to each party’s shareholding in
Cheer First. It was with no fixed repayment date and was interest
bearing at the rate per annum equivalent to Hong Kong Inter-Bank
Offered Rate. As at 31 December 2002, the amount of shareholders’
loan due by Cheer First to the Company was 1K32,174 million.

2. Lucky Zone Enterprises Inc. (“Lucky Zone™), the developer of a
fixed optical fibre network in the prc, and its subsidiaries were owned
by the Company and China International Trust and Investment
Corporation (“Crric Beijing”) in the proportions 80/20 until 27
February 2002 when the Company completed the disposal of its entire
interest in the fixed optical fibre network to Crric K. From time to time
up to 27 February 2002, the Company provided finance to Lucky Zone
and its subsidiaries by way of shareholders” loan or corporate
guarantee. The shareholders” loan was made in proportion to the
Company’s shareholdings in such companies, with no fixed repayment
date and was non-interest bearing. The guarantee given by the
Company was a several guarantee proportional to the Company’s
shareholdings in such companies. Immediately prior to completion of
the disposal, the amount of shareholders” loan due by Lucky Zone and
its subsidiaries to the Company was Hk$1,491 million whereas the
guarantees executed by the Company to secure the banking facilities
granted to the subsidiaries of Lucky Zone were rvB824 million. There
was another guarantee executed by the Company in respect of 80% of
the liability of one of the subsidiaries of Lucky Zone under a lease
agreement for leasing certain equipment at the contract sum of
approximately Us$15.5 million. All such guarantees executed by the

Company were released after the disposal.
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Directors’ Report

3. On 14 March 2002, Ciric Beijing, Citic Ka Wah Bank Limited
(“Crric Ka Wah”, subsequently renamed as Crric International
Financial Holdings Limited), the Company, Dramatic Year Limited
(“Dramatic Year”), Forever Glory Holdings Ltd. (“Forever Glory”) and
Crric Capital Markets Holdings Limited (“Crric Capital Markets™)
entered into a Share Transfer and Subscription Agreement. Pursuant to
the agreement, Forever Glory being a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company agreed to subscribe for 960 new shares of HK$1.00 each in
Crric Capital Markets and to acquire 20 shares of HK$1.00 each in Crric
Capital Markets from Dramatic Year, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Crric Ka Wah. The total consideration payable by the Company under
the agreement was HKS510 million. Upon completion of the Share
Transfer and Subscription Agreement, Crric Capital Markets would be
owned as to 25 per cent. by Dramatic Year, 25 per cent. by a wholly
owned subsidiary of Crric Beijing and 50 per cent. by Forever Glory.
The joint venture relationship between the parties in respect of Crric
Capital Markets would be governed by a shareholders” agreement. Crric
Capital Markets, through its subsidiaries, was mainly involved in
investment banking, securities and brokerage business. Ciric Capital
Markets and Dramatic Year, being indirect subsidiaries of Crric Beijing,

are connected persons of the Company.

4. On 28 June 2002, the Company, Kerry Properties Limited
(“Kerry™), The Cross-Harbour (Holdings) Limited and China
Merchants Holdings (International) Company Limited entered into a
new performance guarantee (“the New Performance Guarantee™) in
favour of the Hong Kong sar Government. Under the New Performance
Guarantee, each of the parties jointly and severally guaranteed to the
Hong Kong sar Government the due and punctual performance by
Hong Kong Tunnels and Highways Management Company Limited
(“HKTHMC”) of its obligations under the new contract for the
management, operation and maintenance of the Cross Harbour Tunnel.
Each party in turn had agreed, pursuant to the joint venture agreement
relating to HKTHMC, to account to and indemnify each other in respect of
their portion of liability under the New Performance Guarantee in
proportion to their respective ultimate beneficial interests in the share
capital of nkrnmc. Kerry owns 30% of a subsidiary of the Company and
is regarded as a connected person of the Company. The maximum
exposure of the Company under the New Performance Guarantee and
the related indemnity was estimated to represent more than 0.03% but
less than 3% of the book value of the net tangible assets of the Group as
at 31 December 2001.
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5. On 16 December 2002, Mainstream Holdings Limited
(“Mainstream Holdings™), a 55% owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a sale and purchase agreement (“Sale and Purchase
Agreement”) with {7 SHE B & B EMARAF (“Shuanghui
Investment”). Pursuant to the Sale and Purchase Agreement,
Mainstream Holdings agreed to transfer 30% interest in the registered
capital of Shanghai pcri Shuanghui Bp Co., Ltd. (“pen Shuanghui”) to
Shuanghui Investment at the consideration of RMB18.7 million so that
after the transfer, pcn Shuanghui would be owned as to 40% by
Mainstream Holdings and 60% by Shuanghui Investment. The
consideration was arrived at after arm’s length negotiations and
reflected the unaudited net asset value of bcH Shuanghui as at 30
November 2002. pcri Shuanghui is engaged in the business of
producing and selling meat and related food products. After the
completion of the aforesaid transfer, the registered capital of pcH
Shuanghui would be increased by rvB46.75 million of which 60%
would be contributed by Shuanghui Investment in Renminbi and 40%
by Mainstream Holdings in us dollars. With the increase in shareholding
of Shuanghui Investment in e Shuanghui, it was anticipated that
Shuanghui Investment would make greater contributions to pcr
Shuanghui in terms of capital, know-how., sales and marketing and
overall management. Shuanghui Investment is regarded as a connected
person of the Company by virtue of its being a substantial shareholder
of bt Shuanghui which is a subsidiary of the Company. The aggregate
value of the connected transaction represented more than 0.03% but
less than 3% of the book value of the net tangible assets of the Group as
at 31 December 2001.

6. On 18 December 2002, Connemera Inc. (“Connemera”) (a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company), Jiangsu cp Xingcheng Special Steel
Jo., Litd. (“Jiangsu cp Xingcheng™) (a non wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company) and Jiangyin Steel Mill entered into a joint venture
contract and an articles of association for the establishment of a new
joint venture company (“the New 1v”) for the production and sale of hot
iron and the related products. The total investment and the registered
capital of the New 1v amounted to Us$25 million and us$10 million
respectively. Upon its establishment, the New Jv would be owned as to
30.25% by Connemera, 45% by Jiangsu cp Xingcheng and 24.75% by

Jiangyin Steel Mill.
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On the same day, Jiangsu cp Xingcheng entered into two sale and
purchase agreements with Maxy Rich Investments Limited (“Maxy
Rich”) (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) and Jiangyin Steel
Mill respectively for the acquisition of 20% interest in the registered
capital of Jiangyin Xingcheng Special Steel Works Co., Ltd. (“Special
Steel Co.”), an existing joint venture company between Maxy Rich and
Jiangyin Steel Mill, by Jiangyin cp Xingcheng. The total consideration
for the acquisition was rRvMB220,707.236.40 and was determined with
reference to the audited net asset value of Special Steel Co. as at 31
August 2002. After the acquisition, Special Steel Co. would be owned
as to 44% by Maxy Rich, 20% by Jiangsu cp Xingcheng and 36% by
Jiangyin Steel Mill. The acquisition was only part of the reorganisation
of Jiangsu cp Xingcheng in anticipation of its intended listing on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange in 2003.

Jiangyin Steel Mill was a connected person of the Company by virtue
of its being a substantial shareholder of several other subsidiaries of the

Company.

7. From time to time during the year, the Group maintained or
executed guarantees to banks to secure the facilities granted to
Shanghai pcit Jiangnanfeng Co., Ltd. (“Jiangnanfeng”), a company
engaged in the production and selling of chickens and related food
products, as its general working capital. Jiangnanfeng was 76.77%
owned by Regal Heights Limited (“Regal Heights”. a 60% subsidiary of
Dah Chong Hong Holdings Limited) with the remaining interest held
by individual third parties which were connected to the Group by virtue
only of their substantial shareholding in Jiangnanfeng. As at 31
December 2002, total facilities granted to Jiangnanfeng was rRMB57
million secured by corporate guarantees given by Dah Chong Hong
Group, in turn the 40% partner in Regal Heights shared 40% of such
liabilities by giving irrevocable letters of credit issued by a bank in

favour of Dah Chong Hong Group.
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8. During the year, certain subsidiaries of the Company had entered
into business transactions with Swire Pacific Limited and its associate
(as defined in the Listing Rules), being connected persons of the
Company after the completion of the acquisition of Crric Square by the
Company on 22 January 2002. Details of the transactions made during
the period from 22 January 2002 to 31 December 2002 with annual
amounts exceeding 0.03% of the Group’s consolidated net tangible
assets as disclosed in the Company’s 2001 annual report were as follows

(“the Continuing Transactions”):

8. HEW - AL AT M 2 ) B R A
BRI R BB AL GEFR EHRAD (3%
BANAN_FR_SFE-H 2+ BmﬁW%
HERE BRGE AN R 2 BEATL)
HTEBLY) - uFEm*ii*ﬁ—H*+
CHECZEFECAF A = —H IR
2585 H%WQ%J’Aﬁx%é%E¢Qﬂ
CRRAEERIT AL BG A AT EE T
{Hi 0.03% :

uk$ i ¥
Sale and purchase of foodstuffs 15.319.526 EHEH
Repair of aviation containers and sale of parts 17,900,944 &2 Gl e x4
Repair and maintenance of ground support equipment
and airport vehicles 40,418,219 405 AR B S M S i 5 i
73,638,689

An independent committee of the Board (comprising only of
independent non-executive Directors) had reviewed the Continuing
Transactions made during the period from 22 January 2002 to 31
December 2002 and confirmed that the Continuing Transactions had

been entered into:
B in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

B on normal commercial terms or, if there were no sufficient
comparable transactions to judge whether they were on normal
commercial terms, on terms no less favourable to the Group than
terms available to or from (as appropriate) independent third

parties; and

B on terms that were fair and reasonable so far as the shareholders of

the Company were concerned.

The auditors of the Company had also confirmed to the Board that
the Continuing Transactions (a) had received the approval of the Board
of the Company; (b) had been entered into on normal commercial
terms or, with the terms of the agreement(s) relating to the transactions
or, if there was no such agreement, on terms no less favourable to or
from independent third parties; and (¢) had not exceeded 3% of the
value of the audited net tangible assets of the Group as disclosed in the

Company’s 2001 annual report.
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Share Option Plan
The Company adopted the Crric Pacific Share Incentive Plan 2000
(“the Plan”) on 31 May 2000. The major terms of the Plan are as

follows:

1. The purpose of the Plan is to promote the interests of the Company
and its shareholders by (i) providing the participants with additional
incentives to continue and increase their efforts in achieving success in
the business of the Company, and (ii) attracting and retaining the best
available personnel to participate in the on-going business operation of

the Company.

2. The participants of the Plan are any director, executive or employee

of the Company or its subsidiaries as invited by the Board.

3. The maximum number of shares over which options may be granted
under the Plan shall not exceed 10% of (i) the issued share capital of
the Company from time to time or (ii) the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of adopting the Plan, whichever is the lower. As
at 12 March 2003, the maximum number of shares available for issue
under the Plan is 218,846.,016.

4. No participant shall be granted an option which, if exercised in full,
would result in such participant’s maximum entitlement to exceed 25

per cent of the maximum aggregate number of shares subject to the

Plan.

5. The exercise period of any option granted under the Plan must not

be more than ten years commencing on the date of grant.

0. The acceptance of an offer of the grant of the option must be made
within 28 days from the date of grant with a non-refundable payment

of 1K$1.00 from the grantee.

7. The exercise price determined by the Board will be at least the
higher of (i) the closing price of the Company’s share as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant; (ii) the
average closing price of the Company’s share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant and (iii) the nominal value of

the Company’s shares.
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8. The Plan shall be valid and effective till 30 May 2010.

On 28 May 2002 options to subscribe for a total of the 11,550,000
shares in the Company listed in the table below representing 0.53% of
the issued share capital, at the exercise price of HK$18.20 per share,
were granted under the Plan. The closing price of the Company’s share
immediately before the date of grant was Hk$18.10. All options granted
and accepted can be exercised in whole or in part within 5 years from
the date of grant. All were accepted, and none were exercised, cancelled

or lapsed in the period up to 31 December 2002.

Number of Share Options
Granted during the period

8. Wt BUHAERE “F - FEEA =T
I -

WoEECAERA AN AN FERE
ot BTN R B AT A R s
18.20 JCRREE A AR A 3L 11,550,000 B (15
EEITRAZ 0.53%) 2 BEBHE « AN F R
JA BEHAR T H T 2 T Sy i 18.10 T
FITAT 45 L) 10 188 427 A 22 B PRCARE 35 T el 432 144 H 40
it s BN A B O U T 3 g B
o MRE—FE_F+-A=+—HIk
SR A BT DA T SRS R AL o

Wi #E i 2 R R H
Directors of the Company 8,100,000 AnFEH
Continuous Contract Employees 3,450,000 HESLIEER

Total 11,550,000
The fair value of an option on one Crric Pacific share granted in the

current period measured as at the date of grant of 28 May 2002 was

HKS5.47 on the following assumptions using the Black-Scholes option

pricing model:
B Exercise price of HK$18.20;

B Expected volatility of 45.3% (based on historical share price

movement):

B Expected annual dividend yield of 4.8% (based on historical

dividend payments);

B LEstimated expected life of the options granted is 5 years (the full
term of the outstanding option awards and therefore is the

maximum entry for this assumption);

B Five-year Hong Kong Exchange FFund Notes interest rate at the date

the options were granted was 4.74%; and

B A 5% risk-of-forfeiture adjustment in respect of the expectation that

some options will be forfeited over their estimated expected lifetime.
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The result of the Black-Scholes option pricing model can be
materially affected by changes in these assumptions so an option’s
actual value may differ from the estimated fair value of the options due
to limitations of the model.

All the options forfeited before expiry of the Plan will be treated as
lapsed options which will not be added back to the number of shares
available to be issued under the Plan.

As there is no accounting standard in Hong Kong governing the
accounting for employee stock option, their cost has not been

incorporated in the accounts.

Directors’ Interests in Securities of the Company

1. Shares in the Company and Associated Corporation
The interests of the Directors in shares of the Company or associated
corporations as at 31 December 2002 as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 29 of the Securities (Disclosure of

Interests) Ordinance (the “sp1 Ordinance™) were as follows:

Number of Shares

fiff LA Bt LA ) > A DA R AN
L — T UM (R AR - O B 2
T P L T R T M R A 7
SIS 2 At A

FITAT TS 2% T 3D 3 T 52 M 2z D A R
BAERA > AR Z 5t 8] L8817
IR -

FH A 7 88 Sz AT e 47 B AR 5L B HE A B O
RZEatHEf] > SCHBASE RN H A -

EERFLAFESZHES

1. FOERABEEZRG
RoFERTEF A= —H S BEES (W
FEMELR) MRl (THLEEmERi iRt )) SB200A T
RAFz st NGt sk » EF AL R SOLA
Wk 2 AR T

R EH
Personal Corporate Family Other
interests interests interests interests Total
AN HE 77 kIR Skt s FlbHz L
Crric Pacific Limited PEREERA Y
Larry Yung Chi Kin 400,381,000 400,381,000 Bt
Henry Fan Hung Ling 43,000,000 43,000,000 FERC
Vernon Francis Moore 3,200,000 3,200,000  HfEHE
(Note 1)(FHFE 1)
Peter Lee Chung Hing 500,000 500,000  #HAE
Norman Yuen Kee Tong 33.000 33,000  BrAls
Robert Ernest Adams 550,000 550,000 B
Liu Jifu 40,000 40,000 B
Hansen Loh Chung Hon 1,050,000 500,000 500,000 1,550,000 Fi gt
(Note 2)(F#5E 2)  (Note 2)(Ff3E 2)
André Desmarais 87,800 100,230,000 1,000 100,318,800 &5
(Note 3)(Kf3E 3)
Cathay Pacific Airways Limited B2 AH A
Hansen Loh Chung Hon 450,000 450,000 P

Note 1: Deemed interests held by the relevant Director and his family as contingent
beneficiaries of a discretionary trust.

Note 2: The corporate interests and the family interests of the relevant Director duplicate
each other as the 500,000 shares are held through a company in which the relevant Director
and his family are interested.

Note 3: In addition to the aforesaid, the relevant Director is also one of the trustees of a
Canadian discretionary trust which controls Canadian companies which owns 24,000
shares of the Company.
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2. Share Options in the Company 2. FAFZHE

As at 31 December 2002, the number of outstanding options granted WEZFHEF A= H o REHFEE R
by the Company to the Directors to subscribe for shares of the WrBISE 20 TR AF 2 B R Rt sk - AL
Company, as recorded in the register required to be kept under section AR T AR A L BBy 2 AT i T e S
29 of the spi Ordinance were as follows: HinF

Number of Share Options
of the Company

Directors KRAFERIERE — #HHF
Larry Yung Chi Kin 2,000,000  Z
Henry Fan Hung Ling 1,600,000  JEpgik
Vernon Francis Moore 1,000,000 HfEEE
Peter Lee Chung Hing 1,000,000 L
Norman Yuen Kee Tong 500,000 Pt
Robert Ernest Adams 300,000 EE&E
Yao Jinrong 300,000 Bk
Chang Zhenming 500,000  FHRH
Li Shilin 300,000  AAk
Carl Yung Ming Jie 300,000  FEMA
Liu Jifu 300,000  BIEi
Total 8,100,000  #t

As at 31 December 2002, none of the Directors has any other REEEZFEFZHAZT—H o KEFR
interests in the equity or debt securities of the Company or any AN I SOHAT AR B (o 28 540 HE i
associated corporations (within the meaning of the sp1 Ordinance) ) Z A AR 8 S b o BRI KR R
which have been entered in the register kept by the Company pursuant RERR R B 20 A A7) 7 MRAE 2 B w2
to section 29 of the spi Ordinance or as otherwise notified to the WSk > BURMREE Ll Rl TR ALY
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for HBRIE ST H A RIAC 2 7] R 52 Py Z AT A Mo At
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies. WS o
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Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 December 2002, the interests of substantial shareholders, other
than the Directors of the Company, in the equity securities of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under section

16(1) of the sp1 Ordinance are as follows:

Number of Shares

of the Company

FERR

RoFEEEF A=A RS
WRBIEE 16(1) A TIRFF 2 B4 ARt sk 1
TRH (RN TR ERHBRIN) AN FRAE S
ZHERIE

Name FLFAZRBME  HF

Crric Beijing 632,000,285  H{FdL

Crric HK 632,000,285  HEHRH

Heedon Corporation 498.424.285  Heedon Corporation

Honpville Corporation 310,988,221 Honpyville Corporation
Rockhampton Investments Limited 292,000,000  Rockhampton Investments Limited
Bloomfield Enterprises Corp. 292,000,000  Bloomtfield Enterprises Corp.
Earnplex Corporation 292,000,000  Earnplex Corporation

Crric 1K is a substantial shareholder of the Company indirectly
through the following wholly owned subsidiary companies by virtue of

section 8(2) of the sp1 Ordinance as follows:

Number of Shares of ik$0.40 each
BEAR AT (E 76 9 0.40 T2 R BLH

Name of Subsidiary Companies of Ciric HK

HeBSE IR DR 8(2)0 - I B
2 A A
Wk

5 B i 2 W 4 T

Affluence Limited 43,266,000
30,718,000
101,960,000
22,500,000

32,258,064

Winton Corp
Westminster Investment Inc
Jetway Corp

Cordia Corporation

Honpyville Corporation 310,988,221
Hainsworth Limited 80,376,000
Southpoint Enterprises Inc 10,000,000

Each of Affluence Limited, Winton Corp, Westminster Investment
Inc, Jetway Corp, Cordia Corporation, Honpville Corporation,
Hainsworth Limited and Southpoint Enterprises Inc holds the shares of
the Company beneficially. Accordingly, Honpville Corporation is a

substantial shareholder of the Company.
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Crric Beijing is the direct holding company of Ciric 1. Crric 1K is
the direct holding company of Heedon Corporation, Hainsworth
Limited, Affluence Limited and Barnsley Investments Limited. Heedon
Corporation is the direct holding company of Winton Corp, Westminster
Investment Inc, Jetway Corp, Kotron Company Ltd and Honpville
Corporation and Kotron Company Ltd is the direct holding company of
Cordia Corporation. Barnsley Investments Limited is the direct holding
company of Southpoint Enterprises Inc. Accordingly, the interests of
Ciric Beijing in the Company duplicate the interests of CrTic HK in the
Company. The interests of Crric 1K in the Company duplicate the
interests in the Company of all its direct and indirect subsidiary
companies as described above. The interests of Heedon Corporation in
the Company duplicate the interests in the Company of all its direct and
indirect subsidiary companies as described above. The interests of
Barnsley Investments Limited in the Company duplicate the interests in
the Company of its direct subsidiary company as described above and
the interests of Kotron Company Litd in the Company duplicate the
interests in the Company of its direct subsidiary company as described
above.

Rockhampton Investments Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary
company of Bloomfield Enterprises Corp, which in turn is a wholly
owned subsidiary company of Earnplex Corporation. Accordingly, the
interests of Earnplex Corporation duplicate the interests in the
Company of its direct and indirect subsidiary companies as described
above. Mr Larry Yung Chi Kin is the owner of the entire issued share
capital of Earnplex Corporation. The interests in the Company of
Rockhampton Investments Limited represent part of the corporate
interests of Mr Larry Yung Chi Kin as mentioned in the above section of

“Directors” Interests in Securities of the Company”.

PRI A AR BERERAH -
5 &£ Heedon Corporation > Hainsworth
Limited * Affluence Limited X Barnsley
Investments Limited 2 LR /AF © Heedon
Corporation % Winton Corp * Westminster
Investment Inc > Jetway Corp » Kotron
Company Ltd % Honpville Corporation Z H %
PERA T > 1 Kotron Company Ltd £ Cordia
Corporation ZHIEFEM AT o Barnsley
Investments Limited 5 Southpoint Enterprises
IncZ EHEFERAF o I > PEICRRALH
ZHESE AP E R AL A 2 RERR EUR - P fF
AU A ) 2 BE AR B LA B A7 L TR
BEAT 2 B A R A A 7 2 4R H /B © Heedon
CorporationA A 7] 2 H £ B b4 T A7
KR 2 B A R A A Rl 2 AR TG -
Barnsley Investments Limited A4/ 7 2 # 4
BELME b 2 B R AT 2 I 2 Rl IR A 7] 2 W i
% > i Kotron Company Ltd R4 R 2
it U B |3t R AT 2 R 8 R R A 3 Al 2
R R o

Rockhampton Investments Limited J3
Bloomfield Enterprises Corp 2 2 & @Al »
(AT IR Earnplex Corporation ZEEMBA
] o I > Earnplex Corporation A4/ 7 2 HE
i B b3t P AT WA A R IR A
A TR o REMELETI Earnplex
Corporation 2T BEITRAZHEA A -
Rockhampton Investments Limited A 42 7 2
a5 bt [EHFRA LN AR SR 2 e | — B
o i S ST A 2 A P A 2 e — R
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Directors’ Report

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares
During the year ended 31 December 2002, the Company made the
following repurchases of its own shares on the Stock Exchange for the

purpose of enhancing its earnings per share:

Price per Share

fE - HEdRORG
WEEFFEEF A= —HIEEE A
7 TG TR AT i [ A 2 P Ay o R AR R
JREF > T

TR AE1E
Aggregate
Price Paid
Number of Shares Highest Lowest E TS5
Repurchased BiE AT HKS million
Month/Year J 11 3 e nks #EHC nks i HT HEET A
December 2002 1,320,000 14.95 14.85 20 “FFTEATNA

These repurchased shares were cancelled upon repurchase and
accordingly the issued share capital of the Company was reduced by the
nominal value of these shares. The premium payable on repurchase was
charged against retained profit. An amount equivalent to the nominal
value of the shares cancelled of approximately HkS1 million was
transferred from retained profit to capital redemption reserve.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor its subsidiary
companies has purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares during
the year ended 31 December 2002 and the Company has not redeemed
any of its shares during the year ended 31 December 2002.

Service Contracts

As at 31 December 2002, there were no service contracts which were
not determinable by the employer within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation) between any
company in the Group and any Director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Arrangements for Acquisition of Shares or Debentures

Save as aforesaid in the above section of “Share Option Plan”. at no
time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiary
companies a party or parties to any arrangement to enable the Directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of

shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.
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Auditors
The accounts for the year have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who shall retire and, being eligible, shall offer

themselves for re-appointment.

Corporate Governance
During the year, the Company was in compliance with the Code of Best
Practice as set out in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on

the Stock Exchange.

By Order of the Board,
Larry Yung Chi Kin Chairman
Hong Kong, 12 March 2003
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Consolidated Profit and Loss Account FaRaR

for the year ended 31 December 2002 BE-FF A ZH=+—HILFE
Note

in 1KS million ligs 2002 2001 LI E B E

Turnover 2 22,316 17,251 BEH

Profit from Consolidated Activities 3 2,583 2,132 HARERRMN

Share of Profits less Losses of

Associated Companies 4 2,335 047 BiAe 4 vl ok 411
Net Finance Charges 5 (434) (504)  SH S
Profit before Taxation 4,484 2,575 BB A
Taxation 6 (377) (306) B
Profit for the Year 4,107 2,269  4EREF
Minority Interests (205) (159) A YIBMRER:
Profit Attributable to Shareholders 7 3,902 2,110  JBHEHEA A
Dividends 3 4,377) (1,753) Bess
Transfer to Reserves 21 (5) (6) AR
Earnings per Share (HkS) 9 1.78 0.96  HRAAN (BT

68



as at 31 December 2002

Note

Consolidated Balance Sheet FEBEARE

CEECEVF A HIEEE

in 1K$ million BT 2002 2001 LIS E S rR
Fixed Assets 12 15,804 14,702 R RE
Associated Companies 14 25,613 24.879 BEAY
Investments 15 7,600 8,449 #%E
Goodwill 16 282 353 R
Current Assets B
Properties held for sale 12 336 345 fEEYISE
Inventories 17 1,866 1,799 #E&
Listed investment 24 2,189 LWi#tE
Debtors, accounts receivable, JENCHRIE ~ FENCRSR -
deposits and prepayments 18 3,088 3.330 1 R HOR
Cash and bank deposits 2,545 4,031 BERBATER
7.859 12,204
Current Liabilities LB £
Bank loans, other loans and overdrafts HATER ~ HA A
Secured 63 72 LRl
Unsecured 467 2,158 A
Creditors, accounts payable, FEATHRIE - REAT ARG -
deposits and accruals 19 2,995 2,423 1% BB A OR
Provision for taxation 95 141 BUIHYEM
3,620 4,794
Net Current Assets 4,239 7.500 W E
Total Assets less Current Liabilities 53,538 55,883  H A MU A4
Long Term Borrowings 22 (8,737) (12,409) R
Deferred Taxation 23 (226) (215) MEREBH
24 44,575 43,259
Financed by j:&re 3/
Share Capital 20 875 876 A
Reserves 21 38,162 30,299
Proposed Dividend 3,720 1,314  #@#EBA
Shareholders’ Funds 42,757 41,489 WBKE4
Minority Interests 1,818 1,770 AEIBORAER
44,575 43,259
Larry Yung Chi Kin Director Rpe £H
Henry Fan Hung Ling Director R £
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Balance Sheet BEARE

as at 31 December 2002 ZERECEF A=A HIESE
Note
in 1KS million ligs 2002 2001 LI E B E
Fixed Assets 12 50 58 Me¥
Subsidiary Companies 13 38,026 40,995  WEAE
Associated Companies 14 2,493 2,801  BEAHE
Current Assets ¥
Debtors, accounts receivable, JEMCHRIE ~ RENICHRSX ~
deposits and prepayments 18 90 118 1 R OR
Cash and bank deposits 1,613 2,926 Bl LEATER
1,703 3,044
Current Liabilities R £ 4%
Bank loans, other loans and overdrafts SATE  HAE B X
Unsecured - 701 EHCAR
Creditors, accounts payable, JERTHRIE - BEATHRSR
deposits and accruals 19 62 08 1% B AR
62 769
Net Current Assets 1,641 2,275  GREERE
Total Assets less Current Liabilities 42,810 40,129 % R WU E) A4
Long Term Borrowings 22 (4,246) (8,051) R
38.564 38,078
Financed by g2 3]
Share Capital 20 875 876 Bk
Reserves 21 33,969 35,888  fufl
Proposed Dividend 3,720 1,314 ##RA
Shareholders’ Funds 38,564 38,078  BRE4
Larry Yung Chi Kin Director RufE BH
Henry Fan Hung Ling Director R
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(7]
for the year ended 31 December 2002 BE—FL A= HILFE 'I.IE_J
E
in 1K$ million 2002 2001 LU #oTat A :t'
Cash Flows from Consolidated Activities BB B e tz:
Profit from Consolidated Activities after FUBRHS B X 7 R :
Net Finance Charges 2,149 1,628 ZEAEH R "
Net interest expense 385 449 FILE RSO =
Income from investments (1,294) (1,509) A& H s -
Depreciation and amortisation 533 493 TEE R =
Amortisation of goodwill 17 11 s
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 23 36  HEEEEEZER
I8 7 2 W E
(Reversal of)/impairment loss of fixed assets 2) 75 ([14) /1
Profit on disposal of investment properties ) (2) WEREWEZEF
Profit on disposal of subsidiary companies 7) - BBz
Profit on disposal of investments 2) (4) WEREZHEF
Provision for impairment loss of unlisted investments 2 — R LTTRE R R
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 1,797 1177 RetE#EESEH B
Increase in inventories (68) (33) frEHsm
Decrease in debtors, accounts receivable, JENCHRIE ~ MEICHRRR ~ $id
deposits and prepayments 220 311 AR D
Decrease in listed investments 2,165 055 LHi#&EWD>
Increase/(decrease) in creditors, accounts payable, JMERTHRIE - HEATHRSR - #28 K
deposits and accruals 397 (480)  MERTHIENGIN (B
Effect of foreign exchange rates (28) (40) AN R 2
Cash Generated from Consolidated Activities 4,483 1.800 FFaRBELEZHE
Interest received 72 248 CURIE
Interest paid 617) (973) EfFE
Income taxes paid (226) (154) CAIET13H
Net Cash from Consolidated Activities 3,712 1,011  5FEHZILTH
Cash Flows from Investing Activities BHEHZBER R
Purchase of subsidiary companies (net of cash SEAMIE AR (FnBRArT 5
and cash equivalents acquired) (Note a) (1,809) (594) LRSS (M)
Purchase of additional interests in a subsidiary UNG) VNG Sl
company (28) (319)  H&m
Purchase of fixed assets (772) (1,839)  Fe AL E &
Investment in associated companies (743) - RERAFAZEE
Decrease/(increase) in investments 475 (152)  H&&EZWD/ Hm)
Proceeds on disposal of fixed assets 39 41 HEEEEERS
Proceeds on disposal of interest in an associated HEBEAFZ
company - 2 R TR
Proceeds on disposal of investments 17 486 HERENH
Disposal of subsidiary companies M E AR GER g2
(net of cash and cash equivalents) (Note b) 384 - Bl JAEmBi4) (MEED)
Decrease in amount due from
a substantial shareholder - 567  EFEBRXASHEZBDY
Proceeds on refund of purchase consideration 15 - BPEEAEERY
Decrease in loans to associated companies 1,088 061 fETEVEARZ B
Dividend income from associated companies 608 762 HEBEA R Z RSB
Income from investments 1,603 1,507  feHERE IRl
Net Cash from Investing Activities 1,377 1,422 KAREEHZHLTHE
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

in vKS million 2002 2001 LI E HCR
Cash Flows from Financing Activities KHME 2B &R
Repurchase of shares (20) (88) &My
New borrowings 1.835 6,784 Wit HoH
Repayment of loans (6.858) (7.880) fEREK
(Decrease)/increase in minority interests (145) 28 DUCRiEi s (W) 8
Dividends paid (1,971) (1,860) EIREE
Net Cash used in Financing Activities (7,159) (3,028) MRBEZBLETH
Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents (2,070) (595) Bl RSWBIEZ WA HH
Cash and Cash Equivalents at 1 January 4,574 5176 WR—H—HZBLEREMBEL
Effect of Foreign Exchange Rate Changes 9 (7) AW 2 p R
REPZA=Z—HZBER

Cash and Cash Equivalents at 31 December 2,513 4,574 W%
Analysis of the Balances of Cash and

Cash Equivalents BERENB SN
Cash and bank deposits 2,545 4,631 Bl REUTHER
Bank overdrafts (Note ¢) (32) (57)  SITESL (ke

2,513 4,574
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Notes to Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

a Purchase of subsidiary companies

HRERSRERME

a BARBLR

in vk$ million 2002 2001 LI M e B Tat
Net assets acquired ek v ¥
Fixed assets 3,295 52  [EEEE
Investments - 1 #E
Inventories - 242 R
Accounts receivable and prepayments 22 372 BEBORSR KA R
Cash and bank deposits 101 16 B&REITHFHR
Bank overdrafts - (9) #EX
Bank loans (898) - HRATE
Creditors and accrued charges (264) (359) AT HRIE K B A 3R0H
Deferred taxation - (4) EEHIA
Minority interests (311) (1) DHBCRHER
1,945 310
(Negative goodwill)/goodwill (35) 304 (AR e
1,910 674
Satisfied by X7
Cash 1,910 601 B4
Accounts payable - 73 HEAHRA
1,910 674
Analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents A BB A BR B R 2 B SR
in respect of the purchase of subsidiary companies Bl 2 A
in vk$ million 2002 2001 LU M BTt
Cash consideration 1,910 601 HHEMEE
Cash and bank deposits acquired (101) (16) WA Z Bl MRATAF 3K
Bank overdrafts acquired - 0 WEAZRITEL
1,809 594
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Notes to Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

b Disposal of subsidiary companies

OB B EN

b HEMELR

in 1KS million 2002 2001 LI e B E
Net assets disposal i3
Fixed assets 2,476 - WEEE
Accounts receivable and prepayments o1 - EMURE R B A FOE
Cash and bank deposits 751 - B KEBITENK
Accounts payable and accrued charges 67) - BEATRAR R OR
Bank loans (1,222) - RATEE
Minority interests (371) - RS

1,628 -
Profit on disposal 7 - EER

1,635 -
Satisfied by WA TG
Cash 1,635 - B%
Analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents B E M A7 2 Bl R R

in respect of the disposal of subsidiary companies BEeRATEZ N
in vk$ million 2002 2001 LUt B e B e
Cash consideration 1,635 - BiefEE
Cash and bank deposits disposed of (751) - MEZBEREITIER
384 -
¢ Reconciliation of the balance of cash and cash c ARSBRTER HEtERRE
equivalents in respect of bank loans, other loans and XZARRFARREFL
overdrafts HiR

in vk$ million 2002 2001 LUt B e B
Bank loans, other loans and overdrafts 530 2,230 SATER HA S FHOOE X
Bank loans and other loans (498) (2,173) ST B HA B K
Bank overdrafts 32 57 RITBEX
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(7]
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity TeEaEDE E
Jor the year ended 31 December 2002 BE—FL A= HILFE E
<
(72}
Note El
in uk$ million i 2002 2001 It B ora o
4
At 1 January 41,489 41304 —H—H 2
"
Share of Reserves of Associated S
Companies (512) 339 B A vl it E
Deficit on Revaluation of Properties (120) (157) PR EAG A2 4
Exchange Translation Differences 1 (3) MEEBTER
Reserves Released (12) (2) G

Net (Losses)/Gains Not Recognised

in the Consolidated Profit and AR5 R
Loss Account (643) 177 (8 Wi v
Profit Attributable to Shareholders 3,902 2,110  JBeBEAGERA)
Dividends 3 (1,971) (1.866) i
Repurchase of Shares (20) (88) Wk My
42757 41.037
Prior Year Adjustments LAE R
Share of associated company
for retirement benefits 1(a) - (148)  PifiBh 8 A W 2 B IkgA)
At 31 December 42,757 41,489 +=H=1—H
Representing f#
At 31 December after Proposed +ZA=+—HERA
Final and Special Dividends 39,037 40,175 St A T e e It B
Proposed Final Dividend 8 1,532 1,314 #EKRHBL
Proposed Special Dividend 8 2,188 - EEENBA
42,757 41,489
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Notes to the Accounts IR BB s

1 Significant Accounting Policies 1 FESFHEE

a Basis of Preparation a  HiRyEH

The accounts have been prepared in accordance with accounting AR H T IR R SR 2 et R AR
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and comply with WG ERTA T A M2 gatEll o dfF

accounting standards issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants. % & Z WA /B R ZE A RA A (TR
The recognition of exchange differences on certain long-term liabilities %) AT RIARZIE RIS Tk e

in Crric Pacific’s associated company Cathay Pacific Airways Limited FHEBER (T gstiEll ) S+—59 fe

(“Cathay Pacific”) does not comply with Hong Kong Statement of OB EHER (TR aFHER ) - B2

Standard Accounting Practice (“ssap”) No. 11 but does comply with % 2 BORBREHUR T S0 BRI T 1p B o

International Accounting Standards (“1as”) and Cathay Pacific’s policy &N EDELS 3 U VRS TR G T

is explained in accounting policy Note 1p below. B RO R R 2 bR AR
The accounts are prepared under the historical cost convention as Al o A7 BBREROR N 302 AT EURA -

modified by the revaluation of investment properties and listed AR T BRI A B R AR AR i T R

investments not held for long term as explained in the accounting Al 2 A arat ] A gt e

policies set out below. =k g BAEA ] R a8
The Group adopted new or revised ssaps, particularly ssap No. 34 (BAEHT) [N | o BRIFBIZR 22 SR AN s

“Employee Benefits” and ssap No. 11 (revised) “Foreign Currency Gt E RS =PRI A T E R E AL )

Translation” which became effective for the current financial year. R 8 8 Rl D s o — (300 T\ T B TAh > R

These adoptions have no significant impact on the Group’s financial RS Vs O A A ) T R I i

statements except that the adoption of ssap No. 34 by Cathay Pacific, N7

has reduced Ciric Pacific’s attributable opening retained earnings by

HK$148 million.

b Basis of Consolidation b &HFIRHZHEH

The consolidated accounts incorporate the accounts of the Company LA NRHE TSRO A B B AT E A R EE

and all its subsidiary companies made up to the balance sheet date. The — £H HIEZ8RH o PAE R BOH R 2 8
results of subsidiary companies acquired or disposed of during the year AT 2 A A PO 2 A A H AR R kT
are included as from the effective dates of acquisition or up to the FHBEZAMHEBAIE -

effective dates of disposal respectively.

¢ Goodwill c g

Positive goodwill arising on acquisition of subsidiary companies and TR i S 2 ) i A ) T A 2 I PR
associated companies represents the excess of the cost of the acquisition — HUi R A A< 5[5 18 A6 i i i v] 9% 58
over the Group’s share of the fair value of the identifiable assets and KEBZ AR B -

liabilities acquired.

B for acquisitions before 1 January 2001, positive goodwill was B O FFF ] HZ R PET 2 0
written off to reserves in the year of acquisition or amortised over a ST 55+ 1F PO T IS WSO A FE T ff 4
period no longer than its useful life to the Group. M o R AR S B A A A AR

s o
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for acquisitions on or after 1 January 2001, positive goodwill is B R CEE - HEZ B2
amortised on a straight line basis over its estimated useful life not WOHETHT 5 > IE PR D iR R R A
exceeding 20 years. ZAGEF AT RE AR DA B AR 8
Negative goodwill arising on acquisition of subsidiary companies W B A W) B Bk A mI T EE AR 2 B "
and associated companies represents the excess of the Group’s TR A S R G A S T R z
share of the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities B 2 T E A R O A 2 B =
acquired over the cost of the acquisition. o
for acquisitions before 1 January 2001, negative goodwill was B T BT 2
credited to the capital reserve. RIS > AR BAGAREA -
for acquisitions on or after 1 January 2001, to the extent that B O EFTE A A2 RET
negative goodwill relates to an expectation of future losses and WCHRETTT & - i £ BRI ST R A R Ak
expenses that are identified in the plan of acquisition and can be B 2 R B S (A 18 3 7
measured reliably, it is recognised in the consolidated profit and WS - o SN R T SR MR o A
loss account when the future losses and expenses are recognised. J2 T PR R H A B 2 e R 3L
Any remaining negative goodwill, but not exceeding the fair values S TE A7 5 TR G R P T« T (TRIBR 2
of the non-monetary assets acquired, is recognised in the AR (R ITOEE g E 2 A
consolidated profit and loss account over the weighted average PEE) JIR %S T TE E] T
useful life of those non-monetary assets that are depreciable or R B W A 2 T T AR B T R
amortisable except that negative goodwill representing discount on AR R EARIUER &Y ¥
acquisition of investment properties is carried in the consolidated P dn 2 AR RS A SRS B E A
balance sheet for setting off valuation deficit in future. Negative > DMGIRE B B 2 A A -
goodwill in excess of the fair value of the non-monetary assets T E B R E AT EE AW
acquired is recognised immediately in the consolidated profit and PRI e AR A 4R A AR b TERD
loss account. TE R 2 PR A ol 22 A B % (s 4R
Positive goodwill is stated in the consolidated balance sheet as a B BEEEAIIA G EREARBEN
separate asset or included within associated companies at cost less WABEAFIAT (M 10) o MR
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses (see Note 1n). GOHARERZAMBTIUEREZ
Negative goodwill not yet recognised in the consolidated profit and W X BUR o DU A R 2 w2
loss account is shown as a deduction from positive goodwill. L
Goodwill previously included in reserves need not be restated.

d Subsidiary Companies d WBAH

TABHE > 7] 2 BEE TS AA S B RS

Investments in subsidiary companies are carried at cost less impairment

losses.
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Notes to the Accounts

1 Significant Accounting Policies continued

e Associated Companies

Associated companies are companies, other than subsidiary companies,
in which the Group holds not more than 50 per cent of their equity
share capital for the long term and can exercise significant influence in
their management.

The consolidated profit and loss account includes the Group’s share
of the results of associated companies for the year adjusted by
amortisation and impairment losses of goodwill, if any. The
consolidated balance sheet includes the Group’s share of net assets of
the associated companies, after attributing fair values to the net assets
at the date of acquisition.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in associated
companies are stated at cost less impairment losses. The results of
associated companies are accounted for by the Company on the basis of

dividends received and receivable.

f Depreciation

All fixed assets except investment properties, properties held for
development and construction in progress are carried at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Changes in the value of investment properties reflecting market
conditions, depreciation and other factors are incorporated in the
annual accounts on the basis set out in Note 1g.

Freehold land is not amortised. Leasehold land is depreciated over
the remaining portion of the relevant lease.

Amortisation of vehicular tunnel (including land and buildings) is
provided for over the franchise period on the basis of a sinking fund
calculation whereby annual amounts compounded at the rate of 7% per
annum will equal the net cost of the tunnel.

Other fixed assets are depreciated at rates sufficient to write off their
cost or valuation, less impairment losses, if any, over their estimated
useful lives on a straight line basis at the following annual rates:

B Buildings: 2%-4% or the remaining lease period of the land

B Other fixed assets, comprising telecommunications equipment,
traffic equipment, cargo lighters, computer installations, motor
vehicles, plant and machinery, furniture, fixtures and equipment:

10%-25%
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g Investment Properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings in respect of
which construction work and development have been completed and
which are held for their investment potential.

Investment properties held on leases with unexpired periods greater
than twenty years are valued at intervals of not more than three years
by independent valuers; in each of the intervening years, valuations are
undertaken by professionally qualified personnel. The valuations are on
an open market value basis related to individual properties and
separate values are not attributed to land and buildings. The valuations
are incorporated in the annual accounts. Increases in valuation are
credited to the investment property revaluation reserve; decreases are
first set off against increases on earlier valuations on a portfolio basis
and thereafter are charged to operating profit.

Investment properties held on leases with unexpired periods of
twenty vears or less are depreciated over the remaining portion of the
leases.

Upon the disposal of an investment property, the relevant portion of
the revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is
released from the investment property revaluation reserve to the profit

and loss account.

h Properties held for Development

Properties held for development consist of investments in land for
future development and buildings under construction and properties
under development pending any positive intention either to retain them
for investment purposes or to sell them for proceeds. The investments

are stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

i Capitalisation of Development Costs
Property development expenditure, inclusive of interest and
professional fees, is capitalised as cost of development.

Borrowing costs incurred on assets under development that take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale are
capitalised into the carrying value of the assets under development.

The capitalisation rate applied to funds borrowed for the
development of the assets is based on the attributable cost of funds to
the Group.

All other borrowing costs are charged to the profit and loss account

in the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Accounts

1 Significant Accounting Policies continued

j
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Revenue Recognition

(i)

(i)

Motor vehicles

Revenue arising from the sale of motor vehicles is recognised
when the registration document is issued or on delivery of
motor vehicles, whichever is earlier, which are taken to be the
point in time when the customer has accepted the goods and the
related risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes any

government taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Sales of properties under development and properties held for
sale
Income from sales of properties under development is
recognised when the properties developed for sale are sold in
advance of completion and the outcome of projects can be
ascertained with reasonable certainty by reference to the
construction progress. Profit is recognised over the course of the
development and is computed in each year as a proportion of
the total estimated profit of the development. The proportion
used is calculated by reference to the proportion of construction
costs incurred to date to the estimated total construction costs to
completion of the development and the extent of the sales
proceeds received, after taking into account due allowance for
contingencies.

Income from properties held for sale is recognised at the date

when sale agreement is signed.

(iii) Income from co-operative joint venture

Where the Group has been guaranteed a minimum rate of
return on its investment in co-operative joint ventures, income
is accrued at the minimum rate of return, and any return in
excess of the minimum is recognised in the year in which it is
received, or becomes receivable.

Other income or dividend from co-operative joint venture is
recognised when the right to receive is established.

Income from disposal of co-operative joint venture is

recognised at the date when sale agreement is signed.
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(iv) Other goods
Revenue arising from the sale of other goods is recognised on
the delivery of goods to customers. Revenue is determined after

deduction of any trade discounts.

(v) Rendering of services
Commission income and revenue arising from the rendering of
repairing services are recognised when the goods concerned are
sold to customers and when the relevant work is completed

respectively.

(vi) Revenue from the provision of telecommunications services is

recognised upon delivery of the services.

(vii) Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the
dividend is established.
Dividends proposed or declared after their balance sheet
date by companies in which the Group has an investment are
not recognised as revenue at the balance sheet date but on the

date when the right to receive is established.

k Properties held for Sale
Properties held for sale are classified under current assets and are stated

at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

1 Investments

Co-operative joint ventures in the People’s Republic of China are stated
at cost (net of capital repayment) less impairment losses or where
appropriate, amortised over a period no longer than its estimated useful
life to the Group.

Interest in other listed and unlisted investments held for the long
term are stated at cost less impairment losses. The carrying amounts of
individual listed investments are reviewed at each balance sheet date to
assess whether the fair values have declined below the carrying
amounts. When a decline other than temporary has occurred, the
carrying amount of such securities is reduced to its fair value. The
amount of the reduction is recognised as an expense in the profit and

loss account.
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Notes to the Accounts

1 Significant Accounting Policies continued

Interest in other listed investments not held for the long term are
carried at fair value. At each balance sheet date, the net unrealised
gains or losses arising from the changes in fair value of such
investments are recognised in the profit and loss account. Profits or
losses on disposal of such investments, representing the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amounts, are

recognised in the profit and loss account as they arise.

m Operating Leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the leasing company are accounted for as operating
leases. Rentals payable and receivable under operating leases are
accounted for on a straight line basis over the respective periods of the

leases.

n Impairment of Assets

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of assets including goodwill
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. If such
assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognised in
the profit and loss account is measured by the amount by which the

carrying amount of the assets exceeds the recoverable amount.

o Inventories

Inventories comprising mainly motor vehicles, spare parts, electrical
appliances, food, trading items and steels are valued at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost represents the actual cost of purchase and
is calculated on the first-in first-out, specific identification or weighted
average basis as appropriate. Net realisable value is determined by
reference to the sale proceeds of items sold in the ordinary course of
business after the balance sheet date, and in other cases, to
management’s estimates based on prevailing market conditions and net

1‘eplacement costs.
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p Foreign Currencies

The balance sheets of subsidiary companies and associated companies
expressed in foreign currencies are translated at the rates of exchange
ruling at the balance sheet date whilst the profit and loss accounts are
translated at an average rate. Exchange differences arising are dealt
with as a movement in reserves.

Transactions arising in foreign currencies during the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at market rates ruling at the balance sheet date.
Exchange differences arising in these cases are dealt with in the profit
and loss account with the following exception:

Cathay Pacific prepares its accounts on the basis that borrowings
and leasing obligations relating to aircraft and related equipment are so
arranged that repayments are covered by the anticipated future
operating cash flows in the related currencies in order to reduce
exposure to exchange rate fluctuations. Any unrealised exchange
differences on these borrowings, leasing obligations and currency
derivatives, and on related security deposits in Cathay Pacific’s balance
sheet, are recognised directly in equity via the Statement of Changes in
Equity. These exchange differences are included in the profit and loss
account as an adjustment to revenue in the same period or periods
during which the hedged transaction affects the net profit and loss. As
mentioned in Note 1a this complies with 1as but does not comply with
ssap No. 11 which would have required the exchange differences to pass
through the profit and loss account. The directors of Cathay Pacific
consider the adopted treatment gives the accounts a true and fair view

and the auditors of Cathay Pacific agree.

q Deferred Taxation

Deferred taxation is accounted for at the current tax rate in respect of
material timing differences between profit as computed for taxation
purposes and profit as stated in the accounts to the extent that a
liability and/or asset is expected to be payable or receivable in the

foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Accounts

2 Turnover

The principal activity of the Company is holding its subsidiary

companies and the principal activities of its principal subsidiary

companies are set out in Note 30 to the accounts.

Turnover of the Group comprises the total invoiced value of goods

supplied net of government taxes where applicable, and services

rendered to customers, fees from provision of telecommunication

services, gross proceeds from sale of investments and properties,

amounts received and receivable in respect of dividends, income from

co-operative joint ventures, toll income, gross property rental and

godown and cold storage income, analysed as follows:

Group %8

JR H It it

2 Bxu:
AN T 2 TR B A SC B A W) o i PO b
JB 8 R 2 T BB RO AR B I EE 30 -

AL 2 EEFEFEEMER S (W
WA BANBRBUNBUH) R Res « R
i~ BB - hERERYETHR
o MBS T B R - KA GTERE
NEZBON - BEENCE - SIS URE
R B AT

in vKS million 2002 2001 Lk EETHE
Sales of goods 13,953 11,738 E&R#E
Sale of investment in optical fibre

network under construction 1,635 - HERCEEEKER TR RE
Services rendered to customers 1,771 1,253 REETEEZRE
Dividend income and income from

co-operative joint ventures 1,290 1,509  BEUA LATERE A A
Toll income 511 520  BEEIE
Others 3,156 2,231 Ffh

22,316 17.251
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Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s business O BB T4 A SR ) 2 S b B [l
and geographical segments. Business segment information is chosen as G EELIEB A BEA T EZ BERX
the primary reporting format because this is more relevant to the BCEREAT) 5 A T 2 R B R o
Group’s internal financial reporting. PATF Ry e S5 8103 2 SR I8 SE RN AT "
An analysis of the Group’s turnover by business is as follows: z
&
Group Segment allocations Segment turnover
&5 Vg B R SR
in uk$ million 2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001 pis¥aE# e
Power and Civil Infrastructure 1,737 2.657 - - 1,737 2,057  EETE R AT
Communications 2,887 806 - - 2,887 806 f5BE%
Marketing & Distribution 11,212 9,604 - - 11,212 9,604  HYE RArEs
Property 460 227 8 125 548 352 W%
Industrial Manufacturing 3,581 2,859 - - 3,581 2,850 T ERE
Others 2,439 1,098 - - 2439 1,098 Hit
22316 17,251 38 125 22404 17,376
An analysis of the Group’s turnover by geographical area is as PR 2 4 st P [ 3ol ) 4 2 4R T R
follows: AL

Group S

in 1IK$ million 2002 2001 LIS B oE
Hong Kong 10,094 8,598 FHik
Mainland China 11,066 7373
Japan 465 443 HA
Others 691 837  Hith

22,316 17,251
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Notes to the Accounts

3 Profit from Consolidated Activities

An analysis of the Group’s profit from consolidated activities by

business is as follows:

JR H It it

3 RaRKEN
AR o % 3675 81 7 2 S B AR SERR U MM

Group Segment allocations Segment profit
SEH Vg Ev/ v Vig: Ei 2yl
in uk$ million 2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001  Li#¥HETHE
Power and Civil Infrastructure 1,481 1,698 - - 1,481 1,098 ¥ %E KR
Communications 300 155 - — 300 155 fFE¥
Marketing & Distribution 320 226 (88) (125) 232 101 8% Ko
Property 349 181 88 125 437 306 W
Industrial Manufacturing 230 221 - - 230 221 LR
Others 213 - - - 213 - Hfth
Less: General & Administration
Expenses (360) (349) - - (360) (349) W —RRATECE A
2,583 2,132 - - 2,583 2,132
Group %8
in 1KS million 2002 2001 LUt M e BT
The profit from consolidated activities is
arrived at after crediting B KBl FIC A
Dividend income from listed investments 98 151 KA LHHREZBERA
Dividend income from unlisted investments 290 308  AHFE EHHEREZBEA
Rental income from HAERA
Investment properties e ¢7ES
Gross income 397 210 Al zR
Less: Direct outgoings (84) (36) W B
313 174
Other operating leases 120 101 Hoph 8 A A
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in 1S million 2002 2001 s aETHE
And after charging eIk
Cost of sales (Note) 17,236 12,602 SERA (M) ”
including cost of inventories of BRFEERABE - TR Z
HK$11,998 million NTNEET (CFF—4 =
(2001: HKS9,626 million) BRI AEZTAEET)
Distribution costs (Note) 692 086  HEHEA (HfEE)
Other operating costs (Note) 1,803 1,605  HAWEERA ()
Auditors’ remuneration 12 12 T T
Contributions to staff retirement
schemes 55 55 = VEL e AL
Depreciation and amortisation 533 493 e T
Amortisation of goodwill 17 11 [k
(Reversal of)/impairment loss HoAb [ 52 B 2
on other fixed assets 2) 75 (E4) /18
Management fee payable to China
International Trust & Investment ST BB R EEARE
Corporation Hong Kong (Holdings) () ARAR
Limited (“Crric nk”) 2 2 (MhEHRE]) 28
Operating lease rentals BEMHHSE
land and buildings 123 124 -+
Unrealised net loss from listed
investments 2 166  EiifkE 2 REE BT 1R
Note: T -
Included in cost of sales, distribution costs and other operating costs are staff costs of CIFTEHE LA - AR RAMEE A2 BT
HK$7,331 million (2001: vk$1,250 million) AR =ZE=T—ABT (ZFFE4F g
ZEETHT
The Group’s total future minimum lease payments receivable under PAITN By A SR 18 H AR AR IR AS T e 2 8 6
non-cancellable operating leases are as follows: 21 EMSO . S AR AR 40 ) S R -
in 1K$ million 2002 2001 s aETHE
Within 1 year 305 174 —FRK
After 1 year but within 5 years 279 184  —FRMERIER
After 5 years 17 7 LK
601 365
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Notes to the Accounts

4 Share of Profits less Losses of Associated Companies

Group SEH

JR H It it

4 FEBELRRFHER

in UKS million 2002 2001 LU e B Ou 1 E
By business T AT
Aviation 1,214 223 Mz
Power and Civil Infrastructure 138 120 #5E KARELE
Communications 339 175 fEE%
Marketing & Distribution 44 48 BHE KA
Property 596 381 Y%
Others 4 - Hit
2,335 947
5 Net Finance Charges 5 MBIHBE
Group %8
in UKS million 2002 2001 Lt e BOC R E
Interest expense FLE S
Bank loans and overdrafts wholly
repayable within five years 204 588  ARHFENETERZ ITERNE L
Bank loans not wholly repayable
within five years 1 13 RNERHAERETBE R BT K
Other loans wholly repayable
within five years 119 143 ZERHAFERNETRERE 2 HA S
Other loans not wholly repayable
within five years 268 156  AZEN LA R ER 2 HAl S
602 900
Less: Amount capitalised (112) (210) B CBAEAZHH
490 690
Interest income (105) (241)  FLEMEA
385 449
Other finance charges 49 55  HAhBtH L
434 504
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6 Taxation

Hong Kong profits tax has been calculated at the rate of 16% (2001:
16%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year. Overseas taxation
has been calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the year at the

rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group

6 WA

T v IR T LRZAF 1A £l 1B B 0 452 16%
B (CEEAE10%) FHE AR
JYLAAE P 2 At HERL it 1 1% 42 A S5 2
Wl 2 BATBURFR -

operates.
Group %M

in HKS million 2002 2001 LIS E S oA
Company and subsidiary companies A0 F R A 7]
Hong Kong profits tax 116 108 FHEFIHEH
Overseas taxation 32 74 BHMBLIH
Deferred taxation (Note 23) 9 (16) EERIA (st 23)

157 166

Associated companies

Hong Kong profits tax 102 44
Overseas taxation 108 81
Deferred taxation 10 15
220 140
377 306

7 Profit Attributable to Shareholders

The Group’s profit attributable to shareholders is dealt with in the
accounts of the Company to the extent of HK$2,477 million (2001:
HKS2,182 million).

g s Al
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Notes to the Accounts HEA b7
8 Dividends 8 KR
in 1KS million 2002 2001 LIt M E B
CRE - FRBIKE
2001 Final dividend paid: Hk$0.60 ﬁﬂﬁ%"ﬁﬁ‘ 0.60 7T
(2000: HKS0.65) per share 1.314 1,427 TERETAE W 0.65 7T)
CIRE —ZZ AP HIRE
2002 Interim dividend paid: nk$0.30 T 0.30 T
(2001: HKS0.20) per share 657 439 TERFA 0,20 70)
HE_ZEFERPKE
2002 Final dividend proposed: Hk$0.70 &Exfé"ﬁﬁ‘ 0.70 7t
(2001: HK$0.00) per share 1,532 1,314 ZEREAF R 0.60 70)
i%# 22 #E#’J’E”E
2002 Special dividend proposed: Hk$1.00 TR 1.00 7T
(2001: 1kSnil) per share 2,188 - (ZFF 4 )
4,377 1,753
Dividend per share (11k$) 2.00 0.80 RS, (HoT)

9 Earnings per Share

The calculation of earnings per share is based on profit attributable to
shareholders of 11k$3,902 million (2001: 11k$2,110 million) and on the
weighted average number of 2.189.736.763 shares for the year (2001:

2,194,242.004 shares).

No diluted earnings per share is presented for the year ended 31

December 2002 as the exercise of all the share options outstanding

during the year have no dilutive effect on the earnings per share.
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10 Directors’ Emoluments 10 EEMS
Group %5
in uk$ million 2002 2001 pis¥a i
Fees 1.9 2.0 #H%
Salaries 13.6 154 %%
Bonuses 94.2 66.6  fEAL
109.7 34.0
The Directors’ emoluments are analysed as follows: HHMEMTUT
Number of directors
HEAY
2002 2001
Emoluments Bands P2 7
HKS0 - 1K$1,000,000 7 7 W0 T £ % 1,000.000 T
Hk$1,000,001 - 1k$1,500,000 - 2 % 1,000,001 ot & #% 1,500,000 J©
1k$1,500,001 - 1k$2,000,000 5 3 1,500,001 & & W 2,000,000 IE
Hk$2.500.001 - 1k$3,000,000 1 - % 2,500,001 ot & #% 3,000,000 7T
1k$3,000,001 - 1k$3,500,000 - 1 ##3,000,001 & % % 3,500,000 It
1HKk$4,000,001 - 1K$4.,500,000 1 - % 4,000,001 ot & #% 4,500,000 7T
1HK$4,500,001 - 1K$5,000,000 - 1 % 4,500,001 ot & #% 5,000,000 7T
HK$9.000.001  — 1k$9,500,000 - 1 #%9.000,001 76 & #H 9.500,000 T
1k$11,000,001 — 1k$11,500,000 1 - % 11,000,0017C £ #%¥ 11,500,000 70
1k$11,500,001 — 1k$12,000,000 - 1 % 11,500,0017C & #%¥ 12,000,000 70
1k$13,000,001 — 1k$13,500,000 - 1 13,000,001 % ¥ 13,500,000 7
1k$15,000,001 — 1k$15,500,000 1 1 % 15,000,0017C & #%¥ 15,500,000 70
1k$17,000,001 — 1k$17,500,000 1 - % 17,000,0017C £ #%¥ 17,500,000 70
1k$18,000,001 — 1k$18,500,000 - 1 18,000,001 % ¥ 18,500,000 7
1k$23,000,001 — 1k$23,500,000 1 - 1 23,000,0017C & #% 23,500,000 70
1k$27,000,001 — 1k$27.500,000 1 - 1 27,.000,0017C & #% 27,500,000 70

Emoluments paid to independent non-executive directors during the

year amounted to HKS0.7 million (2001: HK$0.8 million).

The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the year were

also directors and their emoluments are reflected in the analysis

presented above.

On 28 May 2002, 8,100,000 share options were granted to certain

directors of the Company under the Ciric Pacific Share Incentive Plan

2000.

AR B AT ES e B

T (CEFE AL -
RS RPN 2 (A

R A BB TR R A L2 AT

WoREHEREATHAH > BERER
BT B R TR AT AN R E R
7445 8,100,000 143 HEAHE -
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Notes to the Accounts

11 Retirement Benefits
Crric Pacific Limited operates two principal schemes to provide
retirement benefits for employees of the Group.

The Crric Group Retirement Plan (“0rso Plan”) is a defined
contribution scheme registered under the Occupational Retirement
Schemes Ordinance and has obtained an exemption certificate having
satisfied the requirements of the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance. The Group has appointed an independent trustee who in
turn appointed the investment managers and plan administrator to
manage the 0rso Plan in accordance with the Trust Deed and Rules.
Employees are offered a choice of investments and the Trustee issues
statements to members of the 0rso Plan twice a year.

A Ciric Group Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“mpr Scheme™)
offers a choice to employees who opt not to join the orso Plan. The ypr
Scheme is managed through a master trust offered by an independent
service provider.

Contributions to the 0rso Plan are in accordance with the Trust
Deed and Rules whilst contributions to the MpF Scheme are at rates
specified in the terms of the master trust scheme. Assets of the 0rso
Plan and the mpr Scheme are held separately in funds managed and

administered by the respective trustees. Forfeited contributions under

the 0rso Plan are credited to the accounts of the remaining members of

the Plan in proportion to their account balances.
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12 Fixed Assets

12 EERE

a Group a %M
Properties
Investment — Self-used held for — Vehicular Others
properties  properties development tunnel (Note ii) Total
i Hty
in HKS million KREYFE  HAYE ZYFE IR (Wf7tii) M LUBEHE A
Cost or valuation A E
At 1 January 2002 5,357 3,293 487 1,983 6,275 17,395 —“FLTHE—A—H
Exchange adjustments 23 b - - 1 29 iR
Additions 1 15 140 - 690 840 HE
Disposals i
through disposal of subsidiary
companies - - - - (2,476) (2,476) LA
others (19) ) (1) - (237) (274) HAtyr X
Revaluation deficit (52) - - - - (52) EfhEL 2L
Reclassification (67) 69 - - 2) - EHNE
Acquisition of subsidiary companies 3,250 - - - 69 3319  WEMEAR
At 31 December 2002 8,493 3,375 616 1,983 4,320 18,787 _“EFEF_HE+_A=1—H
Accumulated depreciation AR
At 1 January 2002 - 540 - 494 1,659 2,693 —EEXTEHE—-J—H
Exchange adjustments - 1 - - 1 2 R
Charge for the year - 67 - 62 333 462  AEEHE
Reversal of impairment loss - - - - (2) (2) WA I
Written back on disposals - (2) - - (194) (196) H A ]
Acquisition of subsidiary companies - - - - 24 24 WUEHE AR
At 31 December 2002 - 606 - 556 1,821 2,983 “EE_HE+A=1—H
Net book value HRmTFE
At 31 December 2002 8,493 2,769 616 1,427 2,499 15,804 “EE_HE+A=1—H
At 31 December 2001 5,357 2,753 487 1,489 4,010 14,702 Z“FF—HF+-A=1+—H
The analysis of cost or valuation of the above assets is as follows: AR AR A
THAE
At cost - 3.375 616 1,983 4,320 10,294 A
At professional valuation — 2002 8,493 - - - - 8,493  HEEfhE - —FE A
8,493 3.375 616 1,983 4,320 18,787
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Notes to the Accounts

12 Fixed Assets continued
Note:

(i) Interest capitalised in fixed assets other than investment properties amounts to nK$41
million (2001: nk$106 million).

(it)  Other fixed assets comprise traffic equipment, cargo lighters, computer installations,
telecommunications equipment, motor vehicles, plant and machinery, furniture, fixtures and
equipment.

(i) During the year, the Group acquired interests in two Shanghai properties together
with the I(’[(t/(‘d shareholders loans from a substantial 9/1(110/10/(/0/ Crric HK. In a(/dll/on the
Group disposed its 80% interests in the Optical Fibre Network to Crric 1. Details of the both
transactions are disclosed in the circulars to shareholders on 2 January 2002 and 22
January 2002 respectively.

Group E[

HRH Wt

12 BERE #
Wit

(i) BREEYFI - TEREEENCHEAERZFE
MR HTF— BT (ZFE—F B —EAE
HiT) -

(i) HALELE EE AT E R - HER - TS
g~ Al > PVH - B I ﬂﬁﬂ 21

(iti)  FEAFA > ALE B i 4 B R 5 BB A W E L
VYR W R R o WAL > A IE B
ENAATAE L S0% Weds i BT 5 il - ZMIAK
52 AR ZFE A~ Z H R FE A —
HZTZH&HFFIRFEZ BRI -

in 1KS million 2002 2001 LIt M e B
Analysis of additions by business LT F| 73 2 K BT
Power and Civil Infrastructure 5 3 BE AR
Communications 238 1,436 f5E¥%
Marketing & Distribution 168 223 S K EE
Property 3,467 223 Y
Industrial Manufacturing 2380 206 LR
Others 3 2 HAtw
Corporate 4 16 EEE

4.165 2.109

Analysis of additions by geographical area

Hong Kong 272 374
Mainland China 3,852 1,709
Japan & Others 41 20

4,165 2,109

Analysis of depreciation by business

Power and Civil Infrastructure 65 61
Communications 53 29
Marketing & Distribution 108 111
Property 43 35
Industrial Manufacturing 181 175
Others - 2
Corporate 12 10

462 423

Analysis of (reversal of )/impairment loss
by business
Marketing & Distribution (2) 5
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b Company b 4

Motor vehicles, equipment,

Surniture and fixtures

in uk$ million VRH > R ERREE LIBFEECAE
Cost A
At 1 January 2002 9% “FFHFE-H—H
Additions 3 WE
Disposals 4) W&
At 31 December 2002 9 5_ “EFE-F+-HA=+—H
Accumulated depreciation LR
At 1 January 2002 38 XL HFE—J—H
Charge for the year 10 AFEHE
Written back on disposals 3) 8 ]
At 31 December 2002 ______________4!55_ “EEHEFAZ1—H
Net book value W 7 E
At 31 December 2002 50 —“FX-H+-H=+—H
At 31 December 2001 58 —“FZ—#+-H=+—H
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Notes to the Accounts

12 Fixed Assets continued

¢ The tenure of the properties of the Group is as follows:

JR H It it

12 BERE #
¢ AREEYEZFHT

Properties
Investment Self-used held for
properties properties  development Total
in vk$ million REWE HEYH  FEEZYE k] LU B B a
Leasehold properties
held in Hong Kong A
Long term lease 590 19 - 609 RIAHA
Medium term lease 4,021 2,185 267 6,473 HHEATRA
Short term lease - 76 - 76 Je HARH A
Properties held overseas CZL/ES
Freehold 232 228 - 460 KAENE
Long term lease 750 - 349 1,099 RHAA
Medium term lease 2,900 867 - 3,767 AT A
8,493 3,375 616 12,434
d Property valuation d kAl

The Group’s investment properties have been independently revalued

on an open market value basis as at 31 December 2002. The details of

the independent qualified valuers are as follows:

ARSI B A TR %
T S AT AR AT -
WSRO T

Properties located in Valuers fi{EHT VESNS
Hong Kong Knight Frank 017 i
Japan Tekko Building Co., Limited H A
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e Fixed assets and properties held for sale under current assets of the

Group let under operating leases to generate rental income are as

e ASEERR R A R DL E ARSI
ZEERERPREEERA T ZHEWE

follows: LN
Other Fixed  Properties
Investment Self-used Sived assels held for
properties  properties assels total sale
Hty AT E B

in 1IK$ million BREYFE EliE/ES e B HEYE  LUBWHECHE
Cost or valuation 8,493 25 197 8,715 316 WAEGE
Accumulated depreciation - 3) (86) (89) - B
Net book value at SR HE

31 December 2002 8,493 22 111 8,626

316 —EZ b A=A

Depreciation charges

for the year - - 26 26

- AREERE

f Pledge of fixed assets

As at 31 December 2002, certain of the Group’s self-used properties,
other fixed assets and investment properties with the carrying value of
HKS100 million (2001: HKS78 million), HKS79 million (2001: HKS32
million) and HKS64 million (2001: HKSnil) respectively were pledged to
secure loans and banking facilities granted to certain subsidiary

companies of the Group.

f P e R
REERZZHEFTA=+—H o AEEL TR
W E 7 A — T (CFE—4 it
TABEL B TLEET (CFF—
FoEWE=T oA ET) RERATINE E T
(ZERL—AF ) Z A - bR E EE
BACEY ST IAEASE B T g 2 v e fit
BB R B A

13 Subsidiary Companies 13 EATR
Company A 7]
in 1IK$ million 2002 2001 LIt B e B R
Unlisted shares, at cost less I b o e A 2
impairment losses 169 169 (B 1R
Amounts due by subsidiary companies 45,942 47776 MWEBAFXKALHE
Amounts due to subsidiary companies (7.485) (6,950)  KMJE L w4 H
38,626 40,995

Particulars of the principal subsidiary companies are shown in Note 30.

TR 2 F BRI F T 30 o
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Notes to the Accounts

JR H It it

14 Associated Companies 14 BiEAT
Group SEH
in vk$ million 2002 2001 LI e B ca
Share of net assets 17,643 16,161 G EEFHE
Goodwill (Note 16) 2,213 2,196  mE (fE10)
19,856 18,357
Loans due from associated companies
(Note b) 7,376 8,137  BREARXKAZER (M
Loans due to associated companies (Note b) (1,619) (1,615) XAEEARZER (H
25,013 24.879
Investment at cost BE A
Unlisted shares 7.304 6,592 I Ly
Shares listed in Hong Kong 8.591 8,591 il B Ry
15,895 15,183
Market value of listed shares 9,152 8,594 LWk A
Company 47l
in vk$ million 2002 2001 LU B B aT
Investment at cost BE A
Unlisted shares 479 337 I b sy
Shares listed in Hong Kong 931 931 i Bk
1,410 1,268
Loans due from associated companies 2,098 3,128 BEXFXAZHEK
Loans due to associated companies (1,615) (1,595) XKAEEAFZER
2,493 2,801
Market value of listed shares 763 716 EiiRmzE
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Dividend income from associated companies during the year is as

ARG A R IR Z B AT

follows:
Group %
in vik$ million 2002 2001 pis¥aE i
Listed associated companies 180 494  LWEEAF
Unlisted associated companies 416 395 kLTS A
596 889
Note: BfaE -

(a)  Included in associated companies are Hong Kong Resort Company Limited (“1ikr”) and
Western Harbour Tunnel Company Limited (“wiircL”) whose year ends are 31 March and 31
July respectively which are not coterminous with the Group. The results of kr and wirrcL
have been equity accounted for based on their management accounts for the period from 1
January 2002 to 31 December 2002.

(b)  Loans due from associated companies and loans due to associated companies are
interest bearing at market rates except for an amount of approximately vk$77 million
(2001: uk$37 million) loans to associated companies, which are non-interest bearing. These

loans have no fixved repayment terms.

(¢c)  Particulars of the principal associated companies are shown in Note 31.

(a) BELNATEFTEREARAA ([FBH
K1) REBIEREARAD (THRF) - ZRFA
ZHBFEEHGEARNBZAZ—AREA=Z1—
H o BASE 2 S H H A o ZriBLER PibE 2 40
FrEN: R 2 St oS Rl SN = St 2y gy ey
H A1 2 7L e e H LAl g R AR -

(b)  BREFEBELAXAZERNZERCT LT
L (ZFF—AF BB =TLHET) BEEBER
Sb > HEREE 2 AR B R A& 1 7l 2 Sk Hg e i by
FIFFH 2 BEH « FHFRHAU R E LB TH] -

()  FEBELALKBIEL ML -
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Notes to the Accounts

JR H It it

15 Investments 15 ##®
Group %M
in 1KS million 2002 2001 LUt M e BT
Co-operative joint ventures afEGEm A
Unlisted investments, at cost 6.763 6,629  F FilifERA
Amounts due by co-operative joint ventures 1,108 2,043 AfEAELAFXK
7.871 8.672
Less: Amortisation (532) (461) B - HESH
7.339 8,211
Listed investments, at cost iR E AR
Shares listed in Hong Kong LG 180 AU TR Ay
Unlisted investments F L&
Shares, at cost 105 64 BRI HA
Add: Advances made 25 27 o EAEOR
130 91
Less: Impairment (39) (36) W - WiEER
91 %)
Less: Advances received 3) (3) W ECEIE
3838 D2
7.600 8,449
Market value of listed shares 141 133 bz difE
Amortisation represents amortisation of investment in Power and Civil HESH 1 B T SRR S0 BE RS -

Infrastructure.

Particulars of the principal co-operative joint ventures are shown in

Note 32.
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Note:

As at 31 December 2002, the carrying value of the Group's co-operative joint ventures in

guaranteed fixed returns projects in Shanghai affected by the directive issued by the State

Council of the pre which requires regional governments in the Pre to settle properly with

foreign investors amounted to HK$5,858 million. Returns before 31 December 2002 are

unaffected by this directive and accordingly the directive does not have any effect on the

results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2002.

Regarding those guaranteed fixed returns investments, the Group have had several

recent friendly meetings with the relevant authorities in Shanghai. The final outcome is still

awaited. Without concrete details, it is imprudent to make any assessment in relation to any

financial impact upon the Group.

Wit -

WZEEZEL A=A ZPEERFBE S
Ho 77 B af AERAN Y £ 5 75 PR AR L RO
ZRHE > FEBUAEEE A AT LG22 R
BT [ HE H 2 R TRT (B 7 0 W 0/ 1T BB
P ZEETAEF T = A AR A RS
DB WA —FE A=
VIR ¥

A7 B R B IR B 2 o S A A ] L
T B ST T T 2R KA Gk > HIRIEH 2
RSB RAIAT R o Gk Z BLREHA WA
FHEFARSE T EZ ) 2 BB

16 Goodwill 16 @@
Subsidiary Associated
companies companies

in UK$ million BHEg 2\ Al Bl DB E et
Positive Goodwill NNE-
Cost JER
At 1 January 2002 364 3,010 —“FZX-HF—-A—H
Addition arising on acquisitions PR AL HER T

during the year 8 204 TR
Adjustments resulting from subsequent PR HCA Tl T kR

identification in value of identifiable G KA G EE

assets and liabilities 27) - A i 3
At 31 December 2002 345 3814 —“ZFEE_H+_A=1+—H
Accumudated amortisation B
At 1 January 2002 11 1414 —“FX-4H—H—H
Amortisation for the year 17 187  AFEHE
At 31 December 2002 28 1,601 —“ZFF_HE+-A=+—H
Net book value R FE
At 31 December 2002 317 2213 —“EFZEZHE+_A=1+—H
At 31 December 2001 353 2,196 —“FEZ—HF+-H=1+—H
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Notes to the Accounts BEA 2t

16 Goodwill continued 16 H8 &
Subsidiary Associated
companies companies
in 1k$ million g 2 m] Brgsial LIS EE EcE
Negative Goodwill ENE
Cost %S
At 1 January 2002 - - ZEZ-HF—-A—H
Addition arising on acquisitions R A A A T
during the year (35) - W T 1 7
At 31 December 2002 | (35) L CEERCETOJI=T A
Accumulated amortisation Z iy
At 1 January 2002 - - ZEZTH—-H—H
Amortisation for the year - - R
At 31 December 2002 - - “EETHEFTZH=Z1—H
Net book value HR IR (E
At 31 December 2002 (35) - “FEFTHEFTH=F—H

Analysis of positive goodwill

amortisation by business R BBy 2 E R 2 b
Aviation - 170 fiz
Power and Civil Infrastructure 1 — B MR
Communications 7 10 fFE¥%
Marketing & Distribution 9 - BB R
Others - 7 Hit
17 187
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17 Inventories 17 &8
At 31 December 2002, the carrying amount of inventories that are MEFRTEFTAZ—H o BB A
carried at net realisable value amounted to 11K$519 million (2001: MR 2 A7 B IR T A s W LA — T L
HK$736 million). (CFF R ER=TATED) - "
3
®
18 Debtors, Accounts Receivable, Deposits and 18 MEUWIER  BIER - RERAMGRE =
Prepayments
Group %M Company 4 F]
in UKy million 2002 2001 2002 2001 LU e m oL R
Trade debtors JEY B 5
Within 1 year 1,857 1,370 - - —4ERN
Over 1 year 118 34 - - —4EPLk
1,975 1,404 - -
Accounts receivable, deposits
and prepayments 1,113 1,926 90 118 WENORSK ~ Hes RN 3K0H
3.088 3,330 90 118
Note: BifE -
(i) Trade debtors are net of provision and the ageing is classified based on invoice date. (i) YR 5 HETE 1 R F T 1 & K TE R A% 58 5 H
SEPIRZ FHHF -
(i) The Group has a defined credit policy for the respective business units. (i) AEEE 5 T 3 (5 R -
19 Creditors, Accounts Payable, Deposits and Accruals 19 IR  BMER - REREMARE
Group %M Company A H]
in vik$ million 2002 2001 2002 2001 LI E B iRt E
Trade creditors JENTE 5
Within 1 year 1,458 1,136 - - —ERN
Over 1 year 86 18 - - —HELAE
1.544 1,154 - -
Accounts payable, deposits
and accruals 1,451 1,269 62 63 JE(THE ~ #28 RIE(T3H
2,995 2,423 62 68
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Notes to the Accounts BEA 2t

20 Share Capital 20 Bx
Number of
shares of
1K$0.40 each HKS million
15 i T (E 7 0.40 TT
R EH W T
Authorised B
At 31 December 2001 and 2002 3,000,000,000 1,200 —“FF-EX-FF_F+_H=1+—H
Issued and fully paid E#T I
At 1 January 2002 2,189,780,160 876 —“FE-4H—H—H
Repurchase during the year (1,320,000) (1) AR R
At 31 December 2002 2,188,460,160 875 —“EFE-H+ZH=Z+—H
Changes during the year: FNZ S

During the year, the Company repurchased a total of 1,320,000 of its AR A w4 28 5 BT AT R
own shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, all of which — FgRUHA S 2 343 1,320,000 & - %5 K

have been cancelled, as follows: e RS > FHEWT -
Total purchase Purchase price per share
price 1 JB i 1] 12
Number of shares kAR Highest Lowest
repurchased HKS million BiE 1%
Month/Year IEEIR B BEEET kS BT kS BB A
December 2002 1,320,000 20 14.95 14.85 “EETHETTA
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Share Option Plan:

Under the Ciric Pacific Share Incentive Plan 2000 (“the Plan™) adopted
on 31 May 2000, the Board may invite any director, executive or
employee of the Company or any of its subsidiary companies to
subscribe for options over the Company’s shares on payment of HKS1
per acceptance. The subscription price determined by the Board will be
at least the higher of (i) the closing price of the Company’s share as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
grant; (ii) the average closing price of the Company’s share as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant and (iii) the nominal value of
the Company’s shares. The maximum number of shares over which
options may be granted under the Plan shall not exceed 10% of (i) the
issued share capital of the Company from time to time or (ii) the issued
share capital of the Company as at the date of adopting the Plan,
whichever is the lower.

On 28 May 2002 options to subscribe for a total of the 11,550,000
shares in the Company representing 0.53% of the issued share capital,
at the exercise price of HK$18.20 per share, were granted under the
Plan. The closing price of the Company’s share immediately before the
date of grant was HK$18.10. All options granted and accepted can be
exercised in whole or in part within 5 years from the date of grant. All
were accepted, and none were exercised, cancelled or lapsed in the
period up to 31 December 2002.

As there is no accounting standard in Hong Kong governing the
accounting for employee stock option, their costs have not been

incorporated in the accounts.

Vil SRRl <
BN —FEEEERH =+ — H RN P %
BRI # R T (e ]) > EEe
AL A 2y B SOHAT AT B g 2 R AT A S5
FTIBON B 5 AR B 1 A AT RR I A w173 0 B e
T > T e A R TR S AT 1 o0 - R
EMEFGRET > RO MU HENR
F o)A R BB s H ik
R 5 (i) A T B B H
ST AR 26 H AR SE T H R B BTN
W 5 (i) AR R AT B © AR R% T8
AT BB 10 SR FRCRE T 0 B PR B > R
BRI T WEA10% @ (i) AN A AR E %
FIIBROA 5 s (i) A R PR AN %8 H AR £ 8%
FPRA (DABARE Fy i) o

RoZEAERAZHAH R
e NNl R S R
11,550,000 f& ({SEEATEAS 0.53%) » 174l
1B By B M 18.20 0 © AR W) I B2 4%
i HRT A g i 18,10 0T T B
T A 0 ) B P T AR A F AR T 5 AR A
RS - REE-FZET A
T—H IR > A R O A o LA
TEPRCREC TAT08 - RNl R A -

R A 0 A RO B I IR AR 7 X2
GFHER S 5O B2 A R T ARE R -
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Notes to the Accounts

21 Reserves

JR H It it

21 &R

a Group a M
Investment
Capital property  Exchange
Share redemption Capital revaluation  fluctuation General  Retained
premium reserve reserve  Goodwill reserve reserve reserve profits Total
in vk$ million Wt TR B Y00 it HERE  REEF ME LW AT
At 1 January 2001 24,782 16 3,614 (2,470) 947 508 132 12,903 40,420 —FF—F—J—H
Share of reserves of
associated companies - - - - 181 175 - (17) BRI PN
Share of reserves of T A 5 2 ) b A
associated company A EratiEal
Effect of adoption of CERRULiFe 2
ssap 34 (Note 1a) - - - - - - - (148) (148) (BT 1a)
Deficit on revaluation of
properties - - - - (157) - - - (157) EEMEE 24
Exchange translation
differences - - - - (9) 6 - - (3) SMEHE A
Reserves realised - - - - (2) - - - (2) ffss
Repurchase of shares - - - - - - - (86) (86)  MERIK M
Transfer to capital
redemption reserve - 2 - - - - - (2) — BRI
Transfer from profits - - - - - - 6 (6) - BAuF
Profit attributable to
shareholders - - - - - - - 2,110 2110 JBRSRRENM: F
Dividends (Note 8) - - - - - - - (1.860) (1.8060) MRS (Fzk8)
e
At 31 December 2001 24,782 18 3,614 (2,470) 960 639 138 12,888 40,013 FZA=Z+—H
Representing i
At 31 December 2001 “EEAEFT]
after proposed final =t—HEFA
dividend 39,299 HHA MR
it e S
2001 Final dividend proposed 1,314 RIS
40,613
Retained by RG4S AR 2k IE
Company and subsidiary
companies 24,782 18 3,605  (2,476) 209 30 133 10,123 360,424 ALXFEEHEAR
Associated companies - - 9 - 751 659 5 2,765 4,189  BEAH
24,782 18 3,014 (2.4706) 960 689 138 12,888 40,013
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Investment

Capital property  Exchange
Share redemption Capital revaluation  fluctuation General — Retained
premium reserve reserve  Goodwill reserve reserve reserve profits Total

in uk$ million IR R G R EE it R REEF MR LUBWE B E

At 1 January 2002 24,782 18 3.614  (2.4706) 960 689 138 13,036 40,761 _—ZFF_H—f—H

Prior year adjustments LA
Share of associated

company for PG A 2
retirement benefits - - - - - - - (148) (148) BIKEEF

As restated 24,782 18 3.614  (2.476) 960 689 138 12,888 40,613 E3

Share of reserves of
associated companies - - 1 - 14 (526) - 1) (512)  PrifimeE A m ikt

Deficit on revaluation of
properties - - - - (120) - - - (120)  WEFEAbAE L 4

Exchange translation
differences - - - - 5 4) - - 1 MR EE

Reserves realised - - - - (12) - - - (12)  fHHEEE

Repurchase of shares - - - - - - - (19) (19) W h

Transfer to capital
redemption reserve - 1 - - - - - 1) — R A ] R

Transfer from profits - - - - - - 4 4) - BAEF

Profit attributable to
shareholders - - - - - - - 3,902 3,902  JRARELL A

Dividends (Note 8) - - - - - - - (1,971)  (1,971) RE ()

At 31 December 2002 24,782 19 3,615  (2,476) 847 159 142 14,794 41,882 +-HA=+—H

Representing &

At 31 December 2002 after “FE-E+A
proposed final and =t—HCFA
special dividends 38,162 HEA KRR RS

2002 Final and special far e St S
dividends proposed 3,720 A BAFERIRE

41,882

Retained by HI T2 AR 2

Company and subsidiary
companies 24,782 19 3,605  (2,476) 82 26 137 10,569 36,744  ALAFKHEAR

Associated companies - - 10 - 765 133 5 4,225 5,138  BEAT

24,782 19 3615 (2476) 847 159 142 14794 41,882

Note:

The exchange fluctuation reserve included the Group's share of the exchange reserve of

Cathay Pacific. As set out in accounting policies No.1p, the Group’s profit and loss account

for the year ended 31 December 2002 would have decreased by vk$526 million (2001:

increased by HK$175 million) had ssip No.11 been adopted by Cathay Pacific.

Wit -

il BB Gt (0 4 A S A B 2 2 M S b = A
FHECRAE 1p BT - (B ATS C IR Z i e st R
B AEAEE —FEET A= I
2 A RIEC M = T A #T (ZFE—
i SR T LA ET) o
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Notes to the Accounts BEA 2t

21 Reserves continued 21 Gifm &
b Company b &
Capital
redemption Share Retained
reserve premium profits Total
g~
in HKS million Tt SR i 1 1R £ s Fll M LUt B B
At 1 January 2001 16 24,782 12,174 36,972 “EEF—A—H
Repurchase of shares - - (860) (86)  HEMIKtny
Transfer to capital
redemption reserve 2 - (2) - VR AR T ] o
Profit for the year available
for distribution (Note 7) - - 2,182 2,182 $W71 ErRi A (BT 7)
Dividends (Note 8) - - (1.8606) (1,800)  KE (FiE8)
At 31 December 2001 18 24,782 12,402 37,202 “EFEEH A=+ —H
Representing i
At 31 December 2001 after “EE-H+A=+—H
proposed final dividend 35,888 ERFAREADIBE
2001 Final dividend proposed 1,314 R R ARBRE
37,202
Capital
redemption Share Retained
reserve premium profits Total
g~
in 1KS million fifi S i 1 1R £ s Fll M R AEY: Vit
At 1 January 2002 18 24,782 12,402 37.202 “EETHFE—A—H
Repurchase of shares - - (19) (19) &R
Transfer to capital
redemption reserve 1 - (1) - VR AR T ] o
Profit for the year available
for distribution (Note 7) - - 2,477 2,477 $W71 ErRi A (BT 7)
Dividends (Note 8) - - (1,971) (1,971)  RE (MEE8)
At 31 December 2002 19 24,782 12,888 37,689 “EECEL A=+ —H
Representing i
At 31 December 2002 after “EECH+ A=A
proposed final and EL AT AR AR K
special dividends 33,969 FERI S
2002 Final and special T e 2 i S
dividends proposed 3,720 A RS S
37,689

WRPE AT /N A1 55 TOB Mt B 2 AN ) ] Al
RGN —EF AT =+ — H B
—“HIT/NEATNEELT (ZFE—4
W—E T =EmET) -

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2002,
calculated under section 79B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

amounted to HK$12,888 million (2001: Hk$12,402 million).

108



22 Long Term Borrowings

a

Group %M
in uk$ million 2002 2001 2002

22 REAER

a

Company 4 ]

2001 LIB W E S eRH

Bank loans

RITE
7,351 A
- HIEH

H A
1,401 A

Unsecured 4,564 3,187 3.466
Secured 47 38 -
4.611 8.225 3,466 7.351
Other loans
Unsecured 4,294 4,923 780
3,905 13,148 4,246 8,752

Amounts repayable within

one year included under

—AE N 2 B

current liabilities (168) (739) - (701) FIA B AER
8.737 12,409 4,246 8,051
Note: T -

() Bank loans and other loans of the Group not wholly repayable within five years
amounted to vk$3,510 million (2001: 1k$4, 142 million).

(i) The Company has issued a vs$100,000,000 Senior Note due 2006 (the “Notes™). The
Notes will rank in right of payment pari passu to all other indebtedness of the Company.
Interest on the Notes is payable semi-annually in arrears at 7.37% per annum. The Notes
will mature on 15 February 2006 unless previously prepaid by the Company.

(i) On 1 June 2001, Crric Pacific Finance (2001) Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, issued and sold a total of vs$450 million principal amount of 7.625%
guaranteed notes due 2011 (“Guaranteed Notes”) for refinancing the indebtedness of the
Company and for general corporate purposes, to investors pursuant to the purchase
agreements dated 24 May 2001 and 1 June 2001. All of the Guaranteed Notes remained
outstanding at the end of the year.

(iv)  Bank loans and other loans, other than the Notes and the Guaranteed Notes, are fully

repayable up to 2007 and bear interest at the prevailing market rate.

(i) RIS T N T R SR T R R A
BB =1 —THT (ZFEE—4F N+
—fEMAT A #EL) -

(i) KA ABELF—EFE I FENEE W 5
([FH8]) o TR A B L i H A R I 3 2 Al s
Fl > FHEF B RTFERARTA - EBIT3T% « 52
MR —FFANEA T B HFH > AL AR RS
Brb o

i) HoEE—EAS—H AL AL EWEAA
Citic Pacific Finance (2001) Limited R4 = FF—F 1
H A AR =FE—FN — 02 EE a7 R
EA DRIV LT BT T.025% W55 (TR
W) TREH UL L7 2 (B ST A
RIIF—REELE - FFREFIAN —F— 45
W > EABRA TR AR IA BT R ]

(iv) BRESRR ARG FHRO,  ST Bk AN AN

SR LR LR BOE B E
#lF -
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Notes to the Accounts

22 Long Term Borrowings continued

b The maturity of the Group’s and the Company’s long term liabilities

is as follows:

Group SE[

JR H It it

22 RUER o
b SR A AT 2R R B AU
LU

Company 2\ 7]

in HKS million 2002 2001 2002 2001 LI A &Rt E
Bank loans are repayable RITE k2 R
in the first year 164 110 - 30 —4ER
in the second year 1,707 584 1,350 338 ZHER
in the third to fifth years inclusive 2,740 7.316 2,116 6,933 =EAEN (EEEEmMSE)
after the fifth year - 215 - - TR
a1t 8% 3ae I
Other loans are repayable HoA sk R
in the first year 4 629 - 621 —4ER
in the second year - 4 - - —HER
in the third to fifth years inclusive 780 780 780 780 =EHEN (BEERERE)
after the fifth year 3,510 3,510 - - ik
a4 aom w0 a0
8,905 13,148 4,246 8,752
23 Deferred Taxation 23 RERE
Group SE[
in 1KS million 2002 2001 LIt M E B
At 1 January 215 237 —H—HZ&fF
Exchange adjustments 2 (10)  siigyse
Acquisition of a subsidiary company - 4 R RE
Net provision/(written back) for the year
(Note 6) 9 (16) FnfEE,/ (BE) F8 (ko)
At 31 December 226 215 tTZH=Z1T—HZ&F
Provided in the accounts in respect of BRH 1.2 £ T3 R
Accelerated depreciation allowances 226 215 hwEdrE B AR

Potential deferred tax liability has not been quantified for the surplus

on the revalued investment properties in Hong Kong as this does not

constitute a timing difference for deferred taxation purposes.
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24 Assets and Liabilities by Segments 24 SEEERAR
An analysis of the Group’s segment assets and liabilities by business LR 2 He S5 UM 03 2 SR B U 7E R R
segment is as follows: ViR
#
Segment Investments in Segment &
assels assoctated companies liabilities Total ®
IHEE BEL ARG A o -
in HKS million 2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001 LUk EHCEHE
Aviation - - 13,305 13,099 - - 13,305 13,099 fi%
Power and Civil Infrastructure 8,764 10,551 1,213 1,074 (28) (24) 9,949 11,601 HELIEHERIE
Jommunications 1.467 4,021 1,550 1.264 (715)  (3.223) 2,302 2,062 fFRE
Marketing & Distribution 3,950 3,868 225 106  (1,221) (1,119) 2,954 2,915 S5 K8
Property 11,184 7,731 8,600 9,276 (213) (82) 19,637 16,925 W%
Industrial Manufacturing 3,127 3,078 - - (620) (590) 2,507 2,488 TR
Others 331 2,476 654 - (42) (30) 943 2,440  HiAlh

Segment assets/(liabilities) 28,823 31,725 25,613 24879  (2,839) (5.068) 51,597 51,536 &R/ (Af)

Corporate 2,722 4,073 - - (9.423) (11,994) (6,701) (7,921) {3
Provision for taxation 95) (141)  BiIHHER
Deferred taxation (2206) (215) EIERIA

44,575 43,259

An analysis of the Group’s segment assets by geographical area is as IR BHbEESE 2 EB N HERE

follows: Vi

in UK$ million 2002 2001 DB E e

Hong Kong 12,420 14,701 &

Mainland China 15,759 16,304 HH

Japan 401 517 H=AR

Others 243 203 HAt

28,823 31,725
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Notes to the Accounts BEA 2t

25 Capital Commitments 25 BERIE

Group SEH

in 1k$ million 2002 2001 AL Pt

Authorised but not contracted for (Note) 7 584 CHMMEMEAER (HED)

Contracted but not provided for (Note) 649 2,160  TELMEAEM (FEE)

Note: ﬁﬁﬁ:f :

The capital commitments of authorised but not contracted for and contracted but not EMEMEND R BER R B BEA A B 2 EARIE W K
provided for in respect of plant, property and equipment amount to Ux$7 million (2001: s~ WHERR > ANE L EET (ZFF—4F
HK$S million) and vk$447 million (2001: vk$1,524 million) respectively. W VE D) KO T a BT (—FEE—

i I =T EET) -

26 Operating Lease Commitments 26 EEBEMRIE
The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable WTZHA=+—H  &AREEHRZELEA
operating leases at 31 December are as follows: 2 BRSO 2 BB A (T SRR T
Group %M Company 2 7]
in vk$ million 2002 2001 2002 2001 LU e B OC R E
Properties commitments /E /iH
Within 1 year 94 124 16 6 —HER
After 1 year but within 5 years 128 185 23 - —ERHAAER
After 5 years 26 92 - - HAFE
248 401 39 6
Other commitments AR 1E
Within 1 year 50 51 - - —HER
After 1 year but within 5 years 35 60 - - —ERA AR
After 5 years 15 18 - - FAER
100 129 - -
348 530 39 6
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27 Contingent Liabilities
a The Company together with other beneficial shareholders of Western
Harbour Tunnel Company Limited (“wHrcL”) have agreed jointly and
severally to guarantee the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region that wHrcr will complete the Western Harbour
Crossing (“Crossing”) within budget of approximately HK$7.5 billion
including repair costs to be incurred after the operation date of the
Crossing but before the issuance of the Maintenance Certificate. The
Crossing was completed in April 1997 with total cost of approximately
HKS6.8 billion, pending the issuance of the Maintenance Certificate.
The beneficial shareholders of wHTcL have agreed that in relation to
any claim made or asserted under the aforesaid guarantee, as between
themselves, the total of all liabilities in respect of a claim thereunder
and of all costs, charges and expenses suffered or incurred by any of
them resulting therefrom or attributable thereto shall be shared by them

in proportion to their respective ultimate ownership in WHTCL.

b The Company has provided a guarantee to Kreditanstalt fur
Wiederautbau, a German state-owned bank, for an export credit up to a
maximum of Us$17.1 million granted to a subsidiary company,

Jiangyin Xingcheng Special Steel Works Co., Ltd.

¢ The Company has provided a several guarantee up to a maximum
amount of approximately HK$1,477 million to support a loan facility of
HKS2,400 million granted by a group of financial institutions to an

associated company, Treasure Trove Limited.

d The Company has provided a guarantee on the Us$450 million
Guaranteed Notes issued by a wholly owned subsidiary of the

(\
a Omp any .

e The Company has provided a guarantee to Commerzbank
Aktiengesellschaft, Hong Kong Branch for a credit facility of up to

rMB100 million granted to a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.

27 HARAR
a AR FVEE AP BRE A R A A (7
g 1) A ORI 2 3R] A Y 5
ATBUE BURF S A (R - (RS TTBE AT YAV WL
TR A R G EREE (B
AEL) o ELAE ol B BRI A AR 2 e (R A
HLHITG ZHEBEA o BRER — LB
AR BEAK BN /Mo (MR
H R )

PR RS ORI AR th Z AR TR - PUBE
Z BB CIR Bk A B R PYRE TG 2 ek
A1 HEE B 91 488 A7 B8 2R 1 < 005 TR B TR 2R
2 — VA~ BB, -

b AR A Sy FCRR B 2 v VI B B A A
R 22 ) o) o 7 2 ] et R BRA T A R A
EEs—TLtE—t@EETZ il nEEES
a{% °

g

¢ AAFIAEHEEEAT Treasure Trove
Limited 2 — T 8 — 1 DU o8 B & 24 {1
EEAABETNEETEE & @A
PR o

d AT A I A ) B AT 2 AR
HT B E TR EE R AER -

L/l B Rl TS 1) A PN
TG f B 1) I 7R S R AT A 0 AT 4R A

o

o oo @
P
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Notes to the Accounts

27 Contingent Liabilities continued
f The Company has provided a several guarantee of up to 55% to
support loan facilities of RMB270 million and us$70 million granted by a

bank to Jilin Xinli Power Cogeneration Co., Ltd.

g The Company has provided a several guarantee of up to 79.998% to
support a loan facility of Us$70 million granted by a bank to a

subsidiary company, Shanghai Ciric Square Co. Ltd.

28 Comparative Figures
Comparative figures have been adjusted to conform with the current

presentation.
29 Approval of Accounts

The accounts were approved by the Board of Directors on 12 March
2003.
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f ARNAE— MR T E R I RER
Rarz N\NREZELTETRLTHETE
FARME 55% Z HAIELR

g AL AN — P RAT T A v B A )
LEPERERGARAFRZ L TEHFEILER
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30 Principal Subsidiary Companies

The following are the principal subsidiary companies of the Group which in the opinion of the directors, principally

affect the results and net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiary companies would in the opinion of

the directors result in particulars of excessive length.

Place of incorporation/

Particulars of
issued shares™*

Interest in equity
shares held by

Principal place of operation No. of Par  Company Subsidiary
Name Kind of legal entity * shares value % %  Principal activities
Aviation
Collinson Company Limited Republic of Liberia/ 498 - 100 —  Investment holding
Bermuda
Custain Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$10 - 100 Investment holding
Easerich Investments Inc. British Virgin Islands/ 1 Us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Bermuda
Hilldun Limited Hong Kong 3 HK$10 - 100 Investment holding
Jade Wonder Limited British Virgin Islands 1 Us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Motive Link Holdings Inc. British Virgin Islands/ 1 Us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Bermuda
Sidewinder Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands/ 1 Us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Bermuda
Smooth Tone Investments Ltd. British Virgin Islands/ 1 Us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Bermuda
Communications
AAA Internet Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$1 - 100 Provision of internet
services and
advertising agency
Amazing Gains Finance Limited British Virgin Islands/ 1 Us$1 - 100 Provision of
Bermuda telecommunications
services
Crric Concept 1616 Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$1 - 100 Provision of
telecommunications
services
Crric Data 1616 Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$1 - 100 Provision of data
(Formerly Crric 1616 Data transmission services
Limited)
Crric Networks 1616 Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$1 - 100 Provision of

telecommunications

services
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Notes to the Accounts

30 Principal Subsidiary Companies continued

Particulars of

JR H It it

Interest in equity

Place of incorporation/ issued shares** shares held by
Principal place of operation No. of Par  Company Subsidiary
Name Kind of legal entity * shares value % %  Principal activities
Crric Pacific Communications Bermuda 100,000 HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
Limited
Crric Telecom 1616 Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$1 - 100 Provision of international
telecommunications
services
cpeNet Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong 394,806,930 HKS1 - 100 Provision of internet
services
cpeNet Macau Limited Macau N/A N/A - 100 Provision of internet
services
Crown Yield (HK) Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$1 - 100 Provision of
telecommunications
services
Data Communication Services Hong Kong 1,000 HK$1 - 100 Provision of
Limited 38.,000,000'1' HK$1 telecommunications
equipment
Delight Way Holdings Inc. British Virgin Islands/ 1 us$1 - 100 Provision of
Bermuda telecommunications
services
Glamorous Way Enterprises Ltd. British Virgin Islands 1 us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Global Link Information Services Hong Kong 300,000 HK$10 - 100 Provision of internet
Limited services
Glory Genius Development Limited ~ Hong Kong 2 HK$1 - 100 Provision of
(renamed as Crric Telecom 1616 telecommunications
Consultancy Services Limited on consultancy services
26 February 2003)
Grand Formosa Holdings Inc. British Virgin Islands 1 us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Pedova Corp. British Virgin Islands 1 Us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Perfect Spot Investments Corp. British Virgin Islands 1 us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Super Worth Investments Inc. British Virgin Islands 1 us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Vision Network Limited Hong Kong 2,250,000 HKS1 - 100 Provision of internet
services
Wonder Delight Enterprises Inc. British Virgin Islands 1 us$1 - 100 Investment holding
World Navigation Limited Hong Kong 1,000 HKS 1 - 100 Provision of international
2.,000.,000'1' HK$1 telecommunications
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Place of incorporation/

Particulars of
issued shares**

Interest in equity
shares held by

Principal place of operation No. of Par  Company Subsidiary
Name Kind of legal entity * shares value %o % Principal activities
Power Generation
Classabove Holdings Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
Daybreak Holdings Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
Kong Yuen Investments Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
Master Port Investment Ltd. British Virgin Islands 1 Us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Premier Gold Holdings Corp. British Virgin Islands 1 Us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Reynolds Holdings Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
Rising Star Enterprises Corp. British Virgin Islands 1 UsS1 - 100 Investment holding
Sterling Lake Limited British Virgin Islands 1 Us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Sunspark Power Investment Hong Kong 10,000 HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
Company Limited
Roads, Bridges and Tunnels
Adwood Company Limited Hong Kong 10 HK$10 20 50 Investment holding
Avon Pacific Limited British Virgin Islands 1 Us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Bloomingshire Investment Limited  British Virgin Islands 1 Us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Cinta Company Limited British Virgin Islands 1 UsS1 - 100 Investment holding
Crystalime Company Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$10 - 100 Investment holding
Express Link Holdings Ltd. British Virgin Islands 1 Us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Gradius Company Limited British Virgin Islands 1 UsS1 - 100 Investment holding
New Hong Kong Tunnel Company ~ Hong Kong 75,000,000 HK$10 - 70.8  Tunnel operation
Limited
Newly Bright Investment Limited British Virgin Islands 1 UsS1 - 100 Investment holding
Prime Star Enterprises Limited British Virgin Islands 1 Us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Rich Creation Investments Ltd. British Virgin Islands 1 Us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Yan Wing Investments Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
Environment
Athens Investments, Inc. British Virgin Islands 1 Us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Estoril Corp. British Virgin Islands 1 Us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Unitex Holdings Corp. British Virgin Islands 1 Us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Marketing & Distribution
Adachi Trading Company Limited — Japan 250 py50,000 - 100 Trader of motor vehicle
spare parts
Botanitown Pharmaceuticals Hong Kong 2 HK$1 - 62 Investment in

Limited

=}

pharmaceutical

business
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Notes to the Accounts

30 Principal Subsidiary Companies continued

Particulars of

JR H It it

Interest in equity

Place of incorporation/ issued shares™* shares held by
Principal place of operation No. of Par  Company Subsidiary
Name Kind of legal entity * shares value % %  Principal activities
Beijing Botanitown People’s Republic of China N/A N/A - 62 Research and
Biotechnologies Limited Wholly foreign-owned enterprise® development in
pharmaceutical
products
Confidence Motors Limited Hong Kong 1,000 HK$100 - 100 Motor vehicle distributor
Consolidated Parts & Accessories Hong Kong 1,000 Hk$100 - 100 Trader of motor vehicle
Sales Centre Limited spare parts
Dah Chong Hong (Canada) Litd. Canada 650,000 - - 100 General import/export
and investment
holding
Dah Chong Hong (China) Limited Hong Kong 1,000 HKS100 - 100 Investment holding
Dah Chong Hong — Dragonair Hong Kong 10,000 HK$1 - 70 Provision of airport
Airport st Service Limited ground support
equipment
maintenance services
Dah Chong Hong (Engineering) Hong Kong 10,000 HK$100 - 100 Engineering services
Limited
Dah Chong Hong Holdings Limited ~ Hong Kong 21,031,837 HK$10 - 100 Investment holding
Dah Chong Hong, Limited Hong Kong 50,000 1k$1,000 - 100 Investment holding;
general importers,
retailers and exporters
dealing in foodstuffs,
electrical appliances
and other products
Dah Chong Hong (Japan) Limited ~ Japan 480,000 ypy1,000 - 100 Importer and exporter of
foodstuffs, motor
vehicles and garments;
property investment
and investment
holding
Dah Chong Hong Motors (China) Hong Kong 20,000 HKkS100 - 100 Investment holding
Limited
Dah Chong Hong (Motor Leasing) Hong Kong 10,000 HK$10 - 100 Motor leasing
Limited
Dah Chong Hong (Motor Service Hong Kong 2,000 HK$100 - 100 Motor vehicle repairing
Centre) Limited and servicing
Dah Chong Hong Motors (Nissan- Hong Kong 2 HKS10 - 100 Motor vehicle distributor

China) Limited
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Place of incorporation/

Particulars of
issued shares**

Interest in equity
shares held by

Principal place of operation No. of Par  Company Subsidiary
Name Kind of legal entity * shares value %o % Principal activities
Dah Chong Hong Trading Singapore 3,500,000 s$1 - 100 Investment holding and
(Singapore) Pte. Ltd. trading of foodstuffs
DAS Aviation Support Limited Hong Kong 10,000 HK$1 - 70 Distributor of air cargo
equipment and related
spare parts
pAs Nordisk Limited Hong Kong 10,000 HK$1 - 49 Repairs and maintenance
services for air cargo
containers and sale of
related spare parts
pcH Food Industries Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$10 - 100 Investment holding
pch Healtheare Products Limited Hong Kong 100,000 HKS100 - 100 Distribution and retailing
of healthcare and
pharmaceutical
products
pcH Motors (Bentley) Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$1 - 100 Motor vehicle distributor
pcH Motors Litd. Canada 100 CANS1 - 100 Motor vehicle distributor
Excellent Way International Ltd. British Virgin Islands 1 UsS1 - 100 Investment holding
Gentech Vehicle Engineering Hong Kong 166.000 HK$1 - 100 Trading of special
Limited function vehicles
Guangdong Jing Yun Distribution People’s Republic of China N/A N/A - 90  Distribution
Co., Ltd. Sino-foreign equity joint venture®
Harmony Motors Limited Hong Kong 1,000 Hk$100 - 100 Motor vehicle distributor
Honest Motors, Limited Hong Kong 3,000  1k$1,000 - 100 Motor vehicle distributor
Japan Auto Parts Company Hong Kong 1.000 Hk$100 - 100 Trader of motor vehicle
Limited spare parts
Premium Motors Limited Hong Kong 2 HKS1 - 100 Motor vehicle distributor
Regal Motors, Limited Hong Kong 2,000 Hk$100 - 100 Motor vehicle distributor
Reliance Motors, Limited Hong Kong 3,000 1k$1,000 - 100 Motor vehicle distributor
Sims (China) Limited Hong Kong 2 HKS10 - 100 Marketing co-ordination
services
Sims (Guangdong) Limited Hong Kong 2 HKS1 - 100 Investment holding
Sims Trading Company Limited Hong Kong 3,000 Hk$100 - 100 Wholesaling
Shanghai pcit Food Industries Ltd.  People’s Republic of China N/A N/A - 100 Food processing and
Wholly foreign-owned enterprise* trading
Shanghai pcit Shuanghui P People’s Republic of China N/A N/A - 38.5  Production and selling

Co., Litd.

Sino-foreign equity joint venture®

of meat and related

food products
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Notes to the Accounts

30 Principal Subsidiary Companies continued

Particulars of

JR H It it

Interest in equity

Place of incorporation/ issued shares™* shares held by
Principal place of operation No. of Par  Company Subsidiary
Name Kind of legal entity * shares value % %  Principal activities
Triangle Auto Pte Ltd Singapore 3,000,000 s$1 - 100 Motor vehicle distributor
Triangle Motors Limited Hong Kong 30,000 HK$100 - 100 Motor vehicle distributor
Triangle Motors (China) Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$10 - 100 Investment holding and
trading of motor
Twin Tiger International Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$1 - 100 Trading
Winway Investments Holdings British Virgin Islands 100 us$1 - 62 Investment in
Corp. pharmaceutical
business
V)12 i o A R People’s Republic of China N/A N/A - 100 Provision of logistics
Wholly foreign-owned enterprise® services
Property
Admarch Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$10 - 100 Property investment
Admarch Property Management Hong Kong 2 HK$1 - 100 Property management
Company, Limited
Ambest Company Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$10 - 100 Investment holding
(Date of acquisition:
22 January 2002)
Baylink Investments Limited British Virgin Islands 1 Us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Borgia Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$10 - 100 Property investment
Broadway Centre Property Hong Kong 2 HK$1 - 100 Property management
Management Company Limited
Campbellton Development Limited ~ Hong Kong 2 HK$1 - 100 Property development
Eldwin Corporation British Virgin Islands/Bermuda 10,000 Us$1 - 100 Investment holding
(Date of acquisition:
22 January 2002)
Famous Land Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$1 - 100 Property investment
Glenridge Company Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$10 - 100 Property investment
Goldenburg Properties Limited Hong Kong 1,000 HKS10 - 70 Property investment
Hang Luen Chong Investment Hong Kong 80,000 HK$100 - 100 Property investment
Company, Limited
Hang Luen Chong Property Hong Kong 2 HK$1 - 100 Property management
Management Company, Limited
Hang Wah Chong Investment Hong Kong 50.000 Hk$100 - 100 Property investment
Company Limited
Jewril Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
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Particulars of
issued shares™*

Interest in equity

Place of incorporation/ shares held by
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Principal place of operation No. of Par  Company Subsidiary
Name Kind of legal entity * shares value %o % Principal activities
Join Resources Limited Hong Kong 10,000 HKS1 - 33.3 Investment holding #
(Date of acquisition: Z
22 January 2002) &
Kendorm Corporation Republic of Liberia/Bermuda 1 - - 100 Investment holding
Kimble Investment Limited British Virgin Islands 1 Us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Kowill Investments Inc. British Virgin Islands/Bermuda 1 Us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Lindenford Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$10 - 100 Property investment
Neostar Investment Limited Hong Kong 2 HKS1 - 100 Property investment
Newmarket Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands/Bermuda 2 Us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Pacific Grace Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$1 - 100 Property investment
Shanghai Super Property Co., Ltd. ~ People’s Republic of China N/A N/A - 100 Property investment
(Date of acquisition: Wholly foreign-owned enterprise* and management
22 January 2002)
b ERERSG A RAR People’s Republic of China N/A N/A - 80 Property investment and
(Date of acquisition: Sino-foreign equity joint venture* management
22 January 2002)
bRV E A R A People’s Republic of China N/A N/A - 100 Property development
Sino-foreign co-operative
joint venture®
Speedy Way Investments Litd. British Virgin Islands 1 UsS1 - 100 Investment holding
Sun King Fung Development Hong Kong 152,343.165  Hk$0.10 100 —  Investment holding
Limited
Supreme Luck Investments Ltd. British Virgin Islands 1 UsS1 - 100 Investment holding
Tendo Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$10 - 100 Property investment
Yee Lim Godown & Cold Storage Hong Kong 1,000,000 HKS1 - 100 Operate a dry and cold
Limited storage godown
Finance
Balgonie Limited Hong Kong 2 HK$1 100 - Financing
Crric Pacific Finance (2001) British Virgin Islands 1,000 Us$1 100 —  Financing
Limited
Idealand Investment Inc. Republic of Panama 100 Us$1 - 100 Financing
Top Trend Investments Holdings British Virgin Islands/ 1 Us$1 100 - Financing

Corp.

Bermuda
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Notes to the Accounts

30 Principal Subsidiary Companies continued

Particulars of Interest in equity

Place of incorporation/ issued shares™* shares held by
Principal place of operation No. of Par  Company Subsidiary
Name Kind of legal entity * shares value % %  Principal activities
Industrial Manufacturing
Connemera Inc. British Virgin Islands 1 us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Crown Sky Investment Limited British Virgin Islands 1 Us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Jiangyin Xingcheng Special Steel People’s Republic of China N/A N/A - 55  Steel making
Works Co., Ltd. Sino-foreign equity joint venture®
Jiangyin Xingcheng Steel Products People’s Republic of China N/A N/A - 55  Steel making
Co., Litd. Sino-foreign equity joint venture®
Jiangsu cp Xingcheng Special People’s Republic of China 390,000,000 rMB1 - 54.72  Steel making
Steel Co., Litd. Foreign investment stock company*
Joyce Court Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands 1 Us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Maxy Rich Investments Limited British Virgin Islands 1 us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Shine Mass Holdings Ltd. British Virgin Islands 1 Us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Wuxi Huada Motors Co., Ltd. People’s Republic of China N/A N/A - 55 Industrial motors
Sino-foreign equity joint venture® manufacturing
VLR 2R B AR LA TR A F People’s Republic of China N/A N/A - 54.87  Production and sale of
Sino-foreign equity joint venture® hot iron and the
related products
Others
Crric Pacific China Holdings People’s Republic of China N/A N/A - 100 Investment holding
Limited Wholly foreign-owned enterprise®
Forever Glory Holdings Ltd. British Virgin Islands 1 Us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Golden Gateway Enterprises Inc. British Virgin Islands 1 us$1 100 —  Investment holding

**  Represented ordinary shares, unless otherwise stated.

1T Non-voting deferred shares — the rights, privileges and restrictions of which are set out in the Articles of Association of the respective company.

Note:  During the year, the Group acquired 100% interests in Eldwin Corporation and Ambest Company Limited and their subsidiary companies
g year, ip acq T part) . i

Sor k31,910 million cash. As a result, the Group's profit for the year and net assets as at the year end have been increased by k103 million and

HK$403 million respectively.

During the year, the Group disposed 100% interests in First Honour Investments Ltd. and Supreme Image Holdings Inc., they hold §0% in Lucky
g the year, p sy P 8 g > the) %)
Zone Enterprises Inc. and its subsidiary companies. Prior to the disposal, the operating loss HKS1 million has been taken up by the Group for the

year ended 31 December 2002.
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30 FEMELT

THERGR A TR EAEE ER NG R EAER LEWB AT - FHEG R A0 MR A R g S A RZRR
JUR -
C#fr
Ak 8 TR B A IR
TEEEDY EAY| Wi 2wl

£ NS * R #H A 6 % % LB
Wize
Collinson Company Limited AL B LA R 498 - 100 - BEER
Custain Limited B 2 10 T - 100 HEERK
Easerich Investments Inc. WEELRER/TRE 1 1%78 - 100 BEER
Hilldun Limited AW 3 10 T - 100 BEERK
Jade Wonder Limited EEBELES 1 1%7T - 100 HEERK
Motive Link Holdings Inc. ) e XY 5 1 1%78 - 100 BEER
Sidewinder Holdings Limited EEELTRHAE 1 1% - 100 HELER
Smooth Tone Investments Lid. EEELREHRE 1 1%7¢ - 100 BEHR
HR%
aaa Internet Limited A 2 1T - 100 fROLE IR

Rt A
Amazing Gains Finance Limited EEEATRHAE 1 1% - 100 HRAEFRE
FEHEE 1616 ARRAT A 2 1T - 100 fRpbE R
FEEDE 1616 HRAT itk 2 Uil T - 100 SROCEERAERE

(FIRERA 1616 Bl A RAR)

FlEA4E 1016 ARA R B 2 1T - 100 fRpbE R
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Notes to the Accounts

30 FEMBLR &

JR H It it

E#fr
At R 13 Rt HRHE
THE A LA Wi oAl
5 A R #H JA (E] % % EEEHF
PERE RS RHCERA A HRE 100,000 i T - 100 BEHER
HEEM 1616 HRAT i 2 ik - 100 fRAEEEER
s
cpenet Hong Kong Limited itk 394,866,986 ki T - 100 FRAEE AR
cpenet Macau Limited el AT A - 100 fREEBAERE
i (Fils) ARAH il 2 i3 T - 100 FRAteEHREs
Data Communication Services B 1,000 ik T - 100 AR
Limited 38.000.000 T W1 T
Delight Way Holdings Inc. EEEL R ERE 1 1%50 - 100 RRAEEERRE
FHAEARA A R LR 1 1 %70 - 100 BEHER
A B A R A F i 300,000 10 0 - 100 fRECEIBAEIRE
BB B IR AT IR 7 Fils 2 W T - 100 dRftaEEs
(RZBE=ZF_AZTAASHE s
Ciric Telecom 1616 Consultancy
Services Limited)
Grand Formosa Holdings Inc. BREIE LR 1 1356 - 100 #EHK
Pedova Corp. B IE LR 1 1%750 - 100 BEER
Perfect Spot Investments Corp. B IE LR 1 1%50 - 100 BEER
Super Worth Investments Ine. IR R 1 1 %70 - 100 BEHER
B R A AR A i 2,250,000 ik - 100 fREEIBAERE
Wonder Delight Enterprises Inc. BRIE LR 1 1%750 - 100 BEER
AR RA A B 1,000 ik T - 100 SREEEEER
2,000,000 W1 T 874
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E#1r

M RO B FEAIRHE

FE PN WL
5 EAKA * W #H {8 % VT =3
HE
R A PR A A 2 T - 100 BEER
FROEFE A IR 7 il 2 i I - 100 HEEK
ST E AR A 2 il - 100 HEERK
R A A RA R WRELEE 1 1#7T - 100 HEsER
Premier Gold Holdings Corp. PR LRE 1 IESTH - 100 BEHR
FEGRREIRA PR A 7 A 2 1T - 100 HEERK
Rising Star Enterprises Corp. EEBELES 1 e - 100 BrEBR
AR BB LRE 1 IESTH - 100 BEHR
Mk B BEHRA B 10,000 1T - 100 HEERK
OBk~ R B BB
Adwood Company Limited itk 10 10 7T 20 50 AR
Avon Pacific Limited EEBELES 1 1¥£7T - 100 HEERK
Bloomingshire Investment Limited PR LEE 1 IESTH - 100 BEHR
Cinta Company Limited EEBELES 1 1¥£7T - 100 BrEBR
Ah LA PR B 2 10 T - 100 HEHERK
Express Link Holdings Lid. PR LS 1 IESTH - 100 BEHR
Gradius Company Limited EEBELER 1 1¥£7T - 100 BrEBR
A IR A R A R itk 75,000,000 10 T - 70.8  BEEAH
H A PR PR LRE 1 IESTH - 100 BEHR
Prime Star Enterprises Limited EEBELER 1 1¥£T - 100 BrEBR
Rich Creation Investments Ltd. EEBELER 1 1¥£7T - 100 BEER
IMEHE AR i 2 1T - 100 BEHR
TR
Athens Investments, Inc. B LRE 1 IESTH - 100 BEHR
Estoril Corp. EEBELER 1 1¥£T - 100 BrEBR
Unitex Holdings Corp. WRELEE 1 1¥£T - 100  BrEBR
i LY B
LR G it A7 250 50,000 A - 100 HEEMHEY
BRI A Hilk 2 T - 62 REREER
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Notes to the Accounts

30 FEMBLR &

JR H It it

E#fr
At RO BB HRHE
TR E A LA Wi oAl
5 A R #H JA (E] % % EEEHF
b B R e A A PR ] LiE YNEREI N A A - 62 EEEDFIL KBt
S
AEREARAR s 1,000 100 G - 100 REAS
KIS O A R AR B 1,000 #5100 76 - 100 KEEHZY
KEBGT (ngER) ARAF JIE-PN 650,000 - - 100 —fEd 0 &
Ei il
KREBHT (hE) HRAR B 1,000 #5100 76 - 100 BEHER
KB BRI IR A IRAT  Fi 10.000 W T - 70 ROCEIEI RS
Al et
KEB LT TRARAH B 10,000 #5100 76 - 100 TR
REBHITHEEAIRAF i 21,031,837 10 6 - 100 HEPK
KEBGHITARAT il 50,000 #:# 1,000 7T - 100 B il O
REERH
o Han &
HoAth 7
W &tk BE 51T H A 480,000 1,000 H [ - 100 s RHEREK
SO sk
B Mk
KEBHRE (hE) ARRATH R 20,000 #5100 76 - 100 BEHER
KEFT CRHEAERE) ARAR ik 10,000 10 T - 100 REME
KEEHTIREINB P LA RAF itk 2,000 #5100 7T - 100 RELAEERE
REBHITRE (HE-FB) ARAR & 2 10 7T - 100 IRHLAREHT
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E#1r
M SR B FEAIRHE
TEEEE L] Wt 2 Fl
5 EAKA * RO EH {8 % VT =3
KEEHAT o) FAARA Hng 3,500,000 1H TS - 100 BeEHE g
85
KB — UM A PR A R itk 10,000 1T - 70 ZEEE S O B
R
KB — VB2 LA PR ) B 10,000 1T - 49 ZEEEEBRE
s B AT
E5E
KEATE R TEAWRAT it 2 10 7T - 100 BEHER
KEAT IR EEEA R A ik 100,000 100 T - 100 SR FERE
L E
KEBEGITRE (FH) ARAF it 2 T - 100 JEAEHNR
pct Motors Litd. JIEWN 100 1ot - 100 JREASENPS
Excellent Way International Ltd. EEBELES 1 1¥£T - 100 BrEBR
A PR PR A itk 166,000 T - 100 SR RIE
iR ARG HE P A PR A i \ R AT A - 90  4rEH
MG B
BRIREARA A itk 1,000 W 100 T - 100 IRHAEHN
AR HA A i 3,000 ¥ 1,000 7T - 100 REAHTE
FERIRER AT AR A A 1,000 #5100 7T - 100 KEEHEY)
A HNREA R A itk 2 1T - 100 IRHEALEN
AHHAT R ) Bl 2,000 i 100 7T - 100 FRELEET
ARHREA R A itk 3,000 91,000 7T - 100 IRHEALEHN
HE (hE) ARAT it 2 W10 7T - 100 iR
HE (B HRAF His 2 Uil T - 100 HEER
HE A RAT itk 3,000 100 7T - 100 i
LiEKBITER TEARAF BEINEEI A A - 100 fRNLREY
iR i
Lk BRI A R A BEINEE I A A - 385  EEMIERE
MG B BAT B
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Notes to the Accounts BE B Wt

30 FEMBLR &

E#fr

At RO BB HRHE

THE A LA Wi oAl
5 A R #H JA (E] % % EEEHF
A RIRHEF AT R A B 3,000,000 18T - 100 IRHAEHIE
A RREARA A A 30,000 100 7T - 100 FREAS
ARIEE () FRAT il 2 ik 10 T - 100 HEPER L

IRENL

2 RBEBA AR i 2 ik - 100 ®EY
BREBE A R A HEER LR 100 1%50 - 02  BUAWIEEH
01 2 8 0 O 1 A PR LiE YNEREE I A A - 100 AR

S A
LIE S
INSCA R i 2 10 8 - 100 YKL
TS 3 AT /A ) Fils 2 W T - 100 ¥
THARAH i 2 w100 - 100 #EZHK

(REA N - —FEF— 22 )
Baylink Investments Limited BIE LR 1 1%50 - 100 BEER
Borgia Limited il 2 10 00 - 100 WERE
RO A AT PR A R i 2 ik - 100 e
SRFERA AR i 2 ik - 100 YR
Eldwin Corporation RBELES AR 10,000 17T - 100 #ERR
(AW —FFF—H = T2H)

B RA R i 2 ik - 100 YERE
Glenridge Company Limited itk 2 10 00 - 100 WELE
Goldenburg Properties Limited i 1,000 10 8 - 70 PEEE
fEB B EEARAF i 80,000 %100 76 - 100 YERE
fEL: B 2 A TR A A B 2 1T - 100 PEEH
fEEEEEARAF i 50,000 %100 JC - 100 YERE
Jewril Limited ik 2 ik R - 100 HEFERK
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E#1r
M RO B FEAIRHE
TEEEE L] Wi 27l
5 EAKA W #H {8 % VT =3
AIEA R B 10,000 T - 833  BEEMK
(iR —FFF—H - T=H)
Kendorm Corporation AR [ P 1 - - 100 BEHR
Kimble Investment Limited EEBELER 1 1%7T - 100 HEHERK
Kowill Investments Inc. WEELRRHRE 1 1% - 100 BEHR
Lindenford Limited i 2 10 T - 100 PEEE
HEREARAR itk 2 1T - 100 WA
Newmarket Holdings Limited EEEATEHAE 2 1% - 100 HELER
HEA R A i 2 L T - 100 PEEE
R B AT IRA T BEINEE I A A - 100 WEERCE R
A 22 -F—A 21 2H) AMEBRE R
LT EREERGARAR GiE INEPIIN i A A - 80 WIERE LM
(SR : ZRRE—-A 21 2H) M EEER Y
bR E AR A SEE NI A A - 100 PR
FOM R
Speedy Way Investments Litd. EEBELES 1 1¥£7T - 100 BrEBR
Hir R R A B 152,343,165 5 0.10 7T 100 - BEEK
Supreme Luck Investments Ltd. PR LRE 1 IESTH - 100 BEHR
Tendo Limited B 2 10 T - 100 PERE
HAR B BR A PR A 7 itk 1,000,000 1T - 100 SEFREHY
W
Balgonie Limited B 2 1T 100 - mEE
Crric Pacific Finance (2001) Limited BB E LR 1,000 1350 100 - gL
Idealand Investment Inc. DEE IR 100 1%7T - 100 REZHE
Top Trend Investments Holdings Corp.  HEELRS /HHE 1 1% 100 - EERH
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Notes to the Accounts

30 FEMEBLR &

HeH

fit it

E#fr
At RO BB HRHE
THE A LA Wi oAl
5 A R #H JA (E] % % EEEHF
TR
AT IR T BB LR R 1 155t - 100 BEPK
JER A EA PR IR LR 1 1%L - 100 BEHER
VLB B 5 T A PR A ) LiE YNEREE N A A - 55 SEERE
oM R 2
VL B M0 A7 R ) HhfE A R AL AN A A - 55 B
AN B A2
VLA 3 DL R R I 0y i A RIEAIE 390,000,000 NS - 5472 HEERE
AR 7 SN R Al A 2
FHER R A R LR 1 1%5 - 100 BEHER
BEREARAR IR LR 1 1%L - 100 BOEHER
AR AT PR 7 KRR LR 1 1%L - 100 BOEEER
WG FETRAMAF Lk YNEREE 1T AE A - 55 LEmigE
A R 2
VL3R F BB AR b AT /A 7) GiE INEEI] i AL - 54.87  EEIBVEEUK K
AN R A2 AR
et
PERE (PR REHRAR Lk YNEREE N AE A - 100 #HEZHK
S A
Forever Glory Holdings Ltd. R LRE 1 1%50 - 100 BEER
Golden Gateway Enterprises Inc. IR R 1 1%7% 100 - BREgk

w RAAIENIS) - 1R ERY

T MERCRRRRAE RO — ILSE IR O 2 HEF ~ HFHER RIIFIH AT B 2 7 2 AR R A A

Mitat o AR > AL B Bl B TUlE— T B CH i Eldwin: Corporation &% BT IR Al RHMEEG 272 100% Hdi o KU » A B2 AAF B &R

FEHEAE A 2 B I (A s o — (e =

B T R it WD e = T -

JAARAESE » R HE First Honour Investments Ltd. RIEGEHERARL 7.2 100% s - HAFHHEHEEA IR 7 RILHHE L 7.2 S0% s o i
A > A E ZFE A A T H A — HIL R R TR R A i T — B T -
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31 Principal Associated Companies

The following are the principal associated companies of the Group which in the opinion of the directors, principally
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affect the results and net assets of the Group. To give details of other associated companies would in the opinion of

the directors result in particulars of excessive length.

"
S
Place of Group equity o
Name incorporation/operation interest % Principal activities =
Aviation
Cathay Pacific Airways Limited (Note) ~ Hong Kong 25.70 Airlines and related services
Hong Kong Dragon Airlines Limited Hong Kong 28.50 Aviation
Swire Aviation Limited Hong Kong 33.33 Investment holding in
Hong Kong Air Cargo
Terminals Limited
Communications
Crric Guoan Co., Litd. People’s Republic of 50 Investment holding
China
Companhia de Telecomunicacoes Macau 20 Telecommunications services
de Macau S.A.R.L.
Tunnels
Eastern Harbour Crossing Company Hong Kong 50 Tunnel operation
Limited
Hong Kong Tunnels and Highways Hong Kong 35 Management, operation
Management Company Limited and maintenance of the
Cross Harbour Tunnel
Western Harbour Tunnel Company Hong Kong 35 Franchise to construct and
Limited operate the Western
Harbour Crossing
Environment
Ecoserve Limited Hong Kong 50 Design, construction and
operation of refuse
transfer station
Enviropace Limited Hong Kong 20 Design, construction,
operation and management
of chemical waste
treatment plant
Green Valley Landfill, Limited Hong Kong 30 Landfill construction
and operation
South China Transfer Limited Hong Kong 30 Design, construction

and operation of

transfer station
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Notes to the Accounts

31 Principal Associated Companies continued

Name

Place of

incorporation/operation

JR H It it

Group equity
interest %

Principal activities

Property

Cheer First Limited

Crric Tower Property Management
Company Limited

Danton Investment Limited

Festival Walk Holdings Limited
Goldon Investment Limited
Hong Kong Resort Company Limited

Kido Profits Limited

Shinta Limited
Sun Kong Investment Company,
Limited

Treasure Trove Limited

Others

Crric Capital Markets Holdings
Limited

Shiseido Dah Chong Hong Cosmetics
Limited

Way Chong Finance Limited

Note:  Extracts from the published accounts of Cathay Pacific Airways Limited, a significant associated company of the Group, are shown on

pages 139 and 140.

132

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

40
40

50
15

20
40

Financing

Property management
Investment holding
Property investment
Property investment
Property development

Property development

Property investment

Property development

Financing

Investment holding

Trading in cosmetic products

Provision of hire purchase

and leasing finance



31 FERELTH
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bR A ﬁ
L1 B EE FERFAZIRHE % FEEH %
iz -
BIFATZEARAR () it 25.76 firi 2 AT B s
WAL 2 A PR A il 28.50 fir 2 85
Swire Aviation Limited i 33.33 FEA il 22 B A BRA

ZHRE
fRE%
il B A PR A e N R SE AN 50 BOEHER
L A PR A L 20 ATl RHUR B
3 s]
Eastern Harbour Crossing Company Limited RS 50 SR
7 VS DR T e R0 B A PR PR itk 35 B RS R IR RE
s 7 [ B A PR ) it 35 LSy UL e A T
R
1 3 B Wy A PR ) it 50 AT~ B RS B R v
AL BB B A TR ) itk 20 AEEt - BLE R
B i P

BH LHEARAR it 30 B o KO B e S R
P HE B B AT PR itk 30 ARE ~ B RS B v
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Notes to the Accounts HE H It it
31 FERELE &

AL
1 LB EE SEEFFA ZIRIE % FHEH
L/ S
Cheer First Limited il 40 [Ely<g:3:
R R BB B PR ) ik 40 ESc
Danton Investment Limited IR LR Bk 40 Ei'g el
IR A PR A ik 50 YR E
SERE AR i 40 ESi ey
B BLEA R ik 50 ES 9
Kido Profits Limited IR LR Bk 15 e 9
R AR i 20 ESie
it HEA A A ik 40 ES 9
Treasure Trove Limited il 50 [Ely<g:3:
Ay
H S AT P JBOA PR A ) ik 50 BEER
R BATILHE A AT PR i 50 &3¢
{E & B0 AT BR A W ik 50 RO S R

Wiat : AL TR L AR AR A 2 B AR B HER #1139 & 140 H -
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32 Principal Co-operative Joint Ventures

The following are the principal co-operative joint ventures of the

Group, which in the opinion of the directors, principally affect the

results and net assets of the Group. To give details of other co-operative

joint ventures would in the opinion of the directors result in particulars

of excessive length. All of the principal co-operative joint ventures have

their place of incorporation and operations in the People’s Republic of

32 FRAHFSELR

INE S

TR TEYBEAER L EELE
EREZAEBEEAES
BAI AL AR
WU » BTl FEAES

BT o HHE D
BAR LR LA RER
BAFYLLIRE AR

SERIER fy M R

China.
Co-operative
Joint venture Group equity Principal
Name period interest % activities
51 alE&E A AR EEIG R % FEER
Jiangsu Ligang Electric Power (Note a) 50.31  Electric power plant
Company Limited (“Ligang”) construction and operation
TLARAIHE AT R T (T 1) (H5E a) g Yieit-
Shanghai Citic Tunnel Development 31 years from 50  Tunnel construction,

Co., Ltd. (Note ¢)
i ERE R RARA R (T )

Shanghai Huang Pu River Tunnel

and Bridges Development Co., Ltd.

(Note ¢)
TR SR AT IR A F (R ¢)

Shanghai Jian Tai Co., Ltd. (Note ¢)
EEERARAT ()
Shanghai Xupu Bridge Development
Co., Ltd. (Note ¢)
FIEERHRAGRRAIRA R (BT o)
Zhengzhou Xinli Electric Power
Co., Ltd. (“Xinli”)

BB EARAF (Hi )

V025 s A 4l B 3
AR

7 October 1993
—NUN=F+H LR =+—4

20 years from

1 January 1995

—NREAFE—A— R s =4

20 years from
1 January 1996
— LA FE—H—H#Es 4

20 years from

1 July 1996

—UIANFEEH — Hist 4
(Note b)

(FHEE b)

20 years from

3 June 2002
CEERTHENA = HBRF S 4E

45

45

45

31

managemen t and op eration

BREERLE - R

Tunnel and bridges

management and Operation
BRI BARRR 2 B R R

Toll road management
and operation

W%/\%Z :—é"»}ﬂ&ﬁ«(#&

Bridge management

and operation

TR B P R

Electric power plant

construction and operation

BRI A

Research and development

in biotechnology

DB S 2> RS O
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Notes to the Accounts

32 Principal Co-operative Joint Ventures continued

Note:

(a) Ligang Phase I and Il are accounted for as investments of the Group as the Group’s
interests therein will revert to the joint venture partners in the People’s Republic of China
after fifteen years and twenty years respectively from the date on which the electricity
generators became operational. Accordingly their results are accounted for to the extent of

dividends received and receivable, less amounts amortised.

(b) Xinli is accounted for as investment of the Group as the Group’s interest therein will
revert to Zhengzhou Construction Investment Co. in the People’s Republic of China after
[ifteen years from the date on which the third unit commenced commercial operation.
Accordingly its results are accounted for to the extent of dividends received and receivable,

less amounts amortised.

(¢) The Group is guaranteed a fized return on the investment amount of the co-operative
Joint ventures. Upon the expiration of the co-operation period, all the Group’s interests in
Shanghai Citic Tunnel Development Co., Ltd. will revert to Shanghai People’s Government
and all the Group’s interests in the assets of the other co-operative joint ventures will revert
to the joint venture partners in the People’s Republic of China. Further information in

respect of guaranteed fized returns projects is included in Note 15 on pages 100 and 101.
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32 FESHAEAR &
i

(a) Flits 2 55— W R I E I AL [l 2 5 EA
IR o B i B I AN TR =
W+ A5 B % 5 T B 2 2 1% o A R
Tz BB A o Bt FFRERAZEFE
FHEC N RIENIRE. > WA AT o

(b) BIHER A2 LEEASR - BRI FE= G #A
RER LA - ARSI IRH 2 i b
i N RSN 2 M Tl s B L R A e i
Yo BEI A 2 FERETH O AR ENRE - E

(c) ARG ZAFAIERE A A BB
MR o BIFMIEBE - AL L (5 B B
HIRA il 2 — VI HE 2 A B g G T A R BURFIT AT
MALRB LM A ERE L A4 T BEL— VIR
bt i 1 SN R 2 5 E BRI o A7 B AR
JEBIHRIE H 23— BEHHIRAE 100 HX 101 B2 7
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Auditors’ Report RBERE

Auditors’ Report to the Shareholders of Citic Pacific Limited P ERERRLT
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(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability) (FE L 7 2 TR A )
g 1
We have audited the accounts on pages 68 to 136 which have been AR E e A 08 25 130 HIVARE

B % & %

prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 7% 8z H 754 B b 08 5% 40 19 € 5 52 HI A
Hong Kong, save as explained in accounting policy Note 1p on page 83.  (TUA% 83 F 2 & sHBURMI S 1p B IRE#
BRAL) -

Respective Responsibilities of Directors and Auditors EEREBMAESENRE

The Hong Kong Companies Ordinance requires the directors to prepare /Al il # F 0 i B B A PO R
accounts which give a true and fair view. In preparing accounts which H o TR 8% HEH A TR AR - Eh
give a true and fair view it is fundamental that appropriate accounting — ZHHR F# % 1 & 51 BOR - I B EHUEHZ5 &

policies are selected and applied consistently. FHEH o

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our AGBME T RRIREL AR - Ha
audit, on those accounts and to report our opinion to you. MR R o I O
Basis of Opinion ERMER
We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing ARG BT % IR A U 2 £ 11 1
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants. An audit HERIEAT AR % TAE o 9 R0 L 4 DA 5 7 X
includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the A% LR o o R o A B MR

amounts and disclosures in the accounts. It also includes an assessment TN 7% 5 45 RHR B I 89 RS
of the significant estimates and judgements made by the directors in the — FHRIFIE > ik A GFHECRER#E S B]A
preparation of the accounts, and of whether the accounting policies are  Fl#  HEBKEBEN - LA & B HUER

appropriate to the circumstances of the Company and the Group, S5 % 5 RTEOR -

consistently applied and adequately disclosed. AR SR AT R AR > L
We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the IR A AR A BT 0 25 A0 75 1 SR MR 2

information and explanations which we considered necessary in order B MERG A0 BE » SRR B

to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance as to  EREFERBAE - 1E &R - 7E/EHER
whether the accounts are free from material misstatement. In forming Rf o AL BRI RF Al 2R F BT R B B
our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation 8 F2 & &4 o AREEIME » FMMEZ L
of information in the accounts. We believe that our audit provides a TEC I TR AR AR 2B

reasonable basis for our opinion.

137



Auditors’ Report BRI 1

Opinion R

In our opinion the accounts give a true and fair view of the state of ARG - LR A R DIEE A T
affairs of the Company and the Group as at 31 December 2002 and of %R HARE JEER -FZHE+ N
the profit and cash flows of the Group for the year then ended and have — =+ —H&HERHMBRD - k. BEE®RE
been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies  #% H IR FI R B SR E - i REEL

Ordinance. R f o
PricewaterhouseCoopers BB SRR M 7 i i 5
Certified Public Accountants B it hin

Hong Kong, 12 March 2003 T “EE=HF=A+2H
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Extract from Published Accounts of Cathay Pacific Airways Limited

a Consolidated Profit and Loss Account

Jor the year ended 31 December 2002

BERMZARAFELAHREZRE

a RAREBE
HFE BB A T H = — H I

in uk$ million 2002 2001 beiod=) o

Turnover BEH

Passenger services 22,376 20,580 FERHE

Cargo services 9,387 8,343  BHEMR

Catering and other services 1,327 1,513 fuze ki oAt s

Total turnover 33,090 30,436 BEMAM

Expenses B3¢

Staff (7.918) (7.629) AT

Route (6,113) (6,698) i

Fuel (4,895) (5.313)  #hK

Aircraft maintenance (3.312) (3.234) FRigAEE

Depreciation and operating leases (4,720) (4,968) & REEHRE

Commissions (501) (539) H&

Others (881) (1.223) it

Operating expenses (28.340) (29,604) HBEMWX

Operating profit 4,750 832  RBEEM

Finance charges (2.421) (2,608) BB

Finance income 1,678 2,097  HMHIA

Net finance charges (743) (571) WA S R

Profit on sale of investments - 452  HEREZ &

Share of profits of associated companies 324 188 MEA M 2 vl v A1)

Profit before taxation 4,331 001  ERBiwigefl

Taxation (328) (202) FiHE

Profit after taxation 4,003 699  BrBiLkRIA

Minority interests (20) (42) DRGSR

Profit attributable to shareholders 3,983 657  JBEHMEM R

Dividends BB

Interim — paid 534 416  PH-CIEK

Final — proposed 1,868 167 R4
2,402 583

Earnings per share (1K¢) FRAA GERD)

Basic 119.5 19.7 HA

Diluted 118.7 19.6 ##

Shareholders’ funds per share (HKS) 9.6 0.4 HRBKRES (EFD)
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Lxtract from Published Accounts of Cathay Pacific Airways Limited

b Consolidated Balance Sheet

as at 31 December 2002

B 7 2 A IR 4 A 2 2R H 2 1R

b GEREARSE
SEFECAEL At A

in 1KS million 2002 2001 TEMEE HoT
Assets And Liabilities o KA
Non-current assets and liabilities B &K AT
Fixed assets 50,038 51,600 [ gE
Intangible assets 489 454 WV EE
Investments in associated companies 1,739 1,590  RBEAFZ8E
Other long-term receivables and investments 1,458 1,575  HARBIENCGRIE L&

53,724 55,279
Long-term liabilities (31.382) (39,208) RiafE
Related pledged security deposits 12,853 17,194 HHBECHITER
Net long-term liabilities (18.529) (22,014) RERFEEH
Retirement benefit obligations (3406) - RIREEAELT
Deferred taxation (7,614) (7,830) RIEBLIE

(26.489) (20.850)
Net non-current assets 27,235 25429  FREHEIFE
Current assets and liabilities B KA
Stock 430 587 &
Trade and other receivables 4,204 4,778 B5 R AD IR
Liquid funds 13,180 0,764 WEES

17,904 15,129

Current portion of long-term liabilities (6,409) (3.241) RBAGZREY
Related pledged security deposits 2,128 1,231 MHECHI R
Net current portion of long-term liabilities (4,281) (2,010) RIAM RS HH
Trade and other payables (5,280) (4.550) B o BIABRERT KA
Unearned transportation revenues (2,518) (1.965) AR#EE i s
Taxation (874) (626) BiE

(12,953) (9.157)
Net current assels 4,951 5972 B EEIFHE
Total assets less current and

non-current liabilities 32,186 31,401 EEAERTE R IFRE A1

Minority interests (71) (93) DUIECRHESR
Net assets 32,115 31,308 HEFHE
Capital And Reserves B B Gl
Share capital 667 606 A
Reserves 31,448 30,642  fi#
Shareholders’ funds 32,115 31,308  REEE
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Terms

Capital employed

Cash contributed
from all business

Total debt

Net debt

Shareholders’ equity

Total capital

EBITDA

Contribution

Ratios

Earnings per share

Shareholders’
equity per share

Leverage

Cashflow per share

Interest cover

Capital employed represents shareholders’
funds + total borrowings

Cash inflow to Crric Pacific Ltd. from
all its subsidiary companies, associated

companies and other investments

Short term and long term loans, notes and
bonds

Total debt less cash and bank deposits
Shareholders” funds + unimpaired goodwill
written off to reserves for accounting
purposes

Shareholders” equity + net debt

Net profit less interest expense, taxation,
depreciation and amortization

Net income from each business before

amortization of goodwill, and interest and
overheads paid by Crric Pacific Litd.

Profit attributable to shareholders

Weighted average number of shares
(by days) in issue for the year

Shareholders’ equity

Total issued and fully paid shares at
end of the year

Net debt

Total capital

Cash contributed from all business

Total issued and fully paid shares
at end of the year

EBITDA

Interest expense

EEE= v
BEaEm

EA K

EBITDA

i M E R

4
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EIU e

FE AR

BEE MR E S L
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Major Properties held by the Group

as at 31 December 2002

Major Properties Held For Investment

Leasehold Group’s Approximate Gross
Address / Lot No. Expiry  Interest % Floor Area (sq. ft.) Fxisting Use
* 1. Skyway House, 3 Sham Mong Road, Kowloon, H.x. 2041 100 204,158 Commercial

2004/2700th shares of kii., No. 9706 & the extension thereto

2. Block C of Yee Lim Industrial Centre, 2-28 Kwai Lok Street, and 2047 100 320,195 Cold Storage &
2-0 Kwai Hei Street, Kwai Chung, 1.x. Godown
4000/9000th shares of kctr. No. 333

3. Honest Motors Building, 9-11, Leighton Road, Causeway Bay, n.x. 2880 100 47,487 Commercial
HKiL No. 5431 and 5432

4. Wyler Centre 1, Basement 1 & 2 and Parking Spaces Nos P50 and 2047 100 393,488 Industrial
P51 on 2nd Floor of Wyler Centre 2, 192-210 Tai Lin Pai Road,
Kwai Chung, n.k.
5779/11152th shares of and in the Remaining Portion of Kwai Chung Town
Lot No. 130 and the extension thereto

5. Broadway Centre, No. 93 Kwai Fuk Road, Kwai Chung, H.x. 2047 100 343,000 Godown &
KcTL No. 435 Ancillary Office

6. pcH Commercial Centre, No. 25, Westlands Road, 2047 100 389,000 Commercial
Quarry Bay, H.K. HkiL8854

7. Cinic Tower, No. 1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central, H.K. HKIL. No. 8822 2047 40 562,000 Commercial

8. Festival Walk, Tat Chee Avenue, Yau Yat Tsuen, Kowloon, 1.k. NKiL. No. 6181 2047 50 1,200,000 Commercial

9. Crmc Square, 1168 Nanjing Xi Lu. Jingan District, Shanghai, the prc 2044 80 1,137,000 Commercial

10. Royal Pavilion, 688 Hua Shan Lu, Jingan District, Shanghai, the prc 20063 100 374,000 Residential

11. Hiro-o Garden Hills, West Hill 1-1204, Hiro-o 4-chome, Freehold 100 873 Residential
Shibuya-ku, Tokyo, Japan

12. Hiro-o Garden Hills, Centre Hill H-1403, Hiro-o 4-chome, Freehold 100 2,012 Residential
Shibuya-ku, Tokyo, Japan

13. Hiro-o Garden Hills, South Hill D-507, Hiro-o 4-chome, Freehold 100 2,264 Residential
Shibuya-ku, Tokyo. Japan

14. Dah Chong No. 1 Building, 12-6, Roppongi, 3-chome, Freehold 100 34,528 Commercial &
Minato-ku, Tokyo, Japan Restaurants, etc.

15. Dah Chong No. 2 Building, B1/F-4/F, 18-2, Roppongi. 5-chome, Freehold 100 13,067 Commercial &
Minato-ku, Tokyo, Japan Restaurants, etc.

16. Toriizaka House 14-19, Roppongi, 5-chome, Minato-ku. Tokyo, Japan Freehold 100 7,352 Residential & Office

* excluding a petrol filling station on the ground floor with an ancillary storage tank in part of the basement and a storeroom on the first floor

Major Properties Held For Development

Estimated Approximate  Approximate
Stage of  Completion Leasehold Group’s Site Area  Gross Floor
Location / Lot No. Completion Date  Classification Expiry  Interest % (sq. Jt.) Area (sq.ft.) Existing Use
1. Lot Nos. 390Rp, 394Rp, 395, 3906, 397, 399, N/A N/A N/A 2047 100 193,652 N/a  Construction
400, 401, 402, 405, 400, 407, 409, 410Rp, Site
412Rp. 413Rp. 414Rp, 416, 417, 418, 419
and 424 in p.n. No. 121 and Lot Nos. 274Rp,
278Rp. 279Rp, 282Rp, 283Rp, 284, 285,
2860sB Rp, 2806sB ssl and 286Rp in p.p.
No. 127 Yuen Long, New Territories, 1.K.
2. Lot No. 3723 sD Rp in p.0. No. 104 and Lot N/A N/A N/A 2047 40 2,449,517 N/ Agricultural
Nos. 43A and 50 in p.n. No. 101 and Land
Lot Nos. 1266Rp, 1267 and 1268 in b.p.
No. 105, Yuen Long, New Territories, H.K.
3. No. 500 and 502, Tung Chau Street, N/A N/A N/A 2047 100 20.258 N/a  Construction
Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, 1.. Site
NKIL No. 4751 & 4752
4. Westgate Garden, Xi Zang Nan Lu / Sub-structure Phase 1 Residential 2072 100 734,783 3,000,000 Construction
Jian Guo Dong Lu, Huang Pu District, in progress in 2005 & Commercial Site
Shanghai, the prc
Major Properties Held For Sale
Leasehold Group’s Approximate Gross
Address / Lot No. Expiry Interest % Floor Area (sq. ft.) Fxisting Use
Grand Court, 109-135 Kadoorie Avenue, Kowloon, H.K. 20006 100 135,340 Residential

Subsections 1 and 2 and the Remaining Portion of Section D of k1. No. 2657
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11. Hiro-o Garden Hills, West Hill I-1204, Hiro-o 4-chome,

Shibuya-ku, Tokyo, Japan

12. Hiro-o Garden Hills, Centre Hill H-1403, Hiro-o 4-chome,

Shibuya-ku, Tokyo, Japan

13. Hiro-o Garden Hills, South Hill D-507, Hiro-o 4-chome,

Shibuya-ku, Tokyo, Japan
14. Dah Chong No. 1 Building, 12-6, Roppongi,
Minato-ku, Tokyo, Japan

3-chome,

15. Dah Chong No. 2 Building, B1/F-4/F, 18-2, Roppongi, 5-chome,

Minato-ku, Tokyo, Japan
16. Toriizaka House 14-19, Roppongi, 5-chome,
Minato-ku, Tokyo, Japan
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Shareholders may at any time choose to receive Summary Financial
Report or Annual Report in printed form or to rely on their versions
posted on the Company’s website. They may also at any time choose
to receive Summary Financial Report or Annual Report in place of the
other. Shareholders may change their choice on these matters by
writing to the Company’s Share Registrars, Tengis Limited at G/F.,
Bank of East Asia Harbour View Centre, 56 Gloucester Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong.

If Shareholders have already chosen to rely on the versions of the
Summary Financial Report or Annual Report posted on the
Company’s website and have difficulty in having access to those
documents, they will, promptly upon request, be sent those documents
in printed form free of charge. Please send the request to the

Company’s Share Registrars.
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